GIORDANO

Giordano International Limited

ERNERESRRA

(Incorporated in Benmuala with limited fabilty 1 B 51T 7.2 BIR A F))

Annual Report 2022 F #

(Stock Code &3 1X5% : 709)




B &%

CONTENTS
TEMBEEEHE 2
Ten-Year Financial and Operation Highlights
NSIE-¥= 4
Corporate Information
TRHRESE 6
Chairman’s Statement
BIRE 2wl ko 7
Management Discussion and Analysis
EERAERERASHN 21
Directors and Senior Management Profiles
rERELBHREE 27
Corporate Governance Report
EEgHEE 57
Directors’ Report
BUGZBMBES 71
Independent Auditor’s Report
& B FI B & 9
Consolidated Income Statement
aftEe N E K 80
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
EMEERRRX 81
Consolidated Balance Sheet
AHBEERER 83
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
ApEREHE 85
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B 75 3R R Bt 5 87
Notes to the Financial Statements
IR EER 172
Share Option Information
BREEZEZEEHR 179
Information for Investors
gk - IR3F - HERERRESE ESG.1
Appendix — Environmental, Social and Governance Report

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 & # & m B B R A 7



TFHBREBRRFE

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

(B HEAIEEISN - LB & BT REL)

(In HK$ million unless otherwise specified)

HER

EF

EFI=E

R (B8) (K3 k4)
REFE(HF3K4)
EBITDA(K1:#3%4)

EBITDA& 7 & (7723 % 4)

AN AP EMG R F (B518) (F1at3Kk4)

HELRE(HaE3K4)
FHEERRBOIRE(MaL3Rk4)
FHARRBRE G R E R (HE3%4)

Sales

Gross profit

Gross margin

Operating profit (loss) (Note 3 and 4)

Operating margin (Note 3 and 4)

EBITDA (Note 3 and 4)

EBITDA margin (Note 3 and 4)

Profit (loss) attributable to shareholders of
the Company (Note 3 and 4)

Return on sales (Note 3 and 4)

Return on average total assets (Note 3 and 4)

Return on average equity attributable to shareholders of the Company

(Note 3 and 4)

fﬁ%ﬁ&fﬁmﬁ TRIRITER
Be(f23Kk4)

é“% BEE (1523 4)

BEBBE(NE3K4)

TA

FEHRANTERS(R)(MF1)

RENL K (B2 (K3 k4)

[V

Cash and bank balances less bank loans
Working capital (Note 3 and 4)

Total assets (Note 3 and 4)

Total liabilities (Note 3 and 4)

Inventories

Inventory turnover on costs (days) (Note 1)
Current ratio (times) (Note 3 and 4)

BB (BE) — EXCE)

Earnings (loss) per share — Basic (HK cents)

TR B CEN) Dividend per share (HK cents)
KB L& Dividend payout ratio
miZRBROEE (FK) Number of shares outstanding (in thousands)
mEARE Market capitalization
FARFITEE Stores as at year end
BEEE Direct-operated stores
maEEmE2) ] Franchised stores (Note 2)
2IRFIT AR Total stores worldwide
Mt - Notes:
1. FRBBZHEEBRUEEXANFEUFANBE 1. Inventories held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied by

2. A—EEBEERR - BERS &R RER(20165F &
IARTEFE) ~ B (2017 F RARTFE) LE=F N

BREEzmEMm

3. 2013FEZHFIAARMBEGITEIREER

A 1E L T

number of days in the year

2. Stores in markets operated by a joint venture in South Korea, Kuwait and
Qatar (prior to year 2015), Vietnam (prior to year 2017), and third-party

franchisees

3. The adoption impact of Hong Kong Accounting Standards 19 Employee

benefits are not reflected in the year 2013

4, 2018FENZHEEZHFIARAAEMNEBIHEMSE 4. The adoption impact of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 16
ARZ 165 HEMIEL AR Leases are not reflected in the years in and prior to 2018
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THEHBREZBERE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
3,799 3,380 3,122 4,852 5,509 5,412 5,145 5,381 5,545 5,848
2,146 1,930 1,736 2,846 3,250 3,221 3,055 3,097 3,214 3,551
56.5%  57.1%  55.6%  58.7%  59.0% = 59.5%  59.4%  57.6%  58.0% 60.7%

425 263 (105) 397 625 689 568 556 542 828
11.2% 7.8% -3.4% 8.2% 11.3% 12.7% 11.0% 10.3% 9.8% 14.2%
913 811 555 1,183 821 874 748 743 760 1,066
24.0%  24.0% 17.8%  24.4% 14.9% 16.1% 14.5% 13.8% 13.7% 18.2%
268 190 (112) 230 480 500 434 426 408 663

7.1% 5.6% -3.6% 4.7% 8.7% 9.2% 8.4% 7.9% 7.4% 11.3%
8.0% 5.2% -2.3% 6.2% 12.8% 13.5% 12.2% 11.5% 11.0% 16.1%
11.4% 7.8% -4.4% 8.5% 16.8% 17.5% 15.2% 14.5% 13.8% 21.8%

948 875 1,104 994 1,017 1,167 1,095 1,076 915 1,105
890 960 916 714 1,465 1,526 1,410 1,405 1,401 1,616

4,008 4,208 4,383 5,196 4,124 4,322 4,114 3,847 3,857 4,469

1,486 1,645 1,752 2,349 1,115 1,181 1,147 881 773 1,220
612 606 434 548 552 524 447 491 514 518
135 153 115 100 89 87 78 78 80 82
1.8 1.9 1.8 1.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.9 3.1 2.6

17.00 12.00 (7.1) 14.60 30.50 31.80 27.70 27.10 26.00 42.60
23.50 16.50 10.00 14.60 33.50 35.00 27.50 27.00 25.00 40.00

138.2% 1837.5% NEMNA 100.0% 109.8% 110.1% 99.3% 99.6% 96.2% 93.9%
1,579,817 1,578,937 1,577,631 1,578,501 1,578,501 1,570,631 1,570,953 1,570,395 1,569,913 1,566,837

2733 2353 1,798 3709 5840 6534 6582 5701 5400 10,858

1,083 1,134 1209 1274 1,323 1349 1364 1,385 1,451 1,499
I .. 9 96 101 1108 1,065 1033 986 1001 1143

1,874 2056 2,185 2375 2426 2414 2397 2,371 2452 2,642

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 & # & m B B R A 7



oA AR

CORPORATE INFORMATION

EEE

HTES

21
(EERITRAH)

BT

B3

FHTES

W%

%

BIKUTES

A

%8

Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

EEEEBLERRARE

BEX

EREES
SN (EE)
=/

Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

FMESES
&=B(E/E)
ZIE
RN

REEEE
BB (£/E)

RN
=8

Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

EEEES
IR (EE)
BRE= 42
BEX

Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI

REAR
e
EEX

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
W EBAER LSS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(Chairman and Chief Executive)

CHAN Ka Wai

Mark Alan LOYND

Non-Executive Directors

TSANG On Yip, Patrick
LEE Chi Hin, Jacob

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Barry John BUTTIFANT
WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
Mark Alan LOYND

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Barry John BUTTIFANT (Chairman)
WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) (Chairman)
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Barry John BUTTIFANT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman)
Barry John BUTTIFANT

WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman)
CHAN Ka Wai

Mark Alan LOYND

Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Mark Alan LOYND

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 § #



B % BAD
PR AL
A MR R B R AT
&R E G AT R P

£
&BE
T AR T

B2 D
SIEERE ST

AfBERE

Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,

Hamilton, Pembroke, HM11,
Bermuda

ERTEEEE
BB

B
ELEETTTETTON
K TEKESE

ROBFELHRE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th Floor North, Cedar House
41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM 12 Bermuda

EERODEBEFERTIE

SERBEYERAF
BEERE165
ERTEPOIT7E

EFRAREIT
BAERITERAR]

—Z ABRTHRA g
BITRTT(BR) AR QA
BB LBESRITAERAR

At

www.giordano.com

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #

~ A &R
CORPORATE INFORMATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers

LAWYERS

Hong Kong lawyer
Reed Smith Richards Butler

PRC lawyer
GaoXinDe Law Firm

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,

Hamilton, Pembroke, HM11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12 Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited

MUFG Bank Ltd.

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

www.giordano.com
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Your company’s 2022 net profits were HK$268 million. The
Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of 15 HK
cents per share for a total dividend of 23.5 HK cents per share.
| refer you to the annual report’s Management Discussion and
Analysis section for insights into the results.

While most markets had returned to normalcy and registered
satisfactory 2022 results, the Greater China markets suffered
severely from the Covid-19 related lockdowns for a better part of
the year. At the time of writing, all markets have lifted all lockdown
measures. | anticipate a prosperous 2023.

The company increased overseas franchised points of sales by
22 to 359 in 2022. The number will rise substantially in 2023.
We take a prudent approach to franchising and ensure our
franchisees operate professionally and profitably. We co-manage
their inventories using the company’s proprietary point-of-sales
system. The company regularly experiments with innovative
standard operating procedures at its operated stores and then
shares the successes with all franchisees.

The company has successfully upgraded its brand image. The
motto for our product development is “design is art, quality is
science.” Our innovative products of enhanced quality have
unprecedented pricing power. Focused local marketing and the
frontline’s product knowledge are pivotal to it.

During the Covid-19 pandemic, the company communicated
more rather than less. We took full advantage of electronic
platforms to reach out to more customers, current and potential
business partners, and staff of all levels. | am excited that | got to
know more about our colleagues. Their integrity, dedication, skills
and positive learning attitude are evident. The company applies a
“Five-E model” (engage, enable, entrust, empower, and enthrone)
to groom future leaders.

| thank all staff, business partners, shareholders, and directors for

supporting the company’s entrepreneurial leadership, managerial
philosophy and brand strategy.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 § #
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
GROUP RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
POSITION

Unless otherwise stated, the following commentaries refer to the
year-on-year (“YOY”) comparison for the years ended December
31, 2022, and 2021.

OVERVIEW

u The Group is an international apparel retailer with owned,
franchised, and licensed brands offering high-quality, value-
for-money, and easy-to-wear apparel and accessories
through a network of approximately 1,874 points of sales,
or 1,844,000 sq. ft. of retail floor space.

u For the year, Group sales increased by 12.4% to HK$3,799
million (2021: HK$3,380 million). The second-half
outperformed the first-half and grew by 13.1% (first-half:
11.7%).

u While Group gross margin was virtually unchanged at
56.5%, the retail gross margin increased slightly to 59.5%
(2021: 58.9%).

u Operating expenses were flat and constituted 47.2%
of total sales (2021: 52.7%), reflecting improved cost
leverage.

u Net profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders
surged to HK$268 million (2021: HK$190 million), an
increase of 41.1%. The Gulf Cooperation Council and
Southeast Asia markets were the main contributors to the
net profit.

u As a result of the sales recovery, inventory turnover on cost
declined by 18 days to 135 days. Inventories at year-end
were HK$612 million (2021: HK$606 million).

u The cash and bank balances, net of bank loans, rose to
HK$948 million on December 31, 2022 (2021: HK$875
million).

u The Company’s Board of Directors recommended a final
dividend of 15.0 HK cents per share (2021: 10.0 HK cents
per share) to reach a total dividend of 23.5 HK cents per
share for the year (2021: 16.5 HK cents per share). The final
dividend payable, if approved, will amount to approximately
HK$237 million.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

T RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
R AXEEREXESE Table 1: Group results of operations
LHER 1HIHERE
Bak BOk BE
(UEEETAEN)  (In HKS million) 2022 % to sales 2021 % to sales Change
R M Southeast Asia and Australia 1,444 38.0% 1,044 30.9% 38.3%
thE KR Mainland China 668 17.6% 766 22.7% (12.8%)
HEMARBZAE  Gulf Cooperation
ZE® Council 635 16.7% 525 15.5% 21.0%
=y Taiwan 466 12.3% 496 14.7% (6.0%)
BBBRPA Hong Kong and Macau 286 7.5% 355 10.5% (19.4%)
HEIMIERE 2% Wholesale to overseas franchisees 300 7.9% 194 5.7% 54.6%
AEBHER Group sales' 3,799  100.0% 3,380 100.0% 12.4%
el Gross profit 2,146 56.5% 1,930 57.1% 11.2%
A Rz - 8 Other income and gains, net 72 1.9% 118 3.5% (39.0%)
REER Operating expense (1,792 (47.2%) (1,782) (52.7%) 0.6%
BREEESRYE - Impairment loss on right-of-use
BERREZRE assets and property,
plant and equipment (3) (0.1%) (14) (0.4%) (78.6%)
FRESEADE . Reversal of impairment loss on
BEEHREL right-of use assets and
RERE property, plant and equipment 2 0.1% 11 0.3% (81.8%)
&R Operating profit 425 11.2% 263 7.8% 61.6%
[EE—REZAaEM  Share of profit of a joint venture 36 0.9% 41 1.2% (12.2%)
HEER Finance expense (25) (0.6%) (29) (0.9%) (13.8%)
FTiS Income taxes (107) (2.8%) (52) (1.5%) 105.8%
JEmlt SRR Profit after income tax attributable
FEHRR A to non-controlling interests (61) (1.6%) (33) (1.0%) 84.8%
REREEREHE  Profit after income tax attributable
el to shareholders 268 71% 190 5.6% 41.1%
2 miE iH & 5R2 Global brand sales? 4,697 4,250 10.5%
2IRMIEER? Global brand gross profit? 2,924 2,639 10.8%
FREERIRTES  Net cash and bank balances at
FE year-end 948 875 8.3%
FXFE Inventories at year-end 612 606 1.0%
FEYRATEHSES  Inventory turnover on cost, days® 135 153 (18)
ERFMMEE Stores at year-end 1,874 2,056 (182)
1 [REBIHERIIEAHFIHERE  BREESEELA 2 1 “Group sales” refer to consolidated sales and include retail sales from
TEFREEN,IEAHMBEE 2L - direct-operated stores and wholesale to overseas/non-consolidated

franchisees.

2 [E2XREHEE TN BERNRRESLE - m 2 “Global brand sales/gross profit” comprising all Giordano retail sales/gross

BENAERARZMATZMESEHEREF) profit from direct-operated stores, franchised stores, and stores operated
REFERAE - by a joint venture, are at constant exchange rates.

3 [FEURANTEESEFEREEZTFERUBE 3 “Inventory turnover on cost” is by dividing inventories held at year-end by
NATRIAZFEEBE - the cost of sales and multiplied by the number of days in the year.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REFUY AL E12.4%ZFE37.9918# 7T (2021 Group revenue grew by 12.4% to HK$3,799 million (2021:

F:33.80BBIT)  HI5T7T%EEEEBEE HK$3,380 million), or 15.7% on a constant dollar basis. The sales

Mo AR ER TS IHAIF %R - 1T rebound in the Southeast Asia (“SEA”) and the Gulf Cooperation

BEHBAMTESR  RESiAgEmi/gEx  Council (“GCC”) markets was substantial owing to innovative

EIFLZESHEREAIERE - marketing supported by adequate inventories, riding on the
reopening of the markets to visitors.

FTEEBRREEHFESIHMEEER - EEFI™M Al business channels reported positive sales growth. Offline sales
WA 4.5%  BIETISERE®IN12.7% - AR increased by 12.7% despite a 4.5% reduction in stores. After the
BAXRIBEZFAME ST HFERMNIEEZES closure of non-performing store, sales per square foot surged by
#16.9% ° 16.9%.

B AREMR EEBFEER - L%%TEP B A  Online sales in Mainland China continued to grow. Although the

BELASMDIR AR 2RI RN EM S IEEEFE  ex-Mainland China online sales growth has slowed down after
hE1% B PR @%ﬂifﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ&% o the easing of social distancing measures, the gross margins were
improving.

BB ERERIB15.5% - TERREFIEZHFL  Wholesales rebounded by 15.5%, primarily due to the sales
KIS EREL I - ST LTIBRER  recovery of our franchised markets. The expansion of the new

SANEEE - franchised markets was encouraging.
R2 REEBEEHZHESRE Table 2: Sales by channel
Bt Rt BE
(UBEETAZEN)  (In HKS million) 2022 Contribution 2021 Contribution Change
BT %R Offline sales 2,846 74.9% 2,526 74.7% 12.7%
B KPER 375 Mainland China online sales 333 8.8% 303 9.0% 9.9%
rh B K B DA Mt [ Ex-Mainland China
BREEH online sales 106 2.8% 106 8.1%  #¥Flat
;R Online sales 439 11.6% 409 12.1% 7.3%
TEHED Retail sales 3,285 86.5% 2,935 86.8% 11.9%
R 2 B2 Wholesale to franchisees 514 13.5% 445 13.2% 15.5%
AEEHER Group sales 3,799 100.0% 3,380 100.0% 12.4%

REBEMEAHAE  BTEEF XM The Group’s gross margin was virtually unchanged, but the retail
MR ZE59.5% (20214 : 58.9% ) - EF|IE K gross margin increased slightly to 59.5% (2021: 58.9%). The
11.2%J5 AR EENE - 11.2% increase in gross profit was driven by sales improvement.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 & # & m B B R A 7
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

®3: BENEBHDMN

Table 3: Gross profit variance analysis

2021 EXpgye 20226
N E@AEX EE Translational S
2021  Product Selling 58  exchange Hit 2022
(UEEZTAEN)  (In HKS million) gross profit costs prices Volume impact Miscellaneous gross profit
RAD RN Southeast Asia and Australia 599 (89) 280 108 (36) 6 863
FEMRIAER Gulf Cooperation
afEZEe Council 329 (10) 22 53 3 1 398
ey Mainland China 378 (52) 72 () (12) (1) 314
=) Taiwan 306 (15) 16 (10) (18) 5 284
B8 RRM Hong Kong and Macau 240 (7) 49 (80) - 2 204
mafa Market mix - (29) 78 (49) - - -
EERDH Retail and distribution 1,852 (202) 517 (54) (63) 13 2,063
BIMNEE,/ Wholesale to overseas
FEAR 8% franchisees/subsidiaries 78 83
X£EE Group 1,930 2,146

Htp WA R Wi - FH

Haplg ARz - BIEBRAED - Bl
A BERA - FEBRARBSKA - T
460088 ITE7,2008/87C - TEZHNBUT
AR BERBESL TV BURBR D - &
#2021 12 60088 T °

ReEBHARKE RN
KEBRYEHEEL R AB47.2% (2021 F
52.7%) * TR AERBUANRE - X5 E
PRSI Em F4.2518 80 (20214 « 2.63188
JC)  REFEEF61.6% °

FHEEEEYE  HMERKREZF
B

RIBEFB ST ERFEICHENET - AEBEF
FRAEEENDE  ERNERETIRT1008H8
ToZ/NEE R R E B S (20214 - 3008 7T) ©

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

Other income and gains, net

Other income and gains, which include government assistance,
royalties, licensing fees, interest income, and rental income,
declined by HK$46 million to HK$72 million due primarily to the
reduction in Covid-related government financial relief, which was
HK$26 million less than that of 2021.

Operating expense and operating profit

Operating expense to sales ratio was 47.2% (2021: 52.7%) due
to improved cost leveraging. The Group recorded an operating
profit of HK$425 million (2021: HK$263 million), a surge of 61.6%
YOY.

Net impairment of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment

The Group made a small net impairment provision of HK$1 million
(2021: HK$3 million) for the right-of-use assets, and property,
plant and equipment based on Hong Kong Accounting Standard
36.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 § #
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance expense

The finance expense of HK$25 million (2021: HK$29 million)
comprised almost entirely of imputed interest on lease liabilities
(2021: HK$27 million) and insignificant bank interest expense.

Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders

of the Company

Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders of the
Company (“PATS”) was HK$268 million (2021: HK$190 million),
at a net margin of 7.1% (2021: 5.6%). Table 4 below analyses the

changes in PATS, by region.

Table 4: Changes in PATS

(X B & TARENN) (In HK$ million)

B}, %52021 F KRR EL R F Reported 2021 PATS 190
R T RN Southeast Asia and Australia 175
BEMNERNREGIELZES Gulf Cooperation Council 34
BB RIRM Hong Kong and Macau 32
EGININER /M B A R 2 LB Wholesale to overseas franchisees/subsidiaries (1)
FER South Korea (1)
=y Taiwan (8)
H [ K e Mainland China (41)
FRSHE - FEIEH RS Income taxes, non-controlling interests,

BEEANKEIER finance expense and headquarter expenses (103)
RETEERIRE 22022F REELZF 2022 PATS, at constant exchange rates 277
SHmExE Currency translation difference (9)
2 E2022F RREAGEF] Reported 2022 PATS 268
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ANALYSIS BY MARKET

The following comments are in local currencies, or if in Hong
Kong dollars, are at constant exchange rates to remove
distortions from the translation of financial statements.

Greater China

Table 5: Greater China profit (loss) before income
taxes

EHERE HIHERE

(UK FEFETAEN - (In HK$ million, translated at ERalnd Both BE

HEFIERIGE constant exchange rates) 2022 % to sales 2021 % to sales Change
BIHERE Total sales 1,475 100.0% 1,616 100.0% (8.7%)
EF Gross profit 832 56.4% 924 57.2% (10.0%)
H A K Other income and

Wzs 558 gains, net 16 1.1% 22 1.4% (27.3%)
B Operating expense (852) (57.8%) (937) (58.0%) 9.1%
EREEERYE - Impairment loss on right-of-use

WELREZRME ~ assets and property,

plant and equipment (2) (0.1%) 5) (0.3%) 60.0%

A EERYE - Reversal of impairment loss on

W REEL right-of-use assets and

RE R property, plant and equipment - - 7 0.4%  (100.0%)
T (EE) Operating profit (loss) (6) (0.4%) 11 0.7% (154.5%)
HEEH Finance expense (4) (0.3%) 6) (0.4%) 33.3%
BRI A& A Profit (loss) before income

(E18) taxes (10) (0.7%) 5 0.3% (300.0%)
FRFEAMEE Stores at year-end 776 975 (199)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= R BEBAER
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=
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Hong Kong and Macau

Hong Kong and Macau turned from loss to profit for the whole
year. The turnaround was a result of the closure of the loss-
making stores, rental reductions, increased selling prices and
successful marketing.

Mainland China

The severe movement control measures in Mainland China
continued to weigh on our offline and wholesale businesses.
Although online sales grew by 9.9%, or 14.2% at a constant
exchange rate, it was insufficient to counter the decline in overall
sales.

Taiwan

Taiwan’s performance improved in 2H, with comparable-store
sales increasing by 6.7%. The profit decline was due to the
substantial reduction in Covid-related government relief in the
sum of HK$8 million.

Table 6: Greater China sales and store count

EREEEHE
EXMEEHE  Direct-operated ERMTEE
HES Franchised stores stores Stores
Sales at year-end at year-end at year-end
(L BERTREN (In HK$ million, translated at #E
FEFEXHE constant exchange rates) 2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
hEIARE Mainland China 694 766 (9.4%) 394 550 158 189 552 739
=y Taiwan 495 495 #¥Flat - - 182 185 182 185
B AR Hong Kong and Macau 286 355 (19.4%) - - 42 51 42 51
fay Total 1,475 1616  (8.7%) 394 550 382 425 776 975
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ERC RSN Southeast Asia and Australia

7T HEULRBEMZBAERHAIEF Table 7: Southeast Asia and Australia profit before
income taxes

HEER HIHER
(U GEETAREN - (In HKS million, translated at Bl ANk 25
EFEFRRE constant exchange rates) 2022 % to sales 2021 % to sales Change
BHER Total sales 1,504 100.0% 1,044 100.0% 44.1%
EF Gross profit 899 59.8% 599 57.4% 50.1%
HA R Other income and
Wzt HEE gains, net 11 0.7% 38 3.6% (71.1%)
LB Operating expense (603) (40.1%) (498) (47.7%) (21.1%)
FREEESYE - Impairment loss on right-of-use
HEREE assets and property,
A plant and equipment - - (9) (0.9%) 100.0%
ERAEEERYE - Reversal of impairment loss on
B REE fight-of-use assets and
A ERE property, plant and equipment 1 0.1% 3 0.3% (66.7%)
=l Operating profit 308 20.5% 133 12.7% 131.6%
HEER Finance expense (17) (1.1%) (17) (1.6%) # Flat
B PS50 Al A Profit before income tax 291 19.3% 116 11.1% 150.9%
FRAMEE Stores at year-end 567 570 (3)
HHOmIRRIRER  c BRAIIE IS L s Southeast Asia markets experienced a rapid recovery. Their
BEAIHGEESE  H@esfoBEEHAs  aggregate profits exceeded pre-Covid levels, boosted by
AR =S R HI R HY /K - successful marketing campaigns and adequate inventory

support.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Table 8: Southeast Asia and Australia sales and store

count

HERE FARMTEE

Sales Stores at year-end
(U BEFTAEN  (In HK$ million, translated at B E

HEEIEFHE) constant exchange rates) 2022 2021 Change 2022 2021

Efe Indonesia 719 516 39.3% 233 231
RE Thailand 254 181 40.3% 156 156
N3 Singapore 211 175 20.6% 29 36
EXRAEE Malaysia 200 101 98.0% 86 87
jitEa) Vietnam 91 48 89.6% 54 51
B Australia 21 15 40.0% 6 7
RIHEE Cambodia 8 8  #¥ Flat 3 2
wme Total 1,504 1,044 44.1% 567 570

BEMNHEREHEEZEES

RO BEMNNABREFEEZESZKRA
BB AR R

The Gulf Cooperation Council

Table 9: The Gulf Cooperation Council profit before

income taxes

IHEHE HIHERE

(UK FEETAEN - (In HK$ million, translated at Bk =R d BE

HEFIERBE constant exchange rates) 2022 % to sales 2021 % to sales Change
BIHER Total sales 631 100.0% 525 100.0% 20.2%
E Gross profit 395 62.6% 329 62.7% 20.1%
HiA K& Other income and

Wzt FEE gains, net - - 7 1.3% (100.0%)
B Operating expense (284) (45.0%) (260) (49.5%) (9.2%)
FREEERYE - Reversal of impairment loss on

BB REE right-of-use assets and

A ERE property, plant and equipment - - 1 0.2%  (100.0%)
# R H Operating profit 111 17.6% 77 14.7% 44.2%
MEEM Finance expense 4) (0.6%) (4) (0.8%) #F Flat
B ET SR RS Profit before income tax 107 17.0% 73 13.9% 46.6%
MEE Franchised stores 38 35
BE Direct-operated stores 134 139
FARFMEE Stores at year-end 172 174 2

BEMAUBEEREFERZEEN2022FWEE
BIFENRE  KEENTABRE - BRIX
IR P E o
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The sales rebound in the GCC continued in 2022 with significant
operating profit improvements. The enhancement of brand image
drove the growth.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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South Korea (a 48.5% joint venture under an
independent management team)

Table 10: South Korea’s share of net profit

LEHERE HIHERE

Bokl Aokt #E
(X BB EAEN) (In Korean Won million) 2022 % to sales 2021 % to sales Change
4asHE R Total sales 190,438 100.0% 182,040 100.0% 4.6%
EF Gross profit 102,039 53.6% 98,839 54.3% 3.2%
SE 5 F Net profit 12,292 6.5% 12,534 6.9% (1.9%)
JE(h % A Share of net profit 5,962 6,079 (1.9%)
FARFATHA Stores at year-end 143 150 (7)

& E MR SR A AR S M B iR B At
EEBEMR ) - B H AN ER BT MR
ERBMIHEREEIEM - ERR EHERG
HEIHERRAB4% °

HEIMBEH 2 HBER
®11:BIMBEBZFTHE

South Korea’s performance was robust even under the severe
Covid-related social distancing. Offline and online channels
reported mild sales growth, of which the online portion
constituted 34% of total sales.

Wholesale to overseas franchisees
Table 11: Overseas franchised stores

2022 2021
REos Southeast Asia 175 167
A E South Korea 143 150
H Mm% Other markets 41 20
P 4% Total stores 359 337

8 5NN BE 7 2 HE B 375 Y 55 & RE K8 38 0
54.6% @ #3.0018%8 T (20214 : 1.948 %
L) c BEEREMBHTLEMBEXAERNE
ZHR - BRUELASN - NREBRREREFHET
5 (ASEM RER T BT 5 A ) — S8R IN A 718
ﬁ °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

Wholesale to overseas franchisees soared by 54.6% to HK$300
million (2021: HK$194 million). The well-developed franchised
markets became the main drivers for the growth, aided by the
business expansion in the newly-developed markets, mainly in
the African continent.
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FINANCIAL POSITION
Liquidity and financial resources

On December 31, 2022, the cash and bank balance, net of bank
loans, was HK$948 million (2021: HK$875 million).

The bank borrowings amounted to HK$12 million (2021:
HK$168 million). The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the total
bank borrowings over total equity, was 0.5% (2021: 6.6%).
On December 31, 2022, the Group’s current ratio was 1.8
(2021: 1.9) based on current assets of HK$1,977 million (2021:
HK$2,082 million) and current liabilities of HK$1,087 million
(2021: HK$1,122 million).

Property, plant, and equipment

Capital expenditure was HK$66 million (2021: HK$42 million),
mainly for store upgrades. Management will continue to devote
resources to our shop ambience to strengthen our brand image.

Goodwill and put option liabilities

The goodwill and put option liability arose from the acquisition
of our GCC operations in 2012 and 2015. We have conducted
annual impairment tests and concluded that no impairment on
goodwill was necessary for the 2022 financial year.

Interest in the South Korea joint venture

The carrying value of the 48.5% interest in the South Korea joint
venture, accounted for by the equity method, decreased by 4.5%
to HK$490 million to reflect our share of the net profit, dividend
received, and translation from Korean Won to Hong Kong dollar.
The decrease was mainly due to the depreciation of the Korean
Won.

Inventories

Group inventories were HK$612 million (2021: HK$606 million).
Inventory turnover on cost decreased by 18 days to 135 days
(2021:153 days), attributable to an increase in sales turnover.

The global supply chain disruption is easing, and the need for
buffer stock is decreasing. Management expects the inventory
balance to further decline.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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To ensure there is no excessive “off-balance sheet” inventory
that could pose a problem in the future, the Group tracks the
inventories at suppliers and franchisees. Our system inventories
remained healthy, as shown in Table 12.

Table 12: System inventories

M12H31H
At December 31
(XB&EEBTRENN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
rEBHEZRFE Inventories owned by the Group 612 606
HH48.5%EREHY Inventories held by 48.5%
MBALENIFAEZTFE South Korea joint venture 202 214
FEAENEEEE 2 RS Inventories held by franchisees in
Mainland China 53 53
HER 2 ®KEm Finished goods at suppliers 26 11
REEHEE2REE Inventories not owned by the Group 281 278
AEGEERAE Total system inventories 893 884
FE Wi F0 FE 1< BE =X Trade receivables and payables

FEUBE FUmEE H 81 A47 K (20214 : 58K) -
THERKBTEE=ZFATIRENEERE -
FEMBRFRE A BB FHF 43K (20214 ¢
41K) o

g\

R2018%F 11 A8H @ ANARIERMAT BBUER ([ B
EHEK]) BREBRKEERBFBERNRKRE R
R EEmERREBIEFRSES - RIFREIK
R ARA—ERBERIESEHBRARNEN LB
BE  ZERRESFAKEEFERSE « KK
REFEUREBEESCEAERMBHATE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

The turnover days for trade receivables were 47 days (2021: 58
days), resulting from the tightening of our credit policy to third
parties. The turnover days for trade payables were steady at 43
days (2021: 41 days).

Dividends

The Company adopted a dividend policy on November 8, 2018
(the “Dividend Policy”). The Dividend Policy aims to return surplus
cash to its shareholders through the payment of dividends and
share repurchases. In line with the Dividend Policy, the Company
has been paying a substantial portion of its earnings as an
ordinary dividend, the amount of which may vary depending
on cash on hand, future investment requirements and working
capital considerations.
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Having considered the economic outlook, the Group’s financial
position, its future expansion plans and other factors, the Board
has thus recommended a final dividend of 15.0 HK cents per
share (2021: 10.0 HK cents per share) for the year ended
December 31, 2022. Together with the interim dividend of
HK8.5 cents per share (2021: 6.5 HK cents per share) paid on
September 30, 2022, the total 2022 dividend would amount
to 23.5 HK cents per share (2021: 16.5 HK cents per share).
Subject to the approval of our shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be
payable on Friday, June 16, 2023, to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Thursday,
June 1, 2023.

OUTLOOK

In 2022, the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic wreaked havoc
on Greater China’s economy. Restrictive movement control
measures in Mainland China and Hong Kong substantially
affected their economic activities. The Group decisively diverted
resources to our SEA and GCC markets, which helped lift the
Group’s net profit to HK$268 million for the year (2021: HK$190
million).

The business environment in 2023 will be less volatile as most
regions have ceased social distancing measures. Cross-border
travels are gradually resuming. However, various geopolitical
tensions are worrying to global economic recovery. The Group’s
successful geographical diversification is helpful to mitigate the
potential resultant business risks.

In 2022, the Group was able to increase the average selling
prices of all brands. The trend will continue in 2023. To support
it, Management will increase investments in product development
and marketing.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Management will be cautious in expansion through direct-
operated stores, especially in markets with high operating
costs, such as Hong Kong. Alternatively, the Group will further
build its footprint in developing economies through franchising
and licensing. We have made encouraging progress in India,
Mauritius, Kenya, Ghana and Egypt.

On e-commerce, the Group will strengthen its proprietary
channels and will also partner with well-established third-party
platforms to expedite our online business. For Mainland China
and South Korea, the online sales contribution has reached nearly
40% of total sales and will now focus on margin improvement.

OTHER INFORMATION
Human Resources

As of December 31, 2022, the Group had approximately 6,200
employees (December 31, 2021: 5,900). The Group offers
competitive remuneration packages and generous, goal-
oriented incentives targeted to different levels of staff. We
provide senior managers with performance-based/discretionary
bonus schemes and share options to reward and retain a high-
calibre leadership team. We also invest heavily in training in sales
and customer service, management, planning, and leadership
development to maintain a skilled and motivated workforce. The
Group facilitates the younger executives to take up management
roles. On December 31, 2022, the average age of the Group’s
management team was 48 (2021: 47).
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Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive),
aged 70, is the Group’s Chairman and Chief Executive. He is
also chairman of the Management Committee and Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. He joined the Group in 1987, became the Chief
Executive on February 8, 1994, and was elected Chairman of the
Board of the Company on August 10 in the same year. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. LAU is also an independent non-executive director of
Fairwood Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 52), which is listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Dr. LAU was previously an adjunct professor of the
College of Business at City University of Hong Kong (“CityU”), an
external member of the School of Business Advisory Committee
of Hong Kong Baptist University (“HKBU”), the chairman of the
Advisory Committee on Management and marketing at the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University (“PolyU”).

Dr. LAU holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration
from PolyU, a MBA degree from the University of Calgary in
Canada and a Master of Buddhist Studies from The University of
Hong Kong.

Dr. LAU had over 12 years of management and accounting
experience in both the private and public sectors in Canada
before joining the Group.

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai (Executive Director), aged 46, joined the
Group in January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Chief Operating Officer of the Company on June
20, 2014 and April 1, 2015, respectively. He is a member of the
Management Committee of the Company and also a director of
various subsidiaries and a joint venture of the Group. Dr. CHAN is
responsible for the Group’s operations to meet budget and other
financial goals, as well as establishing goals, allocating resources
and assessing policies to drive the Group’s performance. Dr.
CHAN has over 21 years of experience in the apparel retailing and
marketing business.

Dr. CHAN is a fellow member of Certified Practicing Accountant
Australia and a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in
London. He holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration
and Bachelor of Science in Textile from PolyU and a Master
of Arts in Global Business Management and a Master of Laws
in Arbitration and Dispute Resolution from CityU, a Master of
Accountancy and a Master of Science (MSc) in Data Analytics
and Business Economics from HKBU.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Mr. Mark Alan LOYND (Executive Director), aged 44, has
been with the Group since September 2013 and was appointed
as an Executive Director on March 9, 2017. Mr. LOYND is
currently the General Counsel, Company Secretary and Group
Human Resources Director of the Company. He oversees legal,
regulatory, compliance, corporate governance, human resources
and talent development affairs of the Group. Mr. LOYND is also
chairman of the Risk Management Committee and a member of
the Management Committee of the Company as well as director
and company secretary of various subsidiaries and a joint venture
of the Group. Currently, Mr. LOYND is also responsible for the
development of new overseas markets as well as brand and
product development.

Mr. LOYND was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2007 and is a
Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London, the
United Kingdom. He is a professional member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Human Resources Management, where he also sits
on the Employment-Related Hong Kong Legislation and Issues
Committee, and a member of the Chartered Professionals in
Human Resources of British Columbia and Yukon.

He holds a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) from Aberystwyth
University in the United Kingdom as well as a Master of Arts in
Arbitration and Alternative Dispute Resolution (with distinction)
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both from CityU. He
possesses over 21 years of experience in handling regulatory
and compliance matters for listed companies, mergers and
acquisitions, joint ventures and other commercial law affairs, as
well as labour and maritime law issues.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 § #



EEREREBAEBFN

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

BREXE(HTEF) 5155 * 1R20224F
12A1BEZETRIEPITEE - FIRALEY
WY TRELAKREZERERE AR BAREE
¥EARAB(AABLEEDITHRERRES
EARABIEERREBARE(EZER)ERAGIZE
£ o BEARBIBREATISHA B25F K5
HER2003F 2201 2F TR EEEREFTEED
7 EIESHALE  FEOMBETEREEAR
MIHFER °

BAEERETUNRE BB IMER ETAA
B AAEGEHEBAMNABR AR (MDA
1097)BIEERIITES BHABKEEAR
NEI (R REE : 722) R BRI EAR A A (A%
HBRIE - 158)MITEE - UXBPIBEERE
RAR (RS : 880)FFMITES - BhAE
©N2015F6 A E2022F5 A EFE4ELEEA
BRI (MRS - 94) k20124911 A £2022
FEAEEGRAEERREEER AR (KRHRE -
923)IEMITES

BRERARBERL G EARAFAINMA
REF FAAREZESARAFRNEE  FE
BIMASEZSGEREBERIITHEESR
REgXE8 -

BB FERAOT R T AST e

P BT B o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #

Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick (Non-Executive Director), aged
51, was appointed as a Non-executive Director on December 1,
2022. He is the chief executive officer and a director of Chow
Tai Fook Enterprises Limited (“CTFE”), the flagship private
investment holding company of Dato’ Dr Cheng Yu Tung’s family
and a director of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. TSANG has over 25 years of
international capital markets experience, and was previously
managing director, head of Asia Fixed Income Capital Markets at
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch, where he worked from
2003 to 2012.

Mr. TSANG currently holds directorships in four companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; namely, vice-chairman
and executive director of i-Cable Communications Limited (stock
code: 1097), executive director of UMP Healthcare Holdings
Limited (stock code: 722) and Melbourne Enterprises Limited
(stock code: 158), and non-executive director of SUM Holdings
Limited (stock code: 880). Mr. TSANG was a non-executive
director of Greenheart Group Limited (stock code: 94) from June
2015 to May 2022 and a non-executive director of Integrated
Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 923) from
November 2012 to August 2022.

Mr. TSANG is the founder and a director of CTFE Social Solutions
Limited, a governor of Chow Tai Fook Charity Foundation
Limited, a member of the General Committee of the Employers’
Federation of Hong Kong and a member of the Election
Committee of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Mr. TSANG obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics
from Columbia College of Columbia University in New York, USA.
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Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob (Non-Executive Director), aged 40, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director on December 1, 2022. He
is currently a senior vice president of CTFE with responsibilities
for making strategic and private equity investments globally.
Mr. LEE joined CTFE in March 2013 and has over 15 years
of professional experience in corporate finance, investment,
international capital markets and asset management.

He previously worked at the investment banking department of
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and
Deutsche Bank AG in Hong Kong. Mr. LEE holds a Master of
Science Degree in Accounting and Finance from The London
School of Economics and Political Science in London, United
Kingdom and a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
the University of Michigan in Ann Arbor, United States of America.
He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst Charterholder. Mr. LEE is
currently a non-executive director of Integrated Waste Solutions
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 923) and New Times Energy
Corporation Limited (stock code: 166), both the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. LEE is also active in public services, currently serving as a
member of the Hospital Governing Committee of Tin Shui Wai
Hospital and a member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel
under the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council.

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (/Independent Non-executive
Director), aged 78, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on March 3, 1995. He is also chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of both the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Dr. BUTTIFANT was re-appointed as a managing director of KLC
Transactions Limited in January 2017, and was also appointed as
a managing director of Baker Tilly KLC Recovery Limited (formerly
named as KLC Corporate Advisroy and Recovery Limited) from
the same date.

Dr. BUTTIFANT is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered Management
Institute, the Hong Kong Management Association and the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. He has been awarded an Honorary
Doctorate of Business Administration (Honoris Causa) by
Edinburgh Napier University, United Kingdom in February 2013.
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Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) (Independent Non-
executive Director), aged 52, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on November 11, 2015. He is also
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
both the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Professor HUANG received his PhD from the
University of Groningen (The Netherlands), Master of Arts from
Lancaster University (England), and Honours Diploma from
Lingnan University (Hong Kong). He is the Chair Professor
and the former Head of Department of Management of HKBU.
Currently, he also serves as the Dean of the School of Business
(Research & Postgraduate Studies), the Programme Director
of Master of Business Administration and Master of Science in
Business Management and the Director of Centre for Human
Resources Strategy and Development of HKBU.

Since 2010, he has served as an Adjunct Professor in the
Centre for Work, Organization and Wellbeing, Griffith University.
He has also been appointed as a Visiting Chair Professor in
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics since 2012. He
is Deputy Editor of the Management and Organization Review,
and a member of editorial board for Academy of Management
Journal and Human Relations. Professor HUANG’s research
interests include leadership, power, proactive and abnormal work
behaviors, employees’ well-being; cross-cultural psychology
and management issues in China. He has published more
than 60 papers in international journals including Academy of
Management Journal, Journal of Applied Psychology, Journal
of International Business Studies, Journal of Management,
Leadership Quarterly, Journal of Organizational Behavior, Human
Relations and so forth.
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Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD (/ndependent Non-executive
Director), aged 47, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on March 7, 2019. She is also a member of
both the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

She is the associate vice-president (Institutional Research and
Strategic Planning) of HKBU since May 13, 2020. As Associate
Vice-President (Institutional Research and Strategic Planning), Dr.
LLOYD plays an instrumental role in supporting the advancement
of HKBU, particularly in the implementation of the Institutional
Strategic Plan (2018-2028). She leads efforts to spearhead the
use of analytics and business intelligence to foster a culture
of data-informed decision-making, and support a number of
planning-related initiatives.

She was a director of International Affairs of PolyU, Dr.
LLOYD oversaw the strategic development and coordination
of international partnerships, international recruitment,
mobility opportunities, and institutional relations. As Director
of Institutional Research and Planning of PolyU, she steered
strategic planning, performance monitoring, university rankings,
business intelligence, and analytics.

Prior to joining academia, she worked in management
consultancy in Hong Kong. Her previously consulting
engagements cover strategy, business process review and
improvement, performance management frameworks and
change management for both private and public sector
organizations in Hong Kong and Asia. Currently, Dr. LLOYD
serves on a number of advisory boards and steering committees
pertaining to international higher education.
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

‘World Without Strangers’ has been Giordano’s credo since its
inception, and aside from being the brand’s slogan, it is also
a spirit that transcends the Group’s operations. Not only do
we strive to provide relevant, essential and timeless fashion for
all, and develop apparel for everyone regardless of ethnicity,
nationality or culture, we also pride ourselves on the diversity of
our people and our active support of charitable organizations
and causes, from disaster relief to long-term support, both in the
communities that we operate in and those that we have yet to.
In this connection, Giordano has continued to focus on ‘doing
well by doing good’ in order to make a positive impact in the
communities where we do business, paying particular attention to
stakeholder relations, community involvement and support.

Our vision is to be the biggest world brand in Apparel Retailing
and our mission is to make people feel good and look great. We
achieve this through the Group’s corporate values which are
Quality, Knowledge, Innovation, Simplicity and Service (Q.KISS);
that is, we focus on doing things right, updating expertise and
sharing knowledge, thinking out of the box, taking a “/ess is
more” approach and exceeding our customers’ expectations.
These concepts provide the backbone of our philosophy and
shape our strategies.

Furthermore, we deliver responsible products and exceptional
service to our customers in a fair and transparent manner.
We also invest in our employees’ development and foster an
inclusive and supportive working environment, and we implement
a framework to develop strong governance and effective risk
management systems and robust controls.

Giordano has a fluid and continuous strategic planning process
to identify and assess the opportunities and challenges that the
Group might face and to develop a course of action for the Group
to generate sustainable long-term value for the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”). Led by the Chairman and
Chief Executive, Dr. Peter Lau, the Management Committee and
senior management across all regions work closely to ensure
rapid and flowing information exchange to identify opportunities
and challenges.
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The Group will continuously review and adjust, if necessary,
its business strategies and keep track of the changing market
conditions to ensure that prompt and proactive measures will be
taken to respond to the changes and meet market needs to foster
the sustainability of the Group.

More information about Giordano’s purpose, vision, values and
corporate culture is set out in this report, the Business Review
section of this annual report, as well as the ESG Report annexed
to this annual report.

Corporate Governance

The Board is dedicated to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance within a sensible and practical framework.
The Board firmly believes that the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence are essential towards upholding
the interests of all stakeholders and maximizing shareholder
value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance.
It is responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance as well as
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Board
has adopted the principles of good corporate governance (the
“Principles”) and the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
as stated in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) as the Corporate Governance Code of the
Company. The Company remains resolute in its application of
the Principles to the corporate governance of the Group. The
Company regularly reviews its corporate governance policies
to ensure that they remain updated and in compliance with the
requirements with the Listing Rules. In particular, the Company
adopted new Terms of Reference for the Remuneration
Committee on January 1, 2023, and reviewed the Board Diversity
Policy on November 3, 2022, has adopted a director nomination
policy with updates on November 3, 2022 and revised the
shareholders’ communication policy on March 9, 2023.

During the year, the Company fully complied with the Code
Provisions in the CG Code save for the deviations from Code
Provisions B.2.2 and C.2.1, which are explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.
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BOARD
Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the corporate governance standards
of the Company. It also decides on matters relating to annual
and interim results, notifiable transactions, appointments or re-
appointments of Directors, dividends and accounting policies.
The Directors, individually and collectively, are committed to
act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company and
its Shareholders. The Board also delegates certain powers and
functions to various board committees as detailed in the section
titled “Board Committees” of this report and the ESG report
annexed to the annual report. Save for the power reserved by
the Board or delegated to Board committees, the strategies and
plans as decided by the Board are implemented by Management.
Management assumes full accountability to the Board for the
day-to-day operation of the Group.

The Board has established a mechanism to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. The current
composition of the Board has a strong independence element
and provides sufficient balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives in leading the Company to achieve its goal. The
independent non-executive Directors also provide independent
judgment in the Board’s overall decision-making process. The
Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
board independence mechanism for the year ended December
31, 2022 and considered it to be effective.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out below or it may delegate the
responsibility to a committee or committees:

Developing, reviewing and updating the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations on changes and updates;

Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report;

Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s process of
disclosure, including assessing and verifying the accuracy
and materiality of inside information and determining the
form and content of any required disclosure; and

Determining the nature and extent of significant risks
(including the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) risks) that the Group are willing to take in achieving
the strategic objectives and formulate the Group’s risk
management strategies.
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Composition

At as December 31, 2022 and up to the date of this report, the
Board comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
two Non-executive Directors and three Executive Directors.

The Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience
and provide effective guidance and an outside perspective on
major decisions of the Group. To assist in the discharge of their
duties, the Directors have free and direct access to both the
Company'’s internal and external auditors and procedures are in
place to allow the Directors to obtain independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the expertise,
skills and experience that each Director brings individually, the
Group believes that the Board is appropriately structured to
provide sufficient checks and balances to protect the interests
of the Company and its Shareholders. The Board will regularly
review its composition to maintain a proper balance and
diversity of expertise, skills and experience to ensure continued
effective leadership and oversight of the Company’s businesses.
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 21 to 26
of this annual report.

The Board places emphasis on diversity (including gender
diversity) across all levels of the Group. Details on the gender
ratio of the Group together with relevant data can be found in the
section titled “Gender Diversity of Workforce” of this report and
the ESG Report on pages ESG.1 to ESG.68 of this annual report.
The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy on
an annual basis and the policy was last reviewed on November 3,
2022.

In accordance with the Principles, the Board has established
three Board Committees: the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. In addition, a
Management Committee and a Risk Management Committee are
also in place to support the Board and the Board Committees.
During the year of 2022 and up to the date of this report, the
composition of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are set out below.
The composition of the Management Committee and Risk
Management Committee are disclosed in the relevant sections of
this report.
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M Member of the relevant Board Committees

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships with each other required to be
disclosed under the CG Code. Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick, a
non-executive Director, serves as the chief executive officer and
a director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited (“CTFE”), the
flagship private investment holding company of Dato’ Dr Cheng
Yu Tung’s family and a director of Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited, a substantial Shareholder; and Mr LEE Chi Hin, Jacob,
a non-executive Director, serves as a senior vice president of
CTFE.

It is the Board’s opinion that these relationships do not affect the
Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their
roles and responsibilities. The relevant Directors will be asked to
abstain from voting on matters as appropriate if and when any
conflicts of interests arise.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee considers a range of perspectives (including, but not
limited to diversity in accordance with the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy) when assessing potential candidates for the
Board.

According to the Company’s Bye-Laws adopted on May
24, 2019 (the “Bye-Laws”), any new Director (other than the
Chairman or the Managing Director) appointed by the Board is
subject to retirement and re-election by Shareholders at the next
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or at the next annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) (in the case of an addition to their number) following
their appointment. At each AGM, one-third (or the number
nearest to, but not less than one-third) of the Directors (other
than the Chairman or the Managing Director) will retire from
office by rotation, and every Director (other than the Chairman or
the Managing Director), including those appointed for a specific
term, is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

The Bye-Laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

Code Provision B.2.2 provides that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Non-executive Directors have been appointed for an initial term
of three years and will continue in office thereafter subject to
termination by not less than one month’s prior notice in writing
by either the Non-executive Director or the Company. In addition,
all Non-executive Directors are required to retire from office by
rotation and are subject to re-election by Shareholders at the
AGM at least once every three years pursuant to the Bye-Laws
and Code Provision B.2.2.

In the opinion of the Board, stability and continuation are key
factors to the successful implementation of business plans of the
Group. The Board believes that it is beneficial to the Group that
there is continuity in the role of the Chairman and, therefore, the
Board is of the view that the Chairman should be exempt from
this arrangement at the present time.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the composition of the Board at all
times complied with rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Although one of our Independent Non-executive Directors;
namely, Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, has served as our Board
members since March 3, 1995 (i.e. for more than nine years)
and that may be relevant to the determination of independence,
it is well-recognized that an individual’s independence cannot
be determined solely on the basis of their length of service. In
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors, the Board and the Nomination Committee take into
account the character and judgement demonstrated by the
Directors’ commitment and contribution to the Board during their
years of service and other relevant factors.

We believe that, despite his length of service, Dr. BUTTIFANT has
continued to provide invaluable expertise, experience, continuity
and stability to the Board. His term of service to the Company
has not affected his exercise of independent judgement, and the
Company has benefited from his contribution and the valuable
insights derived from his in-depth knowledge of the Company
and from his work and experience outside of the Company.
Dr. BUTTIFANT has expressed objective views and given
independent guidance to the Company over the past years.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from all Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance
with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that
all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Code Provision B.2.3 provides that if an independent non-
executive director serves more than nine years, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the Shareholders.

To comply with Code Provision B.2.3, Dr. BUTTIFANT retired

voluntarily and was re-elected as Director at the AGM held on
May 20, 2022.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 § #



ExEel

EXeBFARNARENER  T8EAFRE
HRAHEZE% EFENEHEHRRTAY
SEEE  WELRBEFTSHERLTHH
J%_ o

ARRBARAWE (T RRIWE ) W FHFTE
SeRRE  MEBUBFHEBIRD EAH
EZEZTHmABENEE EFSTHEN
BEARGZRTAEDURAMEARIEHE
F-ERHEMEFELZEeERINAER
IR B E - o 2REZAEBARWE
8 BRARWE (RN REEEREE)R
HERMRY - AERESSHREFMERD
ER - RAUFRPISIAEST - EFZS a3
EXHEAPNEEGAZEEERETA
PRER(FEREBEBANME AL EH
ER)ETEREZNEMIE AL - AR
BREALRBHES—VEHREZ2EH - EF
ENZESERNBRCHERBED BLEME
EXNZEgREUHILE - KRR SHRLEAR
RAWERFUHMEESTERH -

BEATMA - AAEEREES HRETAE

CERTREERE RN AR EES
S8 - SRBATMA EREBHESE
¥ NTHESENANESEE Y EEAE
EMREEERHE - HEMNEMARRZA
B - AARTTEAE SR T W0 AR RS
LK

B E2022F12A31HIEFERN - /17T AKX
B RURTAREEZTE EBSMERA
R AEREZ RREREE  BURMTEE R HAM
EX(RIEEEE2EmWEARRFRMD) o LI
EEYBBTHAEEERZESR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #

EXRERBREE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board meetings

The Board holds four regular meetings a year while additional
meetings are held as and when required. Regular Board meetings
are scheduled in advance to facilitate the fullest possible
attendance.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) assists the Chairman in setting the agenda of the
Board meetings and each Director is invited to present any
business that they wish to discuss or propose at such meetings.
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to the Directors at
least 14 days before meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. Furthermore, all
Directors have access to the Company Secretary, who is also
the Group’s General Counsel, for advice and services to ensure
that board procedures and applicable laws, rules and regulations
are adhered to. Agenda and accompanying Board papers are
circulated to all Directors and other attendees not less than
three days (or where meetings are called at short notice, as
soon as practicable) before the Board or committee meetings
to ensure timely access to relevant information. Draft minutes of
the Board and committee meetings are circulated to all Directors
or committee members for approvals and finalized minutes are
kept by the Company Secretary and open for inspection by all
Directors.

Any Director who is unable to physically attend any Board
meeting may participate electronically by conference call or
via alternate arrangements in accordance with the Bye-Laws.
Moreover, pursuant to the Bye-Laws, Board approval may
also be obtained by way of circulation of a resolution in writing
on urgent matters when convening a Board meeting is not
practicable. Sufficient information and explanatory materials will
be provided to the Directors at the same time when a resolution
in writing is circulated.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, five Board meetings
were held to review the quarterly operational updates of the
Group, and to discuss the Group’s strategies, policies and
budgets going forward, as well as other business, including a
voluntary general offer for shares of the Company. In addition, five
sets of resolutions in writing were passed.
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Directors’ attendance and time commitment

Attendances of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and the AGM during the year ended December 31, 2022 are as
follows:

e EFhZEE R2ZEE  FMZES BE
g8 ] ] ] BRRAE
Audit  Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
HTES Executive Directors
fIEERL Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(LE#HITHER) (Chairman and Chief Executive) 5/5 AEANA 3/3 1/2 1/1
RERET Dr. CHAN Ka Wai 5/5 TERN/A AERN/A RERN/A 1/1
EELE Mr. Mark Alan LOYND 5/5 TEAN/A TEAN/A TNERN/A 11
FHTES Non-executive Directors
ER B Los o Dr. CHENG Chi Kong sas, Jp
(R2022%12/ 188 1) (resigned on December 1, 2022) 5/5 REANA TEANA TEANA 11
Rt & %4 Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong
(Ro022%1251H8HF)  (resigned on December 1, 2022) 5/5 TEANA TEANA TERN/A 11
DREEE Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick
(R2020%F1281HZ(F)  (appointed on December 1, 2022) 0/0 TEEAN/A TEANA TEAN/A TERN/A
FEHEE Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob
(Ro022E12518Z(F)  (appointed on December 1, 2022) 0/0 TEAN/A TEANA TEANA TERNA
BIkHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
RAEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 4/5 2/2 3/3 2/2 11
BPEF L Eass o Mr. KWONG Ki Chi css, Jp
(R2022F5H20HEE)  (retired on May 20, 2022) 2/2 1/1 RERN/A TERN/A 1/1
a=EHR Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) 5/5 2/2 3/3 2/2 11
Alison Elizabeth LLOYDE £ Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD 5/5 2/2 3/3 TEAN/A 11

AT REEH R AR WER - BUIFRTE
ERMBERERTESHE N EEN® °

EEE

ARABBABEESE2EKFBERERANER
WEHWEZ FBNIREE - RARIAEBEIE
INEFREZANRETERXMT - BEZF
EERNATEERBAELTARESTNRE
REAE -
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In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, the
Independent Non-executive Directors may also meet without the
presence of the Executive Directors from time-to-time.

Training for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company provides a comprehensive induction
package to each newly appointed Director to ensure that they
are sufficiently aware of their responsibilities and obligations as
directors of a company listed in Hong Kong.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 § #



EXRERBREE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

KAGITHREBEAEBERNES NERIE  The Company provides regular updates and presentations on
HEHNER - ARIWMETEMESESR LT changes and developments relating to the Group’s business
WA PEERERULNEMEESH|IENHZE and the Company Secretary reports from time-to-time on the

SBELEE  WIBEMHRESHE RETIEEE  latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
ERTEFNRTEENEER - governance practices and other regulatory regimes to the

Directors and provides them with reading materials relating to
the latest development of regulatory requirements relevant to
director’s duties and responsibilities.

HERBEER
BMEEESE ESREZESR
B & # & B -

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/

conferences
Reading relevant to the
regulatory business or
EEHA Name of Directors updates  directors’ duties
HITES Executive Directors
ZIEEE L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter v X
(FEFITHAEE) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
PREEEL Dr. CHAN Ka Wai v X
BEXSTHE Mr. Mark Alan LOYND v v
FHITES Non-executive Directors
EP M1 L sas, up Dr. CHENG Chi Kong sss, Jp v X
(R20224F 12 A1 H B 1T) (resigned on December 1, 2022)
PR S S Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong v X
(R20224F 12 A1 H &) (resigned on December 1, 2022)
B E Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick v v
(R2022F 12 H1HZ ) (appointed on December 1, 2022)
FEEELE Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob v v
(R2022F 12 A1 HZT) (appointed on December 1, 2022)
BIYEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ZHRALEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT v X
B E E 5t ess, up Mr. KWONG Ki Chi ass, Jp v/ X
(retired on May 20, 2022)
EIEE 5 Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) v X
Alison Elizabeth LLOYDE + Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD v X
EERSHRAEEERAR Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance
AAFELHABEZEENSHABEETR The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
f o LB AEB AT - liability insurance in line with the CG Code.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Currently, Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, holds the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive. Such practice deviates from Code
Provision C.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

In view of Dr. LAU’s extensive experience in the industry and
deep understanding of the Group’s businesses, the Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief
Executive in Dr. LAU provides the Group with strong leadership,
allowing for more effective planning and execution of long term
business strategies and enhances efficiency in decision-making.

The Board also believes that the Company already has a strong
corporate governance structure appropriate for its circumstances
in place to ensure effective oversight of Management. The main
elements of this structure include:

° Having five Non-executive Directors out of eight of the
Board;

° Including all Independent Non-executive Directors as Audit
Committee members;

° Ensuring that all Independent Non-executive Directors have
free and direct access to both the Company’s internal and
external auditors and independent professional advice
where necessary; and

° Having “whistle-blowing” and “anti-corruption” mechanisms
in place. Details of the “whistle-blowing” and “anti-
corruption” mechanisms are further discussed under the
section “Risk Management and Internal Control”.

The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors to
rigorously supervise the Group’s management and effectively
control key issues relating to strategy, risk and integrity. The
Board continually reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
corporate governance structure to assess whether any changes
are necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, a qualified
accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process and discussing with
the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit. It is also
responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial information,
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing the
interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending them
to the Board for approval. To this end, the Audit Committee has
unrestricted access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Company and Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited
(the “HKEX”).

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review
financial reporting and risk management and internal control
matters. The chairman of the Risk Management Committee
(who is also an executive Director and the Company Secretary)
the Director of Group Finance, a member of the internal audit
(“IA”) department together with the IA Advisor, SHINEWING Risk
Services Limited (“SHINEWING”) collectively, the (“IA Team”),
and representatives of the external auditor of the Company are
expected to attend the meetings. At the discretion of the Audit
Committee, other members of management may also be invited
to attend its meetings.
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In 2022, the Audit Committee held two meetings. During the
meetings, the Audit Committee, alongside the external auditor,
reviewed the audit strategy summary, the final results for the
year ended December 31, 2021 and the interim results for the
six months ended June 30, 2022. The Audit Committee also
reviewed the activities of the IA team and its internal audit
report, and discussed with the Board the report’s findings
and recommendations on the Group’s business operations.
Furthermore, it also evaluated, together with Management, the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems to ensure
its effectiveness, paying particular attention to the adequacy
of resources, the qualifications and experience of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting staff, as well as their training
programs and budget.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
continuing connected transactions of the Group which took place
during the year.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor during the year under review.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the Nomination Committee comprising
four Board members, the majority of which are Independent Non-
executive Directors, and is chaired by Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter,
the Chairman of the Board.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board, on a regular basis, and
to identify individuals qualified to become Board members. It is
also responsible for assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put
forward for consideration and, where appropriate, adoption by
the Board. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Company and the HKEX.

In 2022, the Nomination Committee held three meetings to
review the board diversity policy, to review the structure,
size, composition, skills and diversity matrix of the Board, to
recommend the rotation list of Directors to the Board, and to
assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors and the appointment of non-executive Directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development. The Company will also
take into consideration its own business model and specific
needs from time-to-time in determining the optimal composition
of the Board. In view of this, a board diversity policy was
adopted by the Board in 2013, the Nomination Committee
has set measurable objectives based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including, but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualities. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidate(s) will bring to the Board. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidate(s) will bring to the Board. The board diversity policy
focuses on the following areas:-

()  increasing diversity at the Board level, which is considered
an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage;

(i)  differences in the skills, regional and industry experiences,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors;

(i) determining the optimum composition of the Board,
which, where and when possible, should be balanced
appropriately; and

(iv) appointments of directors being made on the basis of merit,
in the context of the skills and experience that the Board as
a whole requires in order to be effective.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy on
a regular basis and the policy was last reviewed on November 3,
2022.
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The current Board composition reflects a balanced mix
of age, educational background, professional knowledge,
industry experience and length of service to the Board which
is appropriate for the needs of the business of the Group. The
diversity mix of the Board as at December 31, 2022 and up to the
date of this report is summarized below:

As at December 31, 2022 and up to the date of this report,
the Board consists of eight members, three of whom are
executive directors, two are non-executive directors and three
are independent non-executive directors who have served on
the Board for a period ranging from three months to 29 years.
The Board is composed of professionals with retail, real estate,
investment, accounting, finance, general management, academic
and legal backgrounds. Of the eight Directors, four members
were aged between 40-49, two members were aged between
50-59, and two members were aged between 70-79.

As at December 31, 2022 and up to the date of this report, the
Company has one female director. The Company is committed
to increasing the female representation on the Board gradually
over time. When considering new members for the Board,
appointments will be made by considerations of objective criteria
and due regard will be made to achieving and maintaining an
appropriate balance in diversity, including in terms of gender, on
the Board. Whilst the Board is conscious of achieving gender
diversity on the Board when considering potential candidates,
all appointments will be made on the basis of merit, taking into
account the needs of the Group at the relevant time and the
availability of suitable candidates.

Gender Diversity of Workforce

As at December 31, 2022, the Group had 6,200 employees,
approximately 68.73% of whom were female. As at 31
December 2022, the Senior Management of the Group
comprised approximately 45.00% female members, being the
Director of Group Finance, the Head of Product Development,
Merchandising & Buying and general managers in various
markets. The Board regularly assesses the Group’s diversity
profile of all levels of employees and considers the diversity
policy to attract, retain and motivate employees from the widest
possible pool of available talent. The Board considers that the
gender ratio of the workforce of the Group, including the Senior
Management, is appropriate for the operations of the Group and
will strive to maintain this ratio.
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Nomination Policy

In view of the amendments to the CG Code which took effect
from January 1, 2019, on November 8, 2018, the Nomination
Committee adopted a director nomination policy with updates
on November 3, 2022, which sets out the selection criteria
and nomination procedures and process when considering
candidates to be appointed or re-appointed as Directors.

In the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee will follow
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria as
follows:

o Reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board composition in line with the
Company'’s strategic objectives;

o Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members on merit and in accordance with the objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Nomination Committee shall consider suitability
of a candidate pursuant to the Listing Rules, the nomination
policy and Board diversity policy, and the independence of
an individual for the position of independent non-executive
director; and

o Selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Board members,
taking into account the Company’s corporate strategy
and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
needed in the future.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that it has
a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The independence
of the INEDs was assessed according to the relevant rules and
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy and
Board Diversity Policy from time-to-time and may adopt changes
as appropriate at the relevant time.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Board members,
the majority of which are Independent Non-executive Directors,
and is chaired by Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu), an
independent non-executive Director.
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The Company adopted Code Provision E.1.2(c)(i) out of the
two models suggested by the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for (i) making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure relating to
remuneration and compensation for all Directors and senior
management, (ii) determining, with delegated responsibility,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management and (iii) making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for reviewing and/
or approving matters relating to share schemes under Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules. When the remuneration package of an
individual Director is under review, the Director in question is
required to abstain from voting to avoid any conflict of interest.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were
revised on January 1, 2023 in accordance with the amendments
to Listing Rules relating to share schemes and the updated terms
of reference are available on the websites of the Company and
the HKEX.

In 2022, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings to
review and approve the remuneration of the Chairman and Chief
Executive and to review and approve the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and senior management.
No member of the Remuneration Committee was involved in
deciding their own remuneration. During the year, there were
no material matters relating to the share option schemes of the
Company which required review or approval by the Remuneration
Committee.

Remuneration Policy

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting,
retaining and motivating high quality personnel. As such, the
Company works to ensure that remuneration is competitive and
aligned with the Company’s objectives and performance. The
Company takes into consideration a number of relevant factors
in determining its remuneration policy, including the salaries paid
by comparable companies, job responsibilities, duties and scope,
employment conditions in the Group, market practices and the
financial and non-financial performance of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as the
fees paid by comparable companies, time commitment, the
responsibilities and likely workload of the relevant Directors and
other employment conditions in the Company to ensure that the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors are appropriately remunerated for their time and
responsibilities to the Company.
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The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees,
(including the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive
Directors), is composed of fixed compensation, cash
performance bonuses, variable cash incentives, long-term
incentives and retirement schemes, as discussed below.

Fixed compensation includes an employee’s basic salary,
allowances and benefits (e.g. medical). Basic salary and
allowances are set and reviewed annually for each position,
taking into consideration the Company’s remuneration policy, the
Company’s and the individual’s performance as well as market
conditions and practices. Benefits are regularly reviewed and
determined, given the global reach of the Group’s business,
largely on the basis of local standards and practices.

Employees may also be eligible to receive an annual cash bonus
based on their performance at the Group, business unit and
individual levels. The bonuses awarded to the Chairman and
Chief Executive, the Executive Directors and senior management
are reviewed and approved by the Remuneration Committee
(provided that any member of the Remuneration Committee
shall not participate in review and approval of his own bonus).
In addition, the Company operates sales and business-related
incentive schemes to motivate certain staff such as front-line
sales associates to achieve specific sales or other business
targets of the Company.

The share option scheme of the Company (the “2011 Share
Option Scheme”) expired on June 9, 2021. However, the options
granted before the expiry date under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the terms of issue. The details of the 2011 Share Option Scheme,
together with information on options exercised and outstanding in
respect of the Directors and employees as at December 31, 2022
under the scheme, are set out in the “Share Option Information”
section of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
the Company participates in a MPF scheme registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

Details of Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments are
set out in Note 10 to the financial statements on pages 133 to
135 of this annual report.
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OTHER COMMITTEES

The Company has established other committees to support the
Board and the Board Committees in their governance roles and
responsibilities.

Risk Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and the
review of its effectiveness to the Risk Management Committee.
Further details on the composition of the Risk Management
Committee and the work carried out by the Risk Management
Committee are set out under the section of “Risk Management
and Internal Control” below. The principal duties of the Risk
Management Committee include oversight and advising on risk
exposure of the Group, assessment of the risk profile and risk
management capabilities of the Group, development and review
of the efficacy of the Group’s internal financial controls, internal
controls and risk management systems, ensuring contingency/
crisis plans and procedures are in place, amongst other things.

Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the Management
Committee. The Management Committee is fully accountable to
the Board and comprises the Chairman and Chief Executive and
the Executive Directors together with one senior management
representative. The terms of reference of the Management
Committee are available on the website of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining
appropriate and effective control of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, particularly in respect of financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, and, as such, monitors the effectiveness on an ongoing
basis.
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Appropriate policies and procedures have been put in
place to safeguard the assets against unauthorized use or
disposition; control over capital expenditure; maintain proper
and accurate accounting records and enhance the reliability of
financial reporting; and to ensure efficiency and effectiveness
of operations and compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations. Such policies and procedures are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement, loss, error or fraud, and to manage and minimize
rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the Group’s operational
systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control framework
includes the following major components:

° An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and delegated
authority;

o Systems and procedures of financial control, risk
management and internal control to identify and measure
risks and conduct bi-annual risk assessment to monitor the
progress of risk mitigation;

o Operational and financial budgeting and forecasting
systems for performance measurement, including regular
variance analysis against budgets and plans, and setting
key business performance targets with appropriate
measures to rectify deficiencies;

° Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review
and approval of significant contracts, major capital and
recurrent expenditures;

° A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow anonymously and
confidentially report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct (including that of the Directors and senior
management), to the Internal Audit Department which will
refer the report to the chairman of the Audit Committee for
further action; and
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° An “anti-corruption” mechanism in place to promote
and support compliance with anti-corruption laws and
regulations and provide guidelines to the employees
about their responsibilities to prevent fraud, to help the
Group defend against corrupt practices and to report any
suspected case of fraud and corruption or any attempts
thereof, to the management or through an appropriate
reporting channel. The Group has a zero-tolerance approach
to all forms of fraud and corruption among all employees and
those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of
the Group, and in its business dealing with third parties; and

° Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

As at December 31, 2022 and up to the date of this report,
the Risk Management Committee comprises four members,
including the General Counsel (also an executive Director and
the Company Secretary), the Director of Group Finance, the
Associate Director of Internal Control and a senior management
representative. During the year, the Company has engaged
SHINEWING, an external professional firm, as our Internal Audit
Advisor to assist the internal audit function of the Company.
The Risk Management Committee reviews all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, in
accordance with the Code Provisions on risk management and
internal control systems of the CG Code, and reports to the
Board twice a year. The Risk Management Committee is fully
accountable to the Board for providing assurance on managing
and monitoring the systems of risk management and internal
controls.

During the year, the Risk Management Committee has evaluated
and was satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function as well as their training programmes
and budget for the accounting, internal audit, financial reporting
functions, as well as those relating to the Company’s ESG
performance and reporting, and reported to the Board that in all
material respects the systems of risk management and internal
control over risks associated with the Group’s operations was
sufficient, appropriate and operated effectively on a continuing
basis.

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the

IA team plays a major role in monitoring the risk management and
internal controls of the Group.
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The IA team has unrestricted access to review all aspects of the
Group’s key activities, risk management, control and governance
processes and the keys tasks of |A team include:

° Conduct independent, comprehensive and regular audits
of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of business and support units and
subsidiaries, including recommending improvements and
monitoring corrective or remedial measures taken by the
units and subsidiaries to minimize risk exposure;

o Conduct special reviews of areas of concern identified by
Management or the Audit Committee;

o Investigation of business ethics, conflict of interest and
other Group policy violations; and

o Oversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.

Adopting a risk-based approach, the |IA Team implements the
audit plan approved by the Audit Committee and Management,
which is based on a risk assessment methodology. It furnishes
independent and objective evaluations and recommendations in
the form of an internal audit report to Management. The IA team
reports directly to the Audit Committee twice a year on major
findings, corrective actions and responses from Management.
The Audit Committee has free and direct access the |IA team
without reference from the Chairman or Management.

During the year, the IA Team issued the internal audit reports to
the Audit Committee and Management, which covered significant
business processes and activities of the Group. It worked with
Management to establish action plans to address any identified
control weaknesses. During the review, there was no material
internal control weaknesses identified, but the IA Team continues
to be vigilant in monitoring the internal control processes of
the Group. Post-audit reviews were performed to ensure those
agreed actions have been implemented as intended.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions by Directors (the “Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions”). This is on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, and has been
updated from time-to-time. Having made specific enquiries with
all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of
Conduct for Securities Transactions in respect of their securities
transactions (if any) throughout the year ended December 31,
2022.

In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions by Specified Employees, which governs
the securities transactions of those employees who may possess
or have access to inside information. The said code covers areas
such as prohibitions and conduct in the dealing of the Company’s
securities, avoidance of conflict of interests and confidentiality of
the Company’s information, etc. All the specified employees are
reminded of the compliance of the Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Specified Employees every six months.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements for each financial period to ensure that
they give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group, its financial performance and cash flows for that period.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently, and that where judgment has been applied
and estimates made, they are prudent and reasonable.

The statement by the external auditor of the Group,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 71
to 78 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration charged by the Group’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for non-audit and
statutory audit services is set out below:

(A EEETRER) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
FEEZRTE Non-audit services
(BREBUHESEE  ETETERRERR (included tax-related matters,
H A B ¥R AR TS ) certain agreed-upon procedures
work and other reporting services) 2 1
EEBZ Statutory audit 5 5
B Total 7 6

NEWE
BENEAEB2013FIAREETRAMWE -
NRATES  KEZRBRERAREES -
BAEBREBERATREINEREER
ExgiRftER  YRHEENHRERENLE
FRRE-

BEARERN2022FNEBT F TR BIE3.29
& BT RO ENE 2 BB X -

BEXH

RAEER - REHARATEZES - RERE XN
NEZBEER - EREFTARAR > KAF]
RRARRRRRAE LR 2EFT R AHRRA
fE °
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND has been the Company Secretary
since September 2013. He is also an executive Director, the
General Counsel and an employee of the Group. Mr. LOYND is
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and
Chief Executive on governance matters and facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors.

Mr. LOYND confirmed that he has complied with rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules and received not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in 2022.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Bye-Laws during the year. If any
amendment to the Bye-Laws is necessary, according to the
relevant law governing the Company, the Company will propose
the amendment for Shareholders’ approval at a general meeting
of the Company.
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

Earning Shareholders’ trust and confidence has always been the
major emphasis of the Company’s efforts in investor relations.
The Group’s senior management keeps a constant and open
dialogue with the investment community through company visits,
conference calls, information sessions and participation in major
investor conferences to communicate clearly the Company’s
business strategies, developments and prospects. About 5
meetings with institutional investors and research analysts were
held in 2022.

The Company has a wide and diverse Shareholder base of
institutional and retail investors. To ensure all Shareholders have
equal and timely access to important company information,
the Company proactively utilizes the internet and other forms
of electronic communication to deliver information in a timely
and transparent manner. To strike a balance between keeping
Shareholders abreast of the Company’s performance on the one
hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus on short-term results on
the other, the Company decided against following the CG Code
Recommended Best Practice of publishing quarterly financial
results. Instead, the Company publishes operations updates
for the first three and nine month periods on the websites of
the Company and HKEX. Annual and interim reports, Stock
Exchange filings, press releases and other materials are also
accessible on the Company’s website.

The Board has established a Shareholders’ Communication
Policy and reviews this policy annually to ensure its effectiveness
to enhance Shareholders’ relationship with the Company and
to comply with the relevant rules and corporate governance
code. Such policy aims at providing the Shareholders and
potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced and
understandable information of the Company.
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As set out in the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, the
Company has established a number of channels for maintaining
an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

()  Shareholders can choose the means of receiving corporate
communications such as annual reports, interim reports
and circulars either in printed form or in electronic form by
accessing the corporate communications published on the
HKEX’s website and the Company’s website;

(i)  financial highlights, press releases and results presentations
are also posted on the Company’s website;

(i) periodic announcements, corporate information and any
changes to the Bye-Laws of the Company are made
through the Stock Exchange and published on the
respective websites of the HKEX and the Company;

(iv) participation by the Board members and the Director
of Group Finance in investors’ conferences to meet
Shareholders/investors, media and financial analyst;

(v) AGMs and/or general meetings provide a forum for the
Shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and senior management; and

(vi) enquiries may be raised with the Company by telephone
at (852) 2746 4668, by facsimile at (852) 2370 8864, by
e-mail at investorrelations@giordano.com or by post to the
Company'’s principal place of business for the time being.

All Directors and key senior management members use their
best efforts to attend the Shareholder meetings and, during
their attendance, they are actively engaged in dialogue, with the
Shareholders who wish to exchange views with them. The Board
has examined and reviewed the Shareholder’ Communication
Policy for 2022 and updated the same on March 9, 2023. Having
considered the implementation and effectiveness of multiple
channels of communication and engagement in place, the Board
is satisfied that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy has
been properly implemented during the year and is effective.
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The Board welcomes Shareholders’ views on matters affecting
the Group, and encourages their attendance at Shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they may have with
the Board or Management directly. The Company’s AGM is an
especially important forum. In order to encourage and facilitate
shareholder attendance at its AGM, the Company gives at
least 20 clear business days’ prior notice. To ensure clear
communication, each substantially separate issue is proposed
under a separate resolution.

Investors and Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may
do so by contacting our Investor Relations Department whose
contact details are listed on pages 179 and 180 of this annual
report.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to Code Provision F.1.5, the Company has adopted a
policy with regard to the declaration of dividends on November
8, 2018. Such policy aims to allow Shareholders to participate in
the Company’s profits and for the Company to retain adequate
reserves for future growth.

The Company intends to return surplus cash to the Shareholders
through the payment of dividends, which is subject to the
Company’s capacity to pay from accumulated and future
earnings, cash availability and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend.

The Company may also consider declaring special dividends from
time-to-time, in addition to the semi-annual dividends (if any).

The Company’s income and its ability to pay dividends are
dependent upon, among other matters, the dividends received
from the Company’s subsidiaries, which, in turn, would depend
on such subsidiaries’ distributable profits, operating results,
financial condition, capital expenditure plans and other factors.
The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under
Bermuda law and the Bye-Laws.
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The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay dividends,
subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the Company,
where applicable. Even if the Board decides to recommend and
pay dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon
the operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus,
general financial condition, contractual restrictions and other
factors of and affecting the Group.

The Dividend Policy reflects the Company’s approach on the
financial and cash flow requirements of the Group prevailing at
the time of its adoption. The Board will review the policy from
time-to-time and may adopt changes as appropriate at the
relevant time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene
a special general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10)
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
or at the registered office of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition pursuant to Section
74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”). If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may
do so in accordance with the provision of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to
be called can be sent to the Company’s registered office and
its principal place of business in Hong Kong as set out in the
“Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.
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Procedures for Shareholders to make a proposal at a
general meeting

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company:

(@) any members representing not less than one-twentieth
(1/20) of the total voting rights of the Company having, on
the date of the requisition, a right to vote at the meeting to
which the requisition relates; or

(b)  notless than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by all the
requisitionists concerned, together with a statement with respect
to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong,
in the case of a requisition requiring a notice of a resolution,
not less than six weeks before the meeting and, in the case
of any other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting. The Company will take appropriate action and make
necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned will be
responsible for any expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of
the Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person other than the retiring Director
for election as a Director in a general meeting, please refer to the
procedures available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at 5th
Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Hong Kong, March 9, 2023
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of men’s,
women’s and children’s fashion apparel under Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned
and licensed brands. Although targeting different market
segments, the brands all strive to deliver excellent quality, value
and service to consumers.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by geography and by
brand for the year ended December 31, 2022 is set out in Note 5
to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 7 to 20 of this annual
report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group can be found throughout this annual report,
particularly in Note 3 to the financial statements. No important
event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
financial year under review. The outlook of the Group’s business
is discussed in the Management Discussion and Analysis section
on pages 19 and 20 of this annual report. Certain financial key
performance indicators which complement and supplement
our financial disclosures are set out on pages 79 to 171 as well
as in the Management Discussion and Analysis section. An
account of the Company’s relationships with its key stakeholders
and discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are included in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages ESG.1 to ESG.68 of this annual
report.

The above sections form part of the Directors’ Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence
to the relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the
Group. The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring
the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, with the support and assistance of the
legal and company secretarial department.

The Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) as well as their subsidiary
legislation, codes and guidelines are the principal sources of
our compliance obligations. Laws in other jurisdictions may also
apply to our non-Hong Kong operations, and both in Hong Kong
and elsewhere, we rely on the assistance of external law firms
and professional advisers to manage our legal and compliance
risks.

We communicate information on relevant new laws or changes in
laws and regulations to our staff to ensure compliance, and also
regularly remind our staff of their compliance obligations.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022
and the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at
that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 7 to 20 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 8.5 HK cents per share was paid to
shareholders of the Company on September 30, 2022.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 15.0 HK cents
per share for the year ended December 31, 2022. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
AGM, the final dividend will be payable on June 16, 2023 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on June 1, 2023.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2022, the retained profits of the Company
together with the contributed surplus available for distribution
amounted to HK$423 million (2021: HK$533 million).
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2022 are set out in Note 39 to the financial
statements.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 and 3 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are shown in Note 25 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
Laws although there are no restrictions against having such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s share option schemes as disclosed
under Share Option Information in this annual report, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the
end of the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers during the year are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 33%
Five largest suppliers combined 61%

The percentage of the sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers is less than 10% during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any
shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company, had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

59



EEEHES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MR EBERRE

RERARYE - HaE LR
BRI E22 ©

BEBR

KREBRAFERNZEES
(20214F : 204,000/ 7T) °

REZEBF BN

B A235,00078 7T

RITER
AREFRIRITE RSN HmRM 29

=
RAFEARBEARRE
LEER:

EZBHIE - ARF

HITES

SIS L (T ERTEARE)
REEEL

BETE

FHTES

B EMIE L ses, up( ER2022F12 51 HEHT)
PR E (B R2022F12 1 HEHE)

W LA (ER2022F12H1HZT)

R L E(ER2022F 1281 HZE)

BAFHTES
2HFNLELT
BBEELLE 6as, up(ER20229F5 H20 H iR 1F)
=BEE
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD1& £

RIBAFIHAIEBAQIRART - RREBF LR
ﬁﬁﬁﬂib\ﬂﬁﬁﬁ“)zﬂxﬁﬂikAi?@:.

- RERBLMEBHRTAERLBAER
’\LF’E i

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$235,000 (2021: HK$204,000).

BANK LOANS

Details of the bank loans for the year are set out in Note 29 to the
financial statement.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND

Non-executive Directors

Dr. CHENG Chi Kong sBs, Jp (Resigned on December 1, 2022)
Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong (Resigned on December 1, 2022)

Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick (Appointed on December 1, 2022)
Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob (Appointed on December 1, 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi aBs, up (Retired on May 20, 2022)
Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)

Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

In accordance with Bye-Law 84(2) of the Bye-Laws, Dr. CHAN
Ka Wai and Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) shall retire
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM. Dr. CHAN Ka Wai and
Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) being eligible, shall offer
themselves for re-election.
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In addition, in accordance with Bye-Law 83(2) of the Existing
Bye-Laws, any Director appointed during the year either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
Accordingly, Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick and Mr. LEE Chi Hin,
Jacob, who were appointed by the Board on December 1, 2022
as Non-executive Directors will retire and re-elect at the AGM
pursuant to this Bye-Law. All of the above retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 21 to 26 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of our Directors since the report date of the interim
report of the Company for the period ended June 30, 2022 are
set out below:

EEpns EREH
Name of Director Changes in information
PREEE LT R2022F 11 A - RIBLTEZABRRBES T RARKBELIEEE T2 -

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

Dr. CHAN obtained a Master of Science degree in Data Analysis and Business Economies

in HKBU in November 2022.

br EXPRTHEEEEIN - BARRQAE] 220227 HiH
ERHELAK - B EMRBIE13.51B(1) KA
THBECEEREFIBEUEEMER -

BEERBEL

BENEERREAFAS LBEEECES
BEERANRNEMB AR LAEE AR
—FRBARECOEEMERIN MR L2 R
BH o

& 7T R T B R X

REBARAY  AARSHREFHEMBTIER
BHEEHTRESEEM @R B/E2IFR
TARRIRELZMABRIAREE  BHEE
BRARBZEETBRNRBE - I - ARF]
ERERF AN ZBRERTHREEDN
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the
Directors’ biographical details which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of
2022 interim report of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM do not have any service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-Laws provides that each Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his or her office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the
Company has maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the
Directors.
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EERFETHASZERS - HEARD
REEENEER XA

R2022F12A381H + ARRIEERFETH
AEBSBRESAZEEBEARRBISEER
HEZEE (EE REBEHFREBEKRAIEXVER) /Y
f&1n - MRERD RERET BB ALHENES
NEAEIEPIZEI52GAEE T < B2 &
WmIOKE - ARBIRESTRIZE A ® A A7) M
R ZERMABWNT

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHA

RES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company and their
respective close associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations

(withi

n the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or

as ot

herwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

RAEXRRGREBRD ZHFR
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
FFEEREA
Number of ordinary shares held
PTETERS
(B E) BARRE DL
BAER (BsF15%2) (Ht53)
(Kizt1) Derivative Approximate
EENS Personal interests a5 percentage of
Name of Directors interests (share options) Total shareholding
(Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) (Note 3)
2| 7 4 27,518,000 - 27,518,000 1.74%
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
BRIz 42 600,000 8,700,000 9,300,000 0.59%
CHAN Ka Wai
ZEET 236,000 9,064,000 9,300,000 0.59%
Mark Alan LOYND
Hiat - Notes:

(1) REBRIEABEFEREn i ANFENE

(2) PTAET AR ZIHERG TN FIRNZ BRI
FEIMRFEERZERE  BEEFHIIRAFR
FI172EZ2F178F -

B #HR2022F12H31HAXRXAE FTRG
1,679,816,518K 51 & »

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(1)

@)

3

This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial
owners.

Derivative interests are share options granted to the Directors pursuant to
the share option schemes of the Company and details of which are set out

on pages 172 to 178 of this annual report.

Based on 1,5679,816,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December
31, 2022.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2022, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their close
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Details of the continuing connected transactions and material
related party transactions are respectively disclosed under
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages
66 to 69 and in Note 36 to the financial statements of this annual
report.

Save for the above, no other transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or his connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under Share Option Information section on
pages 172 to 178 to this annual report, at no time during the year
under review was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors (including their spouses and children under
18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
businesses.
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FTERRZEZR KR

MARAEEREZITHRABRA » $K2022
F128381H > THAT(BRARREERTE
TTERABIN RAR T 2 KD s /BRI D o
BEAERENESLHERYFEIBIEEETE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, as at December 31, 2022, the following persons
(other than Directors and chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of

BRMA 2 ESTARIT

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

RAEXRRGRAEBRD ZHFR
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
BRERBE S
(Kt5t3)
EFEBEREE Approximate
Number of percentage of
TERRERE =20 ordinary shareholding
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity shares held (Note 3)
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) REHEE 2 s 388,180,000 24.57%
Limited(#&note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1) REHEE 2 s 388,180,000 24.57%
Limited(#&note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited RESIER 2 388,180,000 24.57%
(HjizNote 1) Interest of controlled corporation
AAREER)ARAR([EAXREER]) XEHDEER 2 #Em 388,180,000 24.57%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(“CTF”)(/WﬁNote 1)
AREREABRAB(TEAREBRIEAD IEHEEZ#i 388,180,000 24.57%
Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(“CTFN")(WHNote 1)
Sino Wealth International Limited EREaA 388,180,000 24.57%
(“Sino Wealth”) Beneficial owner
Mr. David Michael Weblp##nNote 2) EnEAA 94,842,000 6.00%

Beneficial owner

st :

(1) R 2022 F 12 A 31 B + Sino Wealth # &
388,180,000/ 2 2 a] & 17+ B H A K iE L EA £
BHAE - MREXEAEAR B EAXEIERZER
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited } Cheng
Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited 7} Chow Tai
Fook Capital Limited 73 55 % #748.98% )% 46.65%
# 75 [ Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 8l 12 J&
A 1GHE R #% H #781.03% # z - B Ilt Cheng Yu
Tung Family (Holdings) Limited ~ Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings 1l) Limited - Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited ~ JEIAXBFERR K JE A 48 U FEA #4773 58 Sino
Wealth 5K 2 BIIR (0 P 17 ©

(2)  David Michael Webb 7t 4 ELA #55 38,973,600% 7K

I EIR 17 R B B E AR 2\ A14555,868,4008 K 1 A]
B RA R BT ~

(3) & R2022F 12 A31 H A X &2 & 77 K7
1,579,816,518fK51 & -
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Notes:

(1) As at December 31, 2022, 388,180,000 shares of the Company were
held by Sino Wealth which is a wholly-owned by CTFN, which in turn
controlled by CTF. Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu
Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited held approximately 48.98% and 46.65%
interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively, which in turn held
an approximately 81.03% interest in CTF and accordingly each of Cheng
Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1)
Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, CTF and CTFN is deemed to have
an interest in the shares of the Company held by Sino Wealth.

2) Mr. David Michael Webb holds 38,973,600 shares in person and
55,868,400 shares through his controlled corporation.

3) Based on 1,5679,816,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December
31, 2022.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2022, the
Company had not been notified of any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE YEAR
Voluntary Conditional Cash Offers

On June 7, 2022 (after trading hours), Halcyon Capital Limited,
on behalf of Clear Prosper Global Limited (the “Offeror”), informed
the Board that the Offeror intended to make voluntary conditional
cash offers (i) to acquire all the offer shares (the “Offer Shares”),
being all the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) in issue,
other than those Shares already owned by the Offeror and its
concert parties (the “Concert Parties”) (the “Share Offer”) and (ii)
to cancel all the outstanding share options (other than those held
by certain excluded optionholders) of the Company (the “Option
Offer”, collectively, the “Offers”). The Company and the Offeror
published a joint announcement (the “Joint Announcement”) on
June 23, 2022 and a composite offer and response document
(the “Composite Document”) in respect of the Offers was issued
on August 15, 2022 which included, among others, the principal
terms of the Offers. The offer period commenced from June
23, 2022 to September 5, 2022 and was further extended to
September 13, 2022. Since the condition to the Offers (i.e. the
valid acceptances of the Share Offer having been received (and
not, where permitted, withdrawn), together with the Shares
already owned, resulting in the Offeror and its Concert Parties
holding in aggregate more than 50% of the voting rights of the
Company) was not fulfilled by 4:00 p.m. on September 13, 2022,
the Offers did not become unconditional and lapsed on the same
date.

For details of the Offers, and the timetable of the Offers, please
refer to the Joint Announcement and the Composite Document.

For details of the extension and the revised timetable of the
Offers, and the result of the Offers, please refer to the joint
announcements issued by the Offeror and the Company, dated
September 5, 2022 and September 13, 2022 respectively.
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year, which do not constitute connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, are set out in Note 36 to the financial
statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted the following continuing
connected transactions, which are subject to the announcement
and reporting requirements, but are exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the following
continuing connected transactions. When conducting the
continuing connected transactions during the year, the Company
has followed the relevant internal leasing evaluation policy.

(1) Pre-existing Agreements

Members of the Group and members of New World
Department Store China Limited (“NWDS”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “NWDS Group”) have in the
past entered into leasing agreements which include those
that completed during the calendar year and those that
remain in force as immediately prior to the execution of the
master leasing agreement (“Master Leasing Agreement”)
on December 29, 2017 regarding the leasing of premises
and/or concessionaire counters in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) by members of the Group from
members of the NWDS Group (the “Pre-existing Leasing
Agreements”). Most of the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements
comprise of short-term leases of one year or less, and as
all of the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements are subject to
ordinary and market rental terms based on calculation of
turnover rent, (which in turn is based on a percentage of the
respective monthly turnover), the monthly payable amount
to be made by the Group to NWDS Group will vary month by
month.
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Renewed Master Leasing Agreement

(@) On December 31, 2019, the Company and NWDS
entered into a renewed master leasing agreement
(the “Renewed Master Leasing Agreement”)
pursuant to which the parties (i) recorded their
mutual understanding to enter into future lease
agreements with respect to the lease of premises and
concessionaire counters in the PRC from members
of the NWDS Group; and (ii) set out the underlying
principles of such future leases for a term commencing
from January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2022. The
Master Leasing Agreement was expired on December
31, 2022.

(b) On January 6, 2023, the Company and NWDS
entered into a second renewed master leasing
agreement (the “Second Renewed Master Leasing
Agreement”) pursuant to which the parties (i) recorded
their mutual understanding to enter into future lease
agreements with respect to the lease of premises and
concessionaire counters in the PRC from members
of the NWDS Group; and (ii) set out the underlying
principles of such future leases for a term commencing
from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2025. The
Second Renewed Master Leasing Agreement will
expire on December 31, 2025 and will be automatically
renewed for successive periods of 3 years thereafter,
subject to, among others, the Listing Rules, unless
terminated earlier in accordance with the Second
Renewed Master Leasing Agreement.

As Sino Wealth, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
held approximately 24.57% interest in the Company.
Sino Wealth is wholly-owned by CTFN, which is in turn
controlled by CTF. Also, NWDS is a subsidiary of New
World Development Company Limited (“NWD”) and Chow
Tai Fook Enterprises Limited is a controlling shareholder
of NWD as well as a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTF; and
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited is a subsidiary of
CTF; accordingly, the NWDS Group is a connected person
of the Company and the transactions under the Pre-existing
Leasing Agreements, all future and renewals of the existing
leasing agreements contemplated under the Renewal of
Master Leasing Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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For details of the Pre-existing Agreement and Master
Leasing Agreement, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated December 29, 2017.

For details of the Renewed Master Leasing Agreement,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
December 31, 2019.

The continuing connected transactions under the Second
Renewed Master Leasing Agreement constituted less than
0.1% under all the applicable percentage ratio calculations
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
were therefore exempt from disclosure requirements.

The annual caps in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the years ending December 31, 2020, 2021
and 2022, are HK$5 million, HK$7 million and HK$9 million,
respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the turnover rent
paid or payable to NWDS Group by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$746,000, which is within the annual cap
of HK$9 million.

Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that these continuing connected transactions were entered
into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and
(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s independent
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions stated in the above paragraphs
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
connected transactions which were subject to the reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during
the year.

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

A summary of the Company’s share option schemes and details
of the movement in share options of the Company during the year
are set out on pages 172 to 178 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2022, a total of 2,000,000
ordinary shares were repurchased by the Company on the Stock
Exchange. As at the date of this report, all the repurchased
shares were cancelled by the Company. The Directors believe

JED  BIREBAKRATE RS - WAKRZA  that the repurchases were made to reflect the Company’s
IR AEEE - BEALNRERRMD Z:$15 confidence in its long-term business prospects and would
IR ultimately benefit the Company and create value for the
shareholders of the Company. Details of the repurchases of
shares of the Company were as follows:
BEsE
(BRBAXZ AT)
BEROHE Aggregate
Number of BRESER HRBEKEMH purchase price
ARV Shares Highest price Lowest price (before
Month of repurchase repurchased paid per Share paid per Share expenses)
HK$ HK$ HK$
202210 A
October 2022 300,000 1.33 1.30 393,500
2022411 A
November 2022 904,000 1.43 1.31 1,257,420
2022%F 12 A
December 2022 796,000 1.75 1.56 1,346,240
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PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance so as to ensure better transparency
and protection of shareholders’ interests. Information on the
Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 27 to 56 of this annual
report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The employees of the Group are selected, remunerated
and promoted on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence. Please refer to Note 2 to the financial statements
for details of the retirement benefits provided to employees of the
Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market standards. Particulars of the emoluments of
Directors on a named basis for the year are set out in Note 10 to
the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution to re-
appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as independent auditor of the
Company and to authorize the Directors to fix its remuneration
will be proposed for approval at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, March 9, 2023
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B R Ak

To the members of
Giordano International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Giordano International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 79 to 171, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

° Goodwill impairment and valuation of put option liability

Valuation of inventory

° Impairment of retail store assets

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 § #
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BMNETNAERERETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BEREREHAHESEENGE
Goodwill impairment and valuation of put
option liability

BRI EOII AN i 24 [ BE) - B7E31
f fx BRI R & - @atlEF IR 7F2() ~ 2(s)
BEEZEA A F KA 9T 4(i) KX 4(v) -
Refer to note 24 “Gooawill”, note 31 “Put Option
Liability”, Accounting Policies notes 2(j), 2(s) and
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in
notes 4(ii) and 4(iv) to the consolidated financial
Statements

IRREHEERBBERNFEHFT.MEET
RERWBENTBENNABRREEEZEGE
BATERE DEEMERREEZESEK]) -
BB E RO BERSEL S T(ATEME R
%Eét%ﬁj) C DUETTEERERIR o BN Kl
RoLHREFENEEMNAPRRAIFEEGEBHN
3!5? HIERRAT R AR RS - ROEHEEE
REBEEEBERBARABETITR - R20224F
12A31 B ESENRABEEER0BEETT °
Goodwill of HK$541 million on the consolidated
balance sheet arose from the acquisitions of the
Giordano Gulf Cooperation Council businesses
(the “Gulf Cooperation Council Business”), which
has been allocated to a group of cash generating
units (“CGUs”) for the purpose of goodwill
impairment testing. In addition, put options exist
over the remaining interests held by the non-
controlling shareholders of the Gulf Cooperation
Council Business. The put option liability is stated
at fair value at each balance sheet date, and as at
31 December 2022, amounted to HK$81 million.

W B AN AERAIFRE B R BAMEEENA
Yz [0 & 58 51 1 B2 57 /EHH%EFE’MMEYJMEEF%
%zﬂ’]fﬁimi‘ﬁiﬁﬂﬁg C WRA R BEREIHEK
RRFAHE

The assessments of the recoverable amount of
the goodwill and the put option liability valuation
for the Gulf Cooperation Council Business were
based on the same cash flow projections prepared
by management, using fair value less costs of
disposal calculations.

ﬁfFﬁ BIZEREEEARMERE Y REREME
BN AERAIER B G EBHARREEMIENE

E#U%ﬁ

We focused on these balances because the

valuation models involve significant judgements

made by management about the future results of

the Gulf Cooperation Council Business.
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HrEETEEREE S EGHERLEEMRANGEDZREERENE

R HEGEERER jfﬂ#ﬁF’Wﬁﬂ)\ﬁ%%Aﬁt/&E’]E%ﬂEELTTHZ
ﬁ(’ﬂﬁ-r BMEBESERGEREE ZHMESETLE - UFEE
BREMEETIRZAMA -

We evaluated management’s valuation models by assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and the process by which
the models were drawn up and compared the underlying inputs to the
latest Board approved budget. We also compared historical actual
results to those budgeted to assess the effectiveness of management’s
estimation process.

BAEE@IFETRANERRRERA - JFhIZ
We have focused on the key assumptions and mputs used in the
calculations, particularly:

. FARMERARFTREE  WRERBARMITERBEREFENALL
BERNE R AEZENTHREETME
the risk adjusted discount rates used, and assessed these against
the cost of capital of the relevant companies and industry and
country specific comparable entities;

s EHFEHEERXERSELABITNRRILERE  AR/EERER

B SSEMAABRRKAER B EHEENZLID - TAIKS
B ESEREMEND LBRRENFTETENSHEMERA

BEACEIE RTEAETT T LLER o

the projected annual sales growth rates and the terminal growth
rates for the CGUs, as these were considered to be the key drivers
of the valuation of the Gulf Cooperation Council Business. We
compared management’s assumptions of these against external
retail industry outlook reports and country specific economic
growth forecasts from different sources.
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BREITSE
Key Audit Matter

BMNETNAERERETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FEME

Valuation of inventory

BREEHBEHRENT17[FE] - GEHE
F AT i 2(m) & B ZE g FE AT R A G f i
4(i)

Refer to note 17 “Inventories” and Accounting
Policies note 2(m) and Critical Accounting
Estimates and Judgements in note 4(j) to the
consolidated financial statements

R2022F12 A1 HE S BRI FIFEHBER6.12(8
BT - FEEBRKAETERFENREEIRNE
A ImE - RETEFENAERFENMET
AR EREREMEMNCERAZECUARRE
J5 VR RN 55 5 3 3 R T [B) T 5 16 4 B BT ERER B AT
BT E -

The net inventory balance at 31 December 2022
was HK$612 million. Inventory is carried in the
consolidated financial statements at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. The estimate
of the net realisable value of inventory in the
apparel industry could be impacted by changes in
economic conditions in places where the Group
operates, as well as changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in
market conditions.

BMETIZEERARGAIEFERESERT
LVEH FIE -

We focused on this area due to the judgement
in estimating the amount of inventory provisions
required.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BT T ER A SRR BT T B BRI - ELBE
PHEMYBRERRET —EEENSIEEHE -

We evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis and performed our own
sensitivities where we flexed the key assumptions within a reasonable
range.

ERBAZEE AR AEEENHERKANABNMRRERGIEE
SHF e

We found that management’s judgements and assumptions used in the
valuation were supportable, based on the available evidence obtained.

BUER THREEBEMAFFEAERFENTHECBRETRME
MERVBERIZ T o

We obtained an understanding of the key procedures implemented by
management in estimating the net realisable value of inventories and
periodic reviews of inventory obsolescence.

BMERMERSHAEXHAIR TERRBRIAZH > ENFENRE - I
BEME T EERERN -

We tested the ageing of inventory items categorised into different
seasons by checking to relevant supporting documents on a sample
basis and recalculated the mathematical accuracy of the provision
made.

RB2EFRLHELSR  BHATHREFEEGNAEN - RMARMEST
EEERMERSREERHERETHR -

We assessed the reasonableness of the provisions with reference to
historic sales experience. We also compared the carrying values of
inventory items, on a sample basis, to actual post year end sales.

ERBARE  HMRSEEERNGERRANBRRERAEESS

We found the assumptions made by management in respect of the
inventory provisions were supportable based on the available evidence.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EEEREERE

Impairment of retail store assets
FRHEE VI BIREMNF22[ W% - #aS k&

BEF B E2(N) ~ 2(K) ~ 2(y) R EE ZEHAET
R H B b g M e 4(i)

Refer to note 22 “Property, plant and
equipment”, Note 23 “Right-of-use assets”
and Accounting Policies notes 2(h), 2(k),
2(y)and Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements in note 4(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements

EXEBANEREEEE (BREME  HMBERRK
WAREREEED R A1.33F B T 26.901EH
T) c EMBRBERER - EEESREET
RIE e

The Group has material operational assets
(including property, furniture and equipment of
HK$133 million and right-of-use assets of HK$690
million) which are subject to impairment tests
in the event that trading performance is below
expectation.

EEEHHERBAETR 2 ZEEHEAMRRESR
BEAAEACERER  WEEETZEEREED
AREEHE - hFAE SR BEBAARENEKRA
- BEBAER  EMERMEFE - HE2022F
12AB1 AL FECHAEAREE D FREBER
1EEBTT -

Management prepared discounted cash flow
analysis on the retail stores with impairment
indicators. The recoverable amounts were
determined based on the value-in-use calculations
of these retail stores. These calculations involved
significant management judgement with respect
to the assumptions used including the annual
revenue growth rate, gross margin and discount
rate. Based on the impairment tests performed,
net impairment of right-of-use assets amounted to
HK$1 million was recognized for the year ended 31
December 2022.

KRMIZEEERARGHZEEREETRE S
RS M E E A ET I

We focused on this area because of the significant
judgement and estimates used in determining the
recoverable amount of the retail store assets.
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BMHELTHREEECHANLBRETR ZEATESH R EFHRIRE
emETEARMERNBERET -

We obtained an understanding of the key procedures implemented
by management in identifying relevant retail stores having impairment
indicators and the preparation of value-in-use calculations.

BPRHE T EREBRAZEETENEE L
We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation methodology used by
management.

BEBMEREBRITENAERERBITHSELNT® KRR
ERAEEHNBTERRBETLER  AIBTERRMEHER - U
Rt ERERACMRENSEN - M EmEREETETERN
AR

We evaluated the key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations
by applying our knowledge of the business and industry and our
understanding of latest market information and conditions, comparing
the cash flow forecasts with the historical actual performance of the
stores, performing market research and assessing the reasonableness of
discount rate adopted by management.

BMRREEENGERRANBRERBEERX -

We found the assumptions made by management in respect of the
impairment assessments to be reasonable based on the available
evidence.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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HERBIZHERENESTEESEARM The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

=1 independent auditor’s report is Chan Ka Yee.
EOEFKEEEERAT PricewaterhouseCoopers

HE DA Certified Public Accountants

&7 202343 A9H Hong Kong, 9 March 2023
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B E R
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE2022F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2022

=2 - (In HK$ million, Hiat

U EEETEEN) except earnings per share) Note 2022 2021
HER Sales 5 3,799 3,380
& AR Cost of sales 7 (1,653) (1,450)
E7 Gross profit 2,146 1,930
HibWg AR EMUES - 7F%  Other income and other gains, net 6 72 118
SiEER Distribution expense 7 (1,594) (1,604)
TTHE M Administrative expense 7 (199) (181)
K& A Operating profit 7 425 263
MEZEH Finance expense 8 (25) (29)
Bt —M&aE R rEH Share of profit of a joint venture 20 36 41
B P 45258 B 2 A1 Profit before income taxes 5 436 275
FriS# Income taxes 11 (107) (52)
REERAEBHREREF Profit after income taxes for the year 329 223
(L - Attributable to:

ZINNEL 33 Shareholders of the Company 268 190

FEFE SIS Non-controlling interests 61 33

329 223

AABIREEMGZ Earnings per share attributable to

ERaT shareholders of the Company 12

HARGENM ) Basic (HK cents) 17.0 12.0

w8 Bl ) Diluted (HK cents) 16.9 12.0
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BHES WE R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE2022F12A31BILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2022

Het
(U BFEE TAEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2022 2021
KEEBRFIEHZER Profit after income taxes for the year 329 223
Hpim e - Other comprehensive income:
TeEHHEEEREREZEE © Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
REMEZEAWSIE AR ERIE  Fair value change on financial asset at fair value
ZERMEEAREE through other comprehensive income 19 (1) 1
N B AT IEIE SIS E Exchange adjustments on translation of
E2REEHFE overseas subsidiaries which are attributed
to the non-controlling interests (15) -
A EHHEEEZEEIER ¢ Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
BB AT - —FA% AT Exchange adjustments on translation of
o RAwzREREH overseas subsidiaries, a joint venture and
branches (63) (31)
EEFREEWE Total comprehensive income for the year 250 193
FEAE - Attributable to:
RARRER Shareholders of the Company 204 161
FEFE S MR Non-controlling interests 46 32
250 193
30 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEERER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

Bt

(X BEETREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2022 2021
BE ASSETS
RBEE Current assets
RE NIRITETT Cash and bank balances 14 960 1,043
JE U B TR K2 EL Ath e U 3k Trade and other receivables 16 390 411
Fg Inventories 17 612 606
ME B FKIA Rental prepayments 18 4 3
REZERZALERE S Financial asset at fair value

TREE through profit or loss 15 6 -
Al Y B AT 1SR R Income tax recoverable 5 19
MEEEARE Total current assets 1,977 2,082
ERBEE Non-current assets
REMGERGZZ AR EREY Financial asset at fair value

EREE through other comprehensive

income 19 3 4

REZEEZARBEREZ Financial asset at fair value

TRIEE through profit or loss 15 28 28
Ze RHE MW Deposits and other receivable 16 73 117
—HEERaER Interest in a joint venture 20 490 513
wEYE Investment properties 21 18 22
ME - R N Property, plant and equipment 22 133 119
EAEEE Right-of-use assets 23 690 686
EES Goodwill 24 541 541
RIEHTEE E Deferred tax assets 32 55 96
ERBEEHE Total non-current assets 2,031 2,126
EEHAE Total assets 4,008 4,208
BEERES LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
nREEE Current liabilities
RITER Bank loans 29 12 68
JFE T BR SR N LA B 5 3R Trade and other payables 30 555 510
HEAE Lease liabilities 23 326 337
RERHEEEE Put option liabilities 31 81 81
JERTPTSHR Income tax payables 113 126
RBAERRE Total current liabilities 1,087 1,122
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EHEEREER(E)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

Hat

(XgEETREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2022 2021
FRBEME Non-current liabilities
RITER Bank loans 29 = 100
HERE Lease liabilities 23 287 300
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 32 112 123
FRBEEHETE Total non-current liabilities 399 523
EEAR Total liabilities 1,486 1,645
B K Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 25 79 79
& Reserves 28 2,001 2,165
R A% B Proposed dividends 13 237 158
PN/ Equity attributable to

FE{G = shareholders of the Company 2,317 2,402
FEI MR 2 Non-controlling interests 26 205 161
RSB Total equity 2,522 2,563
ERRkEBEEE Total equity and liabilities 4,008 4,208
BREBEE Net current assets 890 960
EEHBERARBERE Total assets less current

liabilities 2,921 3,086

2 E PREE
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
2 EF
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #

#



EHEERE R

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

B Z=2022F12 A3 HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2022
HiaF
(U B &EETAEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2022 2021
FEE ) Operating activities: 436 275
B TS R B Profit before income taxes
FE Adjustments for:
JE(H—FE& & R ElE A Share of profit of a joint venture 20 (36) (41)
REREIRARERE S8 Fair value gain on financial asset at fair value
BEZ AR ERE through profit or loss 6 (6) -
M2 TEN IR EE IS Amortization of rental prepayments 18 1 1
FEHA Interest income 6 (12) (12)
W - e NERE NIREYE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
e and investment properties 7, 21,22 47 52
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7, 23 393 442
HEWE  BRENREZ Net loss on disposal of property, plant and
FEE equipment 6 - 1
M - MR NERE 7 BERE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 7, 22 - 1
FHREEERERE Impairment of right-of-use assets 7, 23 3 13
e HEE = 2 BB Reversal of impairment of right-of-use assets 7, 23 (2) (11)
MRETFERERE LT EHME Net reversal of provision for obsolete stock and
FER stock written off 7 (4) (1)
FE U BR R IR B Change in loss allowance for trade receivables 7, 16 (2 (15)
BlREER Share option expense 9 - 7
BEEMA Finance expense 8 25 29
[E Exchange difference (24) (3)
LiEES - NMEKRFTSREE Operating cash inflow before changes in
Al 2 & ERERA working capital, interest and income taxes 819 738
T8 Increase in inventories (2) (171)
FEUNBR X & H b e U 3k 2 52> Decrease (increase) in trade and other
() receivables 54 (23)
FERBER R EAM NI ZIEH Increase in trade and other payables 40 -
KEEEFTEE RS Cash generated from operations 911 544
ERFE Interest paid (25) (29)
ENEENEH Hong Kong profits tax paid - (10)
B8N IE Overseas tax paid (76) (40)
REEECBERANFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 810 465
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EHRERER(E)
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

B ZE20226F 12 A31H L FE
For the year ended December 31, 2022
HiaF
(U B &EETAEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2022 2021
REXER : Investing activities:
BEYE  WENRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment 22 (66) (42)
HeEYE  WEEFZE S Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
KIB equipment 1 1
e RHEAM R B Decrease (increase) in deposits and other
(1 n) receivables 8 (43)
TS TERT IR 2 18 i1 Increase in rental prepayments 18 2 2)
RITEEIE R . (1A R (Increase) decrease in bank time deposits 14 (61) 23
24 F B Interest received 12 12
B —EE 2N al i E Dividends received from a joint venture 20 32 34
REXB 2RSSR FHE Net cash outflow from investing activities (76) (17)
mMEXEK Financing activities:
e MHE R Z /D Decrease in deposits and other receivable 1 23
EREEEHENK Leases payment for right-of-use assets (3) @)
MEBGBEY ARSI D 2T  Payment for principal elements of lease
liabilities 35 (402) (436)
BITIRAFT1S IR Proceeds from issue of shares 3 2
W An (Bl Share repurchase (3) -
EANE el £53 ¢S] Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (2) (32)
B Dividends paid (292) (212)
FILIEITER Addition of bank loans 35 44 81
EBIRITEN Repayment of bank loans 35 (199) (65)
MEXE2HESREFE Net cash outflow from financing activities (853) (641)
RERREEEZHD Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (119) (193)
FURERRESEEER Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 1,004 1,194
RERRELEIEERSE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
ZEE on cash and cash equivalents (25) 3
FRASRESEEER Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year 860 1,004
RERBLZELF2O4H  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
e RIRITHEF Cash and bank balances 14 960 1,043
B FRBE=1E A LA EB|H Less: Bank deposits with maturity over three
ZIRTES months, from date of deposit (100) (39)
860 1,004

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

T W E B AER LA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ARARRELRS
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

EHREZEH X

BE20226F12 A31BIEFE
For the year ended December 31, 2022

i
(HBEEETAEL) Share
(In HKS millon) capital

YRS
Contributed
surplus

EARERE
Capital
redemption
reserve

REE
Share
premium

BRERRE
Share
options
reserve

ELRRE
Exchange
reserve

HibfE
Other
reserves

REMEARE
RAMEREZ
EREERR
Financial asset
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income reserve

RSN
Retained
profits

SRt

it

Non-

A3t controlling
Total interests

ERiE
Total
equity

R0251A1H
At January 1, 2022 79

383

980

(21)

115

()

844

2,402

161

2,563

RERRAEREAER
Profit after income taxes for the year -
Afpals
Other comprehensive income:
-REBGEYRRAL EREL
SREERLENZ
Fair value change on financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive
income -
-EMBAT —RAERARADEAE
ZELHE
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries, a joint venture
and branches -

Smy

(63)

U]

268

268

Ul

(63)

61

(15)

329

U]

(78)

f5ehs
Total comprehensive income -

(63)

U]

268

204

46

250

HRERS
Transactions with shareholders:
FEEREg
Transfer among reserves -
Bt
Share option scheme

-BiRERERS T RS

Share issue upon exercise of share options -

FEIEERS
Dividends to non-controlling interests -
NNERBREMi131)
2021 final dividend (Note 13b)) -
2R ERE M 136)
2022 interim dividend (Note 15(a)) -
BRI (Hi2o)
Shares repurchased (Note 25(c)) -

@

(158)
(134

8

(158)
(134)

8

@

@
(158)
(134

8

ARAREHERAARIRRARES
Total contributions by and distributions to
shareholders of the Company -

@

(299)

(289)

@

(291)

ERRERS
Total transactions with shareholders -

@

(293)

(289)

@

(291)

R2022%12831R
At December 31, 2022 79

383

983

2

(84)

118

(6

819

2,317

205

2,522
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EHEZEBR(E)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

BE20226F12A31BILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2022

ARARFELER
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

REMEE NG
BARBREZ
Financial asset JEiEI
EREEGE BiREGE at fair value %
i H)\B& Capital RITEE Share 384 Efpkie through other Bl Non- BREE
(UBEATAEEL) Share  Contributed  redemption Share options Exchange Other  comprehensive Retained A& controling Total
(In HK$ millon) capital surplus reserve premium reserve reserve reserves income reserve profits Total interests equity

RO21E1A1H
At January 1, 2021 79 383 3 078 2% 9 141 (6) 859 2470 161 2,631

ARERRAERLER
Profit after income taxes for the year - - - - - - - - 190 190 3 223
Hivgraks
Other comprehensive income:
-REBGENERAL EREL
EREELLENRD
Fair value change on financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive
income - - - - - - - 1 - 1 - 1
-EIMBAR —RAERARADAAE
LEREE
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries, a joint venture
and branches - - - - - (30) - - - (30) 1) 1)

Sy

g5alE
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (30) - 1 190 161 32 193

HHERRS
Transactions with shareholders:
REHEE
Transfer among reserves - - - - [l - 1 - 7 1 - 1
B
Share option scheme
-BREER
Share option expense - - - - 7 - - - - 7 - 7
-RirieEREmETIRA
Share issue upon exercise of share options - - - 2 - - - - - 2 - 9
i ERRE
Dividends to non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - (32 (32)
TEBREN
Call option lapse - - - - - - 7 - - @1 - 27)
NERFRE Wit 13p)
2020 final dividend (Note 13b)) - - - - - - - - (109 (109) - (109)
NNERFRE (Wit 130)
2021 interim dividend (Note 13a)) - - - - - - - - (109) (103) - (108)

ARARFLERAARAREARES
Total contributions by and distributions to
shareholders of the Company - - - 2 - - (26) - (208) (229) (32) (261)

ERRELSH
Total transactions with shareholders - - - 2 - - (26) - (205) (229) (32) (261)

R2021512831R
At December 31, 2021 79 383 3 980 % 21) 115 () 844 2,402 161 2,563

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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FERNREBRER AR (TARAR]) REH
BRal(SiE I AKE])ERA—EH%HB
#71,900 [ /& #8130 38 1 30 % A B R & i
& 2 T &ML o H & iH & Giordano &
Giordano Junior - Giordano Ladies -
BSXEHMB A REELE 2 mhE -

RNAEIR1995F 3 A3 HIRE B F #1981
FRAVEEBREIMK I EREER
BEERAR] o HiM =& AR Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton,
Pembroke, HM11, Bermuda - E&#E T &
EEMMURBEBNERDEETTTETTI
JAREITERESE - ARRIZBRHEFER
ERBMERGMBR AT ([BRZA])ER
Em(R RS - 709) °

BREFRIGERRON » REHMBERERABE
BILAEN o k& I BEI®REE R2023
FIAOHEESES([EFT )IETIE -

TESTHE
RBRAABHYBREREANTEGIHK
RN T > BRRBARAI - FER
HEFHRABFERNERER -

(a) mMREE

REHHMBHRRIIRBE B G 5HED
rEg([BEgtMAg ) BEMZ
BEMBRELER(TEERBRE
R ) AREL o LS - A ERE
BB RES EHARR(T EHAR
A1) R B8 1 RIMGH AR T #O58 A 3%
BER - AEHUBHRRIZBESL
RAEmEL - EETEREENME
B(BRITETR)RAREFE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

GENERAL INFORMATION

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) distribute and sell
fashion apparel under the brand names of Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other
owned and licensed brands through an extensive network
with approximately 1,900 shops spanning over 30 countries
and regions.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on March 3,
1995 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, Pembroke, HM11, Bermuda. The address of its
principal place of business in Hong Kong is 5th Floor, Tin
On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company has its primary listing
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements have been presented
in million of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million) unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the board of directors (the
“Board”) on March 9, 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)
measured at fair value.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

TEESBE(E)

2.

(a)

(b)

(c)

mREXE(E)

EERE BN RS ER GRS
wEBTERE TER GGG -
ERENSR2ERBARE &5t
BEREEL A - TR ERE S
B REREE - REAHTH
WMEABALE 2 BRENE R M
AEAREE

HERKETZERNEE
AEBRAUTESSFEIAERE
2 KAERT 2 28I » WH2022F 1
A1Bs 2 Ba 2 AEB Y KRF
EAR

- FEIEER BEMBREE

PACTIE: 8]2018FE &
20205 A 2
FENR

- BAELFER NEHEEBE]

(BB

A8 )

F165% -

7R EBHE

WIS R 4

BIZE3% 2

BRI

R B ETE R B T R 8 5
4 58 [ ) £ TS B 5 A
R E KRS o

B9 45 18 1 R 4 3K 0 B 8 R4S
1537 > 28

ANERE I EAR AT E A& F O BME
) R A R FT I R AR(E R] 2 R
RMZFELER IS UAREEN
IS EEIMNBREATE

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

Impact of new and amended standard

The Group has applied the following amended
standards issued by HKICPA which were effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning on or after
January 1, 2022:

— Amendments to
Annual Improvements
Project

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018-
2020

— Amendments to
Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”)
16, HKAS 37
and HKFRS 3

Narrow-scope
amendments

The adoption of the above amendments to standards
did not result in substantial changes to the Group’s
accounting policies or financial results or position.

New and amended standards issued, but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the new and amended
standards that have been issued, but not yet to
become effective. The adoption of these are not
expected to have a material impact on the financial
results or position of the Group.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FEETEHRE)

(d) MIEBLR

(i)

B Bt
i8R B R A SEEIZ S Hi8
(BREBLER) EAX%

H%ﬁf%¥%2%@@ﬁ
AERER R Z BRI LS
Lﬁﬁ%Z%ﬁ%@%%@ﬁ
5 - BIERISIEHIHE - B
EEGIREREE KEIZEE
HE& AR o B QB EE
BEIEz BRREBIFAHAR -

EBEH

AEBRRBEEHERA G
AR - BEMB AR ERED
HE [AEEREE YR
BIOORMEAEENEE -
RSB BEITHRAE SR
RME - FEENHEBRSLEA
HBERMELNEMEEM
BENARE - EEBKAHT
B B Al SR R B B A K A
EMREREIBAE  BEMU
RERBEEBHN R A EE

=
= -°

REBRE R Y IBEEE - FER
FEW S B 77 RO SRR il 1 4
o WRE TR IR S s
RRFHEEEED  UHT
RAEA—BBRRIZIL IR
TRNFEE  TRAAERK
IR A R IR R
TR R B EMN R TR
FIMETE o FFIEHI LR AP
B H AR W E B HE
NAEFE - BRIFREVER
= ﬁﬂ'ﬁﬁibm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
EEHE -
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December 31, 2022

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries

(i)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. |ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognizes any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’ proportionate share
in the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

2. FEETEHRE)

(d) BT (&)
(i) &pF(E&E)
EBSO(E)

WIE R AR E LRI &5

oo

75 A 0F o b BUETT - BB
TTBERBIE T 758 Z B

BERWE RS

BREMIE - LEHAE
5 H IR 2 Yees & BRI N HE an

AR NHIERR o

P8 (& - wUIB 3k
22 1l M 2 e 1 MRS O (AT
ERERWERZ
AT iR & EFE
BIVEREEYIER - BEFN
WEZ BT - FrEdEyE
SRRt R EE
ZBER AR DR ETUE KT
BRRICEEFERAE =
BEERAHAMBERARER -

SEARFZENRS - &8k
MRS 2 RERNEG T IAY
o RERBRINT AL -
RIFZR D BARDEELZR
BIRHEE - B RR &5
BREF2RBENTEHEER
PARE R BN 5% [ P BR 4R 2 BOR

—3k o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)
Business combination (continued)

Acquisition related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognized in profit or
loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interests in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired are recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interests recognized and previously held interests
measured are less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized
directly in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FEETEHRE)

(d) MELQF (&)

(i)

& 6 (&)

TEHXEZHELHE L
Al B B

ARG B L IR PR A M A
TTERRERFIENR S
ANEREDRRXZ—EMEHE
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)

Change in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognized in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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B %% R M AL (AR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

2.

TEESBE(E)

(d) MELQF (&)

(i) BY MK ®/*K
B B8 2~ RAR B IR AN BRRUE
SR - RATBRERENE
ERBRA - MBARMNESE
HARRRIRE U N I B A
E—E o

R BB T R R A A B
NEMBEENE - RS
Y BHER MR E REER S
BHPBHRRPERERRF
BE(BRERE)MNIREE - 8
WAL B A RIRE (ERE R

CEV

(e) BEZRH

AEEEABEHBREERFE1
BNTERELH - REZBMB
WEERFE 1S - EELELTHHR
BNBRARKEREGLRR &
FELRREERENARENNE
e AEBEDHEES S LT
B YEEHSAERR - BERQ

AlfE AERAAR

REHEDE  AERBERIFIA
RAFER » HREHBEEMES
WP ERAAEEZE AN EAER
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EEBAEREGERANK -
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost, less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(e) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations
or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights
and obligations each investor have. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognized at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the
Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the joint ventures.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Joint arrangements (continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
senior decision makers. The senior decision-makers,
who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments,
have been identified as the directors and senior
management that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s companies are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the transaction dates or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognized
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
are included in other comprehensive income.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Group companies

(iv)

The results and financial position of all the Group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at balance sheet date;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average rate
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case,
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rate on transaction dates); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entities
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange
differences arising are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the equity holders of
the company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings, leasehold improvements and other
fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Cost represents the purchase price of the asset and
other costs incurred to bring the asset into its existing
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost over their estimated useful lives or lease term, as
follows:

- Freehold land is not amortized.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion.

- Leasehold improvements are depreciated over
the shorter of their estimated useful lives or lease
term.

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease or their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of

completion.
- Plant and equipment 5 years
- Other property and equipment 3 - 5 years
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i)

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Investment property

An investment property is a property which is held for
long term rental yield or for capital appreciation, or
both. It is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost
represents the purchase price of the investment
property and other costs incurred to bring the property
into its existing use. Depreciation of investment
property is calculated using straight-line method to
write off its cost over the unexpired period of the lease.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties are derecognized either when
they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising from derecognized of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognized.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

(k)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of non-controlling interests in the acquire and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquire over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognized immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest level for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) or through profit or loss),
and

- those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognized on the trade-date, the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

- Amortized cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortized cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognized directly in profit
or loss and presented in other gains (losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognized in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognized
in other gains (losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains (losses)
and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the income statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognized in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains (losses) in the period
in which it arises.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Financial assets (continued)
(iii) Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognized
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognized in other gains (losses) in
the income statement as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortized cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognized from initial recognition of the
receivables.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis. Cost of purchased goods is invoiced
prices plus procurement costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price at

which inventories can be sold in the normal course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognized at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less loss allowance.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within bank loans in current liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Bank loans

Bank loans are initially recognized at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently
stated at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the bank loans using the
effective interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Put option arrangements

The potential cash payments related to put options
issued by the Group over the equity of subsidiary
companies are accounted for as financial liabilities
when such options may only be settled other than
by exchange of a fixed amount of cash or at the fair
market value of the equity interest of the investees. The
amount that may become payable under the option on
exercise is initially recognized at amortized costs with
a corresponding charge directly to equity.

The Group recognizes the cost of writing such put
options, determined as the excess of the fair value
of the option over any consideration received, as a
financing cost. Such options are subsequently re-
measured at fair value as a result of the change in
the expected settlement amount at each balance
sheet date, with any resulting changes recognized
in the equity. In the event that the option expires
unexercised, the liability is derecognized with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are
incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalized
as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Current and deferred tax

0

(i)

Current tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries and regions where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Current and deferred tax (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred tax (continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference
can be utilized.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

(v) Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

Except for the pension scheme arrangements
in Taiwan, the Group operates defined
contributions schemes and, if applicable,
participates in central defined contribution
provident fund schemes for all qualified
employees. The assets of the said schemes
are held by independently administered funds
separated from those of the Group. Contributions
to these schemes are made by both the
employers and employees at rates up to 20% on
the employees’ salaries.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Pension obligations (continued)

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution plans and mandatory provident
fund scheme are expensed as incurred and, if
applicable, are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme or the
plan prior to vesting fully in the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been made.

The branch of wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group in Taiwan has a defined benefit scheme
(“Old Scheme”) governed by the Labor Standard
Law and a defined contribution scheme (“New
Scheme”) governed by the Labor Pension Act
which became effective on July 1, 2005.

Under the Old Scheme, the Group has an
obligation to ensure that there are sufficient
funds in the scheme to pay the benefits earned
for the service years of all employees before the
New Scheme was effective and the subsequent
service years of employees who chose to
continue to participate in the Old Scheme. The
branch currently contributes at 2% of the total
salaries of participating employees as determined
and approved by the relevant government
authorities. The assets of the Old Scheme are
invested by the Bank of Taiwan.

Under the New Scheme, the branch contributes
each month at 6% of the salary of employees,
with a cap of NTD9,000 who choose to
participate in the New Scheme into individual
pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor
Insurance.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognized as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).
Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. At
each balance sheet date, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognizes
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement and
a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised.

(w) Provisions

(x)

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts, rebates, returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognized when products
are sold to the customer. Retail sales are usually
in cash or by credit card. The recorded revenue
is the gross amount of sales, before netting off
credit card fees payable for the transactions.
Such fees are included in distribution costs.
Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates and
discounts.

Sales of goods — customer loyalty
programme (deferred revenue)

The Group operates a loyalty programme where
customers accumulate points for purchases
made which entitle them to discounts on future
purchases. A contract liability for the award
points is recognized at the time of sale. Revenue
is recognized when the points are redeemed or
when they expire 24 months after the initial sale.

A contract liabilities is recognized until the points
are redeemed or expired.

Sales of goods - wholesale

Sales of goods are recognized when products
are delivered to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method, taking into account the principal amount
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognized on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

109



110

B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

2.

TEESBE(E)

(x) WA®B(E)

(vii) 2R o HKA

He ko MBATIIZEE S5
NE#RENER -

(yy 828

AEEEHRELEAHAFRANE
ARHERRAFREEEMERE
mEfE -

ARAEREHEAKEY MIEE
SRS c AEEENSHEAR
P al > B 3E T E MR ER 0 ) BB B
IR LL )0 B S R EHE -

HEEANEENBERBEET

st E - HEAEBENUTHEE
Hmm@ﬁﬁ-
. lxﬁﬁ (BREEEEN
) R ERERNEEE
E;

ToN

o  ENIEHEELLEHEMAEME
ENZ - KAEEHRAEEN
B RETVLE ¢

o AEBEREBHEEREEN
FIEER

s AEEAEBESITENEE
EERENITEER &

. EESHRBRBAEEETE
EIBROBR TR EE O
o5 o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

(y)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(vii) Rental and sub-lease rental income

Rental and sub-lease rental income is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

Leases (continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the Group, which does not have recent
third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability
is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use
asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

(2)

Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognized on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (Note 6). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognized as expense over the lease term on the
same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(aa) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognized in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial
risks: (a)(i) foreign exchange risk, (a)(ii) credit risk, (a)
(iii) liquidity risk, (a)(iv) cash flow interest rate risk, (b)
capital risk management and (c) fair value estimation.
The Group’s overall risk management program seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to manage certain risk exposure when
necessary.

(a) Financial risk factors

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognized
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency.

As at year end, the foreign exchange risk of
the Group mainly arises from purchases from
a Renminbi-based supply chain and sales
proceeds in local currencies of the relevant
group entities. Foreign exchange risk arising from
recognized assets and liabilities is considered
to be insignificant. This is due to the balances
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity
are generally settled promptly leaving minimal
outstanding foreign currency position as at the
balance sheet date.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities, companies in the Group may use
forward foreign exchange contracts when major
fluctuation in the relevant foreign currency is
anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group is primarily
attributable to balances with bank, trade and
other receivables and rental deposits. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to financial assets. The credit risk
on deposits with banks is limited as the Group
mainly places the deposits in banks with high
credit rating.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, bank
transfer, through credit cards or through
reputable and dispersed department stores. The
Group’s credit sales are only made to wholesale
and franchise customers, with an appropriate
credit history and on credit terms of 30 to
90 days. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows the major types of
debtors of the Group as at December 31, 2022
and 2021.

(A BFEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
EESPE Counterpart:
BEAR Department stores 129 134
INEREE Franchisees 59 82
fE U= B RER Credit card

receivables 18 12
HA Others 23 14
JEUBR IR (Kat16) Trade receivables

(Note 16) 229 242
¥x Landlords 145 166

374 408

FE U5 AR 5% Trade receivables

AEBERTEVERELER
FORMEZBETTE  EA
ATE P B 5 R SE A TR
AHERFHERREE - REtE
BHEEER  BURREE
AREERBRFEM DA

ERRYEERFT  BFHEES
RE QA R A R B 5
o MEBERREERRT
= o REBEZEHTFHER
REBR -  ERETIERZ
FRWERNEEEZ KD
#e IRREBHEERR
BN - e T5E BRI RRER
BESERAEEER -
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The Group applies the simplified approach to
providing for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on share
credit risk characteristics.

For the trade receivables, the counterparties
primarily are large corporation and have
strong financial position and management
considers the credit risk is not high. The
Group maintains frequent communications
with these counterparties. Management has
closely monitored the credit qualities and the
collectability of these receivables and consider
that the expected credit risks of them are minimal
in view of the history of cooperation with them
and forward looking information.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables

The directors of the Group consider the
probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis during
the year. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk the Group compares risk of
a default occurring on the assets as at year end
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. Especially the following indicators
are incorporated:

° Actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the company’s ability
to meet its obligations;

o Actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the company;

o Significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the company,
including changes in the payment status of
the third party.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment/repayable demand.

A default on a financial asset when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments/
repayable demanded within 365 days of when
they fail due.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. Over the term of the
financial assets, the Group accounts for its credit
risk by appropriately providing for expected
credit losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of debtors,
and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic
data.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

As at December 31, 2021 and 2022,
management consider other receivables
as low credit risk as counterparties have a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. The Group
has assessed that the expected credit losses
for other receivables and the loss allowance
provision recognized during the year for these
balances is not material.

Liquidity risk
The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient banking facilities and cash

and cash equivalents, which is generated from
the operating cash flow and financing cash flow.

As at December 31, 2022 and December 31,
2021, all of the Group’s and Company’s financial
liabilities are due within one year, except to note
followings:

15%
B5% R BaH
After BehE
15/%  oneyear  5ELIE Total RAE
Within  but within Over contractual  Carrying
(UEEETREN) (In HK$ million) oneyear fiveyears fiveyears cashflows  amount
R2022512R31H As at December 31, 2022
HERRE Leas liabilities 344 295 3 642 613
20215124318 As at December 31, 2021
BITERFERD) Bank loans (non-current) 1 100 - 101 100
HERR Lease liabilities 354 306 5 665 637
355 406 5 766 737
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(iv) Cash flow interest rate risk

Except for the bank balance of HK$960 million
(2021: HK$1,043 million) and bank loan of HK$12
million (2021: HK$168 million); the Group has
no other significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities. The bank balance and bank borrowings
at floating rate expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is insignificant to the
Group. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact resulted from the
changes in interest rates.

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern as well as maximizing returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group’s capital structure consists of equity, cash
and bank balances and bank loans as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to improve the capital structure, the Group
may raise long term debts, adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders and issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital by maintaining a net cash
position throughout the year. Net cash positions is
calculated by cash and bank balances net of interest
bearing bank loans. As at December 31, 2022, the
Group maintained a net cash position of HK$948
million (2021: HK$875 million).
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202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation
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Financial instruments that are measured at fair value
are disclosed by the level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
date of the statement of financial position. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximize the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2. No financial instrument is included
in Level 2 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021.
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December 31, 2022
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3.

The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI and FVPL
measured at fair value are included in Level 1 and level
3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 19 and
15).

As at December 31, 2022, if there had been a 5%
increase/decrease in the fair value of financial asset
at FVOCI and financial asset at FVPL with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s equity would have
increased/decreased by HK$0.2 million (2021: HK$0.2
million) and net profit would have increased/decreased
by HK$1.7 million (2021: HK$1.4 million).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(i)

(i)

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated
selling prices in the ordinary course of business
less estimated selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in economic conditions in places where the
Group operates and changes in customer taste and
competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates
at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of assets (other than investments
in debt instruments and trade and other
receivables)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased:

Property, plant and equipment;

Right-of-use assets;

Interest in a joint venture; and
- Goodwill.

The sources utilized to identify indications of
impairment are often subjective in nature and the
Group is required to use judgement in applying such
information to its business. The Group’s interpretation
of this information has a direct impact on whether an
impairment assessment is performed as at the end of
any given reporting period.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of assets (other than investments
in debt instruments and trade and other
receivables) (continued)

If an indication of impairment is identified, such
information is further subject to an exercise that
requires the Group to estimate the recoverable
amount, representing the greater of the asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal or its value in use.
Depending on the Group’s assessment of the overall
materiality of the asset under review and complexity
of deriving a reasonable estimate of the recoverable
amount, the Group may perform such assessments
utilizing internal resources or the Group may engage
external advisors to counsel the Group. Regardless
of the resources utilized, the Group is required to
make many assumptions to make these assessments,
including the utilization of such asset, the cash flows
to be generated, appropriate market discount rates
and the projected market and regulatory conditions.
Changes in any of these assumptions could result in a
material change to future estimates of the recoverable
amount of any asset.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s historical experience with similar assets. The
depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are
material changes from previous estimates.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(iv) Fair value of written put option liabilities

(v)

Certain of the Group’s business combination activities
involved put options issued by the Group over the
equity of subsidiary companies. The Group recorded
such written put option liabilities at their fair values
which are determined in accordance with the terms
under those relevant agreements and with reference
to the estimated post-acquisition performance of
the acquired subsidiaries. Judgement is required to
determine key assumptions (such as growth rate,
margins and discount rate) adopted in the estimation
of post-acquisition performance of the acquired
subsidiaries. Changes to key assumptions can
significantly affect the amounts of future liabilities.
Put option liabilities shall be remeasured at their fair
value resulting from events or factors emerged after
the acquisition date, with any resulting changes
recognized in the equity.

Recoverability of trade receivables

Provision for expected credit losses is made when the
Group does not expect to collect all amounts due.
The provision is determined by grouping together
trade debtors with similar risk characteristics and
collectively or individually assessing them for likelihood
of recovery. The provision reflects lifetime expected
credit losses i.e. possible default events over the
expected life of the trade receivables, weighted by the
probability of that default occurring. Judgement has
been applied in determining the level of provision for
expected credit losses, taking into account the credit
risk characteristics of customers and the likelihood
of recovery assessed on a combination of collective
and individual basis as relevant. While the provision is
considered appropriate, changes in estimation basis or
in economic conditions could lead to a change in the
level of provision recorded and consequently on the
charge or credit to profit or loss.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Determination of lease term and discount rate

In determining the lease term, management considers
all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not
exercise a termination option. Extension options (or
periods after termination options) are only included
in the lease term if the Group has enforceable right
to extend the lease term and the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not terminated). Potential
future cash outflows have not been included in the
lease liability because it is not reasonably certain that
the leases will be extended (or not terminated).

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or
a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects this assessment and that is within the control of
the lessee.

In determining the discount rate, the Group is required
to exercise considerable judgement in relation to
determine the discount rates by taking into account
the nature of the underlying assets and the terms and
conditions of the leases, at both the commencement
date and the effective date of the modification.
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SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on
its development strategies and operational control. There
are two major operating segments: Retail and Distribution
and Wholesales to Overseas Franchisees. Management
manages the Retail and Distribution operating segment
geographically and by brand.

Geographically, the Retail and Distribution operating
segment in Mainland China and the Gulf Cooperation
Council (the “GCC”) comprise both direct-operated stores
and franchised stores. Hong Kong and Macau, Taiwan,
Southeast Asia and Australia do not have material local
franchised stores. Group stores span most of Southeast
Asia and the GCC.

As for brands, the Group presently operates Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other
owned and licensed brands.

Adjusted EBITDA is profit before finance expense, income
taxes, impairment of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment, depreciation and amortization,
share of profit of a joint venture and unallocated corporate
items. Segment results are before finance expense, share
of profit of a joint venture, income taxes and unallocated
corporate items. This is the measurement basis reported
to management and the senior decision-makers for the
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

5, HEHEREESM(E) 5. SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)
AREBzZEDIHERE ML L HmF (E Analysis of sales and operating profit (loss) of the Group’s
BIRWE 7 TR o operating segment by geographic regions is as follows.
2022
Exp=3))
R AR MR
RED EXAHE 3
BER RRM ZEE®  Wholesale
B KR 1] Southeast Gulf to
Mainland HK and 4% Asiaand Cooperation Overseas &5t
(UBEEETAEN) (In HK$ million) China Macau  Taiwan Australia Council  Franchisees Total
HEH Sales 668 286 466 1,444 635 300 3,799
TABEBTDA Adjusted EBITDA (16) 9% 89 460 217 45 889
FEREH Depreciation and amortization
—fERiEEE - Right-of-use assets (34) (74) (47) (144) (94) - (393)
-ME BERRENRENE — Property, plant and equipment
and investment properties ()] ()] (5) (21) (11) = (47)
BE Impairment
—fEmEEE - Right-of-use assets @ = > ) = - ®)
RERER Reversal of impairment
—ERiEEE - Right-of-use assets = - - ) - - 2
DHEE Segment results (60) 18 37 296 112 45 448
BEm Corporate functions (23)
HEER Finance expense (25)
EE—-AagRaRH Share of profit of a joint venture 36
AR ADRR Profit before income taxes 436
126 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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December 31, 2022

5. SHEHEREESIH(A) 5. SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)
2021
g5
iy (O] mEHZ
REE BZ A s
BER RN Z8g Wholesale
REARE A Southeast Gulf to
Mainland HK and 4%  Asiaand  Cooperation Overseas A%
(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) China Macau  Taiwan  Australia Council  Franchisees Total
HEHE Sales 766 355 496 1,044 525 194 3,380
T HEEBITDA Adjusted EBITDA 32 88 106 320 174 38 758
FEREHE Depreciation and amortization
—fEmiEEE - Right-of-use assets (42) (102) (54) (158) (86) - (442)
-M%  BERBHEARENE — Property, plant and equipment
and investment properties (10) ) () (23) (11) - (52)
B Impairment
—EmiEEE - Right-of-use assets @ ) - @ - - (13)
RER TIE - Property, plant and equipment - - - (1) _ - (1)
RERER Reversal of impairment
—FREEE - Right-of-use assets 3 4 - 3 1 - 1
NEEE Segment results (21) (14) 47 133 78 38 261
nEEa Corporate functions 0
BEER Finance expense (29)
EE—FEa2RaEH Share of profit of a joint venture 4
BRFTE B AR R Profit before income taxes 075

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % # e mEma R~ 127



128

B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

5. HEBEREEIH(A) 5.

NRIEEID 2 TR HEIED B2
—HHIT -

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

Further analysis of the Retail and Distribution operating
segment by brand is as follows.

2022 2021

KRR TR

$§E% Operating HE®E  Operating

(U BEETREN) (In HK$ million) Sales profit Sales profit
TERDH Retail and Distribution

Giordano K Giordano Junior Giordano and Giordano Junior 2,926 306 2,681 166

Giordano Ladlies Giordano Ladlies 246 34 251 30

BSX BSX 8 - 24 -

Hit Others 319 63 230 27

3,499 403 3,186 223

KARIEHRES - ERHBRBRM (B
TERMBEE ) BEGHIINRF ZHER
A5.86188 70 (20214 : 5491878 7T)
AR B K FE 56.681E 87T (20214F : 7.66
BATL)  MREMTSHIINER ZHE
%8 525.4518 4 T (20214 : 20.6518 8
JL) °

DELZ 2 tHE 58 A9.83918 % 7T (2021
F 9 11EBIL)E FTAEHEEE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

The Company has its domicile in Hong Kong. Sales to
external customers recorded in Hong Kong and Macau
(including retail and wholesale sales) are HK$586 million
(2021: HK$549 million), Mainland China HK$668 million
(2021: HK$766 million) and external customers from other
markets HK$2,545 million (2021: HK$2,065 million).

Inter-segment sales of HK$939 million (2021:
HK$91 1million) have been eliminated upon consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HERREEDI(EA)

REKEZFSHRERA3008E T
(20214 : 40088 T) r BB KRB A
5008870 (20214  800&/B7L) * A&
BT7008 78 T (20214 : 50088 T)
B Ss KORIN A7,2008 7 7T (2021 £ -
2,200887C) * MEEMMNBRREE
ZEEA7008ET(20214F : 30088
JL) °

AEBZBERWESI D 20T e

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

Income taxes charged related to Mainland China was HK$3
million (2021: HK$4 million), Hong Kong and Macau HK$5
million (2021: HK$8 million), Taiwan was HK$7 million
(2021: HK$5 million), Southeast Asia and Australia HK$72
million (2021: HK$22 million) and the GCC HK$7 million
(2021: HK$3 million).

Analysis of the Group’s assets by geographic regions is as
follows.

PWEE
Segment assets
(B EETAEEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
DEEE Segment assets
R 20 RORM Southeast Asia and Australia 1,216 1,041
FEMNARREELZES Gulf Cooperation Council 1,019 923
BB KB Hong Kong and Macau 559 739
rh B K Mainland China 399 573
43 Taiwan 233 291
3,426 3,567
—MFeaE A r R Interest in a joint venture 490 513
REMEEREEANERELZ Financial asset at fair value
TRIEE through other comprehensive
income 3 4
RERBREAAEERE Y Financial asset at fair value
TREE through profit or loss 34 28
RIERIAE E Deferred tax assets 55 926
EEHSE Total assets 4,008 4,208

RemTAEMEEHBEEN  RES
MBMZIERBEEREAS1.94EE T
(20214 : 2,098 L) » R KEEA
6,1008 78 7T (20214 : 1.01B#E L) ;
MR E T35 A416.901E % 7T (20214 -
16.881B8 L) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #

The total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong
and Macau was HK$194 million (2021: HK$209 million);
Mainland China, HK$61 million (2021: HK$101 million); and
other markets, HK$1,690 million (2021: HK$1,688 million).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

6. HAREMWE  H F8

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET

(A BEETRER) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
SR = PN Royalty income 30 29
IR AT 6 B Government grants 12 38
A EWA Interest income 12 12
e koHEBA Rental and sub-lease rental
income 7 7
REZREAAEREBZEMEEY Fair value gain on financial asset
N ERE at fair value through profit or
loss 6 -
& B A Dividend income 3 3
HEMZE - #ERZEZFER Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - (1)
REMEEE Claims and compensation 2 16
b 5 518 % 5 Net exchange loss (8) 6)
EAh Others 12 20
72 118

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATElVIENTS (contlnued)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

7. REGR 7. OPERATING PROFIT
s M E R (FEA) ¢ Operating profit is after charging (crediting):
(ABEBTRENL) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
SHER K Cost of sales
FEIHEMNR Cost of inventories sold 1,657 1,451
BEGERERE RS M TS Net reversal of provision for obsolete
stock and stock written off (4) (1)
1,653 1,450
DHEER Distribution expense
8 TR A Staff cost 580 579
rEx Depreciation expenses
—(FREEE — Right-of-use assets 377 426
/ER B — Property, plant and equipment 42 47
THREFIEEER Rentals in respect of land and
building
- HEAETH — Minimum lease payments 62 63
—HREEEH - Contingent rent 172 147
METEE - Building management fee,
BT AR & 2= i government rent and rates and
NREXER utilities 100 103
BEEE  HER Advertising, promotion and
/%QEME i incentives 91 93
K Rig Packaging and deliveries 53 50
ﬁEﬁ&%Fﬁ N E Bank and credit card charges 26 23
BB ) Impairment
—FREEE - Right-of-use assets 3 13
o/ ERN R — Property, plant and equipment - 1
A E R Reversal of impairment
—EREEE - Right-of-use assets (2 (11)
FEN IR BB R E Change in loss allowance for trade
receivables (2) 9)
Hth Others 92 79
1,594 1,604
THER Administrative expense
BIHA Staff cost 132 128
e ) Depreciation expenses
—EREAE - Right-of-use assets 16 16
¥ EERRENIREME — Property, plant and equipment
and investment properties 5 5
EEREEER Legal and professional fee 14 9
ZER M e Auditor's remuneration 6 6
B S Computer and telecommunication 5 6
ZIRE Travelling 2 2
B REAMRIE Business and other taxes 1 1
THREFZHEEER Rentals in respect of land and
building
—E—ﬁi‘ﬂ/i*fiﬁ - Minimum lease payments 1 -
FEN IR BB R R Change in loss allowance for trade
receivables - (6)
HAh, Others 17 14
199 181

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

8. MEEH 8. FINANCE EXPENSE
(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
TE‘*EF%'J B Interest on lease liabilities 25 27
TERHE Interest on bank loans - 2
25 29
9. BEIMAK 9. STAFF COSTS
(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
FekIB(BEESEHE) Salaries and wages (including
Directors’ emoluments) 653 640
ElEE R Share option expense - 7
BRE—REHRETE Pension cost —
defined contribution plans 59 60
712 707
KREEBR  AEBEHEBRAKGESETRZ During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by the
(20214 ) BURE AR KE o A Group to reduce the level of contributions (2021: Nil). As at
2022F k2021E12H31H » 8B Ak December 31, 2022 and 2021, no unvested benefits were
FERZ RAESERHETN o available to be utilized in future years.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BB mRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

10. EERENER 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) EEM £ (a) Directors’ emoluments
EEHEY Ex
Bfgaee BHREMT
Performance- Employer's
based”  Efbl#E'  contribution
e #4 Discretionary Other  to pension A3t
ESfF Name of Directors Fees Salaries bonuses®® benefits? schemes  Total
BT BETn BEFr  EETT BEFr BEfr
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2022
2 B et LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter®t - 3,709 9,659 1,757 - 15,125
REg CHAN Ka Wait - 2,372 2,000 118 18 4,508
S Mark Alan LOYND? - 2138 1,300 17 18 3578
gEm CHENG Chi Kong'" 183 g - - - 183
RS CHAN Sai Cheong"" 183 - 5 - - 183
KA Barry John BUTTIFANT* 420 - - - - 420
BEF KWONG Ki Chi*® 150 - - - - 150
&l WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu)* 390 - - - - 390
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* 370 - - - - 370
BRR" TSANG On Yip, Patrick? 17 - - - - 17
T LEE Chi Hin, Jacob® 17 - - - - 17
1,730 8,219 12,959 1,992 36 24,936
2021
EE LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter't - 3,676 6,368 1753 - 1797
kR CHAN Ka Wai* - 2,356 1,500 305 18 4179
BE Mark Alan LOYND® - 2,165 1,000 298 18 3,481
g5 CHENG Chi Kong" 200 - - - _ 200
Rt CHAN Sai Cheong’ 200 - - - - 200
KA Barry John BUTTIFANT* 420 - - - - 420
BHEE KWONG Ki Chi* 360 - - - - 360
B WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu)* 390 - - - - 390
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* 370 - - - - 370
1,940 8,197 8,868 2,356 36 21,397
* FERITHREE t Chairman and Chief Executive
a BITESE A Executive directors
" EMITES " Non-executive directors
* WY IEITES * Independent non-executive directors
# Hilh S BE RN - BRE - B # Other benefits include insurance premium, share options,
EiERL BB N TR (T H A housing allowances, other allowances and benefits in kind
Wz 1) (“Other Benefits”)
o REEFTEICAUR AT DB L R FTAE ® Performance-based bonus is determined based on profit
sharing ratio
oo BEYEMETEALIRE A 9 Bl bk R FE SR o¢  Discretionary bonus is determined based on profit sharing
TE 2% F| B AR E A R TR E ratio or pre-determined achievement rate of profit targets
1 MR2022F 12 A1HEBH T AIERITES 1 Resigned as Non-executive Director on December 1, 2022
2 R2022F 12 S1BE X AIRITESE 2 Appointed as Non-executive Director on December 1, 2022
8 %\\?22@5% 20 BT BB IERTT 8 Retired as Independent non-executive Director on May 20,
2022

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

10. EENFENMER(H) 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)
(a) EEME(E) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
RAFEAN - MESZNF2MEE The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to
BT Directors of the Company during the year is as follows:
(BB FrimiElsr) (In HK$'000) 2022 2021
e Fees 1,730 1,940
Efle - Other emoluments:
EXFHek Basic salaries and
Hfth U 2 other benefits 10,211 10,553
RIRSETEIER Contribution to pension
schemes 36 36
EIETE BB MEA Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 12,959 8,868

24,936 21,397

(b) ENESFHFBE (b) Five highest paid individuals
RAFEEAN  NEBRUKSH B The five individuals whose emoluments were the
SR IE3A (20214  3f)EE - highest in the Group for the year include 3 (2021:
EME o FBER EXHE - AF 3) Directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
EA - T2 (20214F : 26 ) &= analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to
FRMEZENMESNT the remaining 2 (2021: 2) individuals during the year
are as follows:
(LGB T T8 ) (In HK$'000) 2022 2021
EXFHek Basic salaries and
H e other benefits 4,984 5118
RIREET B Contribution to pension
schemes 95 93
FEFE BT Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 5,008 3,327
10,087 8,538
134 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

10. EEMRNZNERS (F) 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(b) ARESHEHRE (&) (b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)
ST RS 8 RH< AR S5 m The emoluments of the remaining highest paid
- : a ’ B individuals fell within the following bands:
A
4 48 B Number of individuals
Emolument bands 2022 2021
B
HK$
3,000,001-4,000,000 - 1
4,000,001-5,000,000 1 1
5,000,001-6,000,000 1 -
(c) MEE - ZZEEEEHMNE (c) Information about loans, quasi-loans and
ANBEEREZEENEETEZIE other dealings in favour of Directors,
HPYEF  EEZNMEMKZS controlled bodies corporate by and
B & R connected entities with such Directors
NNTEEET S S FE AR T E There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
E g AREEETE AR AHE in favour of the Directors, their controlled bodies
NEZEEEEBHENTEAS corporate and connected entities for disclosure
BAZES  EERREMITS pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong
EFEIRIEEE QA K55 383(1)(d) Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of 622G (2021: Nil).
RN E62GEE =—HMOIFHEE
(20214F : f&) o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

11. ff 8
EEFNERBREAFE 2 T ERR
i M3 16.5% (20214 : 16.5% ) 2 Fi &
S8 - BEUINGF 2 BEATER T i%
Bl ayEtEEA 2 Rt E o

11.

INCOME TAXES

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year. Income taxes on profits assessable outside Hong
Kong are calculated at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.

(X BEETRENN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
KEEMRBHR Current income taxes
BHE Hong Kong 2 5
BB AN Outside Hong Kong 62 32
BEFEBRBEREE Over provision in
prior years (5) Q)
HgiE Withholding taxes 12 20
71 54
EERFBH Deferred income taxes
REMERE T4 R#EE Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 36 2)
107 52

T H T BREAFEREEEERAIZFT
5%i1,2008 /8 L (20214 : 1,3008 8
T0) c REHFBERP ZEME—FEEEA
A A TR Z AE R IEE 2 TS
AR o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

This charge excludes the share of joint venture’'s income
taxes of HK$12 million (2021: HK$13 million) for the year.
The share of profit of a joint venture in the consolidated
income statement is after income taxes accrued in the
appropriate income tax jurisdictions.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fr 18
BREBREMAE 2 NEBRTENA
EAM PSR Z AERT o

(%) 11.

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

INCOME TAXES (continued)

Reconciliation of the Group’s profit before income taxes at
the tax rate of Hong Kong to the income tax charges is as
follows.

(X BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
B P15 55 A 71 Profit before income taxes
(TBEEM—HEEEQREH) (before share of profit of

a joint venture) 400 234
TSR R 16.5%(20214F : 16.5% )T & Calculated at an income tax rate

of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) 66 39
HEMBERTRAHRE 2 Effect of different tax rates in

other regions (6) (3)
TR 2 X Expenses not deductible for

tax purposes 4 4
BT & E MR Deferred tax assets written

down 23 -
RERIELERIAE E Deferred tax assets not

recognized 29 16
BERNZ A Income not subject to tax (16) (18)
FRERAEGERZHE Utilization of previously

unrecognized tax losses - 3)
MatiiE Withholding tax 12 20
BEFEBERE Over provision in prior years (5) 3)
B H Income tax charges 107 52
BRAEF 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ERERLBERF DIRAKEE QA
BMERERGAERERF268EE T
(2021 : 19018 T )stE -

EREARBRNDIEAFEANB TR
7 2 N R 9 A #101,579,840,419 %
(2021 : 1,578,188,266% )5t &

BREERF NIEFREEITRG Z M
7 19 B% 81,579,840,419 A% (2021 -
1,578,188,266 8% ) N _ER& IR IE AR 7]
BRI E 2 TA W RTE E AR
EEITHE M EIT 2 D 2 D SRR B
9,526,750/% (2021:6,738,4460% )51 & -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on the profit after income taxes attributable to
shareholders of the Company for the year of HK$268 million
(2021: HK$190 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted
average of 1,579,840,419 shares (2021: 1,578,188,266
shares) in issue during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average of 1,579,840,419 shares (2021:
1,578,188,266 shares) in issue during the year by the
weighted average of 9,526,750 shares (2021: 6,738,446
shares) deemed to be issued if all outstanding share options
granted under the share option schemes of the Company
had been exercised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

13. KB
(a) XEEREWMT :

(U BEFTAEN)

(a)

13. DIVIDENDS

Dividends attributable to the year:

(In HK$ million) 2022 2021

BEIR 2T K E ASKS.5H8L
(20214 : &6.5%810)

REEREERIKRBRER
FAX15.071/0
(20214 : &M10.0/81L)

Interim dividend declared

and paid of 8.5 HK cents

per share (2021: 6.5 HK

cents per share) 134 103
Final dividend proposed

after the balance sheet

date of 15.0 HK cents

per share (2021: 10.0 HK

cents per share) 237 158

371 261

P2023F389H  EEE@EE A
B AEFR15.081 - BEFENERE
ARABREFFRG EBERER
Mo WERRKREELEE AT &
ERABE KRB ZEEIE
RIRERZAARBEITRMHEE
FTE o

(b) BRE-—FE AREFFER
CHERKENRE :

(B EBTRENL)

(b)

On March 9, 2023, the Board has recommended a
final dividend of 15.0 HK cents per share and is subject
to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed
dividend has not been recognized as a liability at the
balance sheet date. The amount of proposed dividend
was based on the shares of the Company in issue as at
the reporting date.

Dividends attributable to the previous year,
approved and paid during the year:

(In HK$ million) 2022 2021

2 KRR EE2021 F AR AR S A
FA%10.071L
(2020 : &M%6.9/81l)

2021 final dividend
approved and paid of
10.0 HK cents per share
(2020: 6.9 HK cents per
share) 158 109

2021 FERHAIMR B W AR AR
2022 6 A2H 7 BB 1T (D B EUK
F o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

38 s s nmmrsRrR LA

The payment for 2021 final dividend was based on the
total number of issued shares of the Company on June
2,2022.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

14. BERBITHERE 14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(ABEEETHEENT) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
WeENREE Cash and cash equivalents 860 1,004
FRERBR=(EAN LR RITER Bank deposits with maturity
over three months from
date of deposits 100 39
960 1,043
AEBUEZ2BRERRTEFEREEFE Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group were
0.97BB L (20214F : 1,56 L) Z A cash and bank balances totaling HK$97 million (2021:
REHE© MIRITHETF HK$156 million) denominated in Renminbi.
AEBFTHERNERNELSEF42% The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the Group
(20214 1 1.8%) » EXRZEGFHZ was 4.2% (2021: 1.8%) per annum; these deposits have an
FIHAEAR 0B —E A - average maturity of around 1 month as at year end.
15. AEZEREBR AR EBEEE 2E€mMEE 15. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

BamK
Preference Hity a5

(UBEETAEN) (In HK$ million) Shares Other Total
R2021F1 /418 - Fair value at January 1, 2021,

2021F12A318 & December 31,2021 and

2022F1A1HZ AR(E January 1, 2022 28 - 28
8 0 Additions - 6 6
R2022F12 8310 2 Fair value at December 31,

ARE 2022 28 6 34
R ERER Current portion = (6) (6)
KHIE D Non-current portion 28 - 28

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

15.

REZEREZEAABEEEBECZSHMEE
(#&)

MN2008F 6 A27TH » AEBEFLE
= 1 # & % Placita Holdings Limited
(I'Placita])21.0%# % © RIFZHE -
6,055,440 EBMBR R R A EEF A &
T30.0%E 1T 2R ABRE W EF DL
/56,055,440 I Placita 2 18 4t I& ([ 18 %
A& 1) o o REBAHETFELERZ
o B o

ZBEERERAHEHAEENBRRNUR
RERE - AREEREFRGEE R
HRERZBFFRABLEXMAEER
AIEHT A o

REBEREAREREZEREELZR
REZEHENEHFABERLCESEAMI
A o

EHREERONERRRANEREZ
TREEAAEERBEURATR R
ERYUZRENSEARTAIBEMS L
BMENER(TAIBRRA)  REFE
MBHREERNEISHENRABNERD
BRE=R-

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

15. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

On June 27, 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of its 21.0% interest
in Placita Holdings Limited (“Placita”). As part of the
agreement, 6,055,440 ordinary shares representing the
Group’s remaining 30.0% of the total issued share capital of
Placita were redesignated into 6,055,440 preference shares
of Placita (the “Preference Shares”). Furthermore, the Group
was granted a put option on the Preference Shares.

The Preference Shares and the related options are
measured at FVPL. The fair value has been and will be re-
assessed by an independent professional valuation firm at
year end and the end of each subsequent period.

Changes in the fair values of financial asset at FVPL are
recorded in other income in the consolidated income
statement.

The fair value of the financial asset at FVPL in respect of
Preference Shares are determined based on discounted
cash flow, using inputs that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs), which is categorized as
Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS
13.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

16. FE W BR R H {t /& L K 16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(A GEFETAHEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
FEWLBR FK Trade receivables 229 242
o BEEE Less: Loss allowance (42) (45)
FEM R FOFE(E Trade receivables, net 187 197
Hin ek - BiEiT2 Kk Other receivables, including

AT RIE deposits and prepayments 203 214
JFE U5 B R K LA FE KUK Trade and other receivables 390 411
e R HME UK Deposits and other receivables 73 117
EWEERTERE MBS  RELER Trade receivables mainly comprise amounts due from
NEERRIZEERA - REBEESR franchisees, licensees and retail proceeds due from
EN T4 FI0E0REER - FEWEER department stores. The Group normally allows a credit
NEMEWHZ BREEREL R EES © period of 30-90 days. The carrying amounts of trade and

other receivables approximate to their fair values.

(a) BRER DT (a) Ageing analysis
MEBEEZEHFTEHNMREERE KRR Ageing analysis from the invoice date net of loss
DT = allowance is as follows:
(A BEBETREN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
0%30A 0 - 30 days 145 144
31E60H 31 - 60 days 26 33
61290H 61 — 90 days 6 13
#90H Over 90 days 10 7
187 197
EREEZEREDBHNERZH - There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
WEBEBRERLEEPEZEE trade receivables as the Group has a large number of
[B\ Bz o internationally dispersed customers.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

16. RUERF R b U =k (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

AR 2 A7 (&)

R2022%F12 A31H » # B I &
B E 2 B UBR 3% 4 3,000 & 7 T
(20214 : 3,700&#7T) - M&ET
ERRPEROWEZRRCE - R
BEREAS S ZREROTOT ¢

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis (continued)

As at December 31, 2022, trade receivables of HK$30
million (2021: HK$37 million) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of customers for
whom there has been no recent history of default.
Their ageing analysis from the due date is as follows:

(B EBTREL) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
0&30H 0 - 30 days 11 21
#30H Over 30 days 19 16
30 37
EWERRNEBRE (b) Loss allowance of trade receivables

FEM SRR B R B - T A BB R
P AR - BRIEAN SR 52 5 Y [ BR 3K
MBS &R - BT - R
1 B % PR A RRSR A S

RENZERBEHEz2EZ2S (BERE
NEREBEERED)WT

Loss allowance in respect of trade receivables is
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the loss allowance is written off
against trade receivables directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, is as follows:

(XBEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
»1A1H At January 1 45 60
MEZE Translation difference (1) -
E R AR Reversal of provision for

loss allowance (7) (17)
IRE B Provision for the year 5 2
M12A31H At December 31 42 45

BRI U BR 3k 2 BB B R 1]
FHRHENEF @ £EEEFAHE
HA 2 AT Y [0 2R PR AR BR 3R - A Lk A
REFTEREE AEEHAK
BEAEHT7008 B T (20214F : 7008
BT E o

BIEERSHEMERREBEBINE
AR K F 2 W A 3,600 78 T
(20214 : 4,3008 87T * BIEFEIE
ENE b EUR RIS ) o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

(c)

The individually loss allowance for receivables
relate to customers that are in financial difficulties
and management assesses that only a portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful
debts were recognized. The Group holds a collateral
amounted approximately of HK$7 million (2021: HK$7
million) over the balances.

Included in current other receivables was an interest
bearing and secured receivables of HK$36 million
(2021:HK$43 million included in non-current other
receivables).
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

17. BE 17. INVENTORIES
(U B BT BE) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
2R oh Finished goods 612 606

R2022F « AEBBRIBIL TS E R
FEFTENMTFERENGHTETTH
B ZHEEREAFEGERER
41,4008 7T °

FEECERAERITLEEHEERAK
R A16.57 8B T (20214 14511878

In 2022, the Group has changed the estimate of inventory
provision on off-season finished goods based on recent
market conditions, the change in the estimate has an effect
of HK$ 14 million reduction of inventory provision in current
year.

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included
in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$1,657 million (2021:

JL) ° HK$1,451 million).
18. HE&FEMNFE 18. RENTAL PREPAYMENTS

(X E&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
M1A1RZEREFE Net book value at January 1 3 2
NE Additions 9 4
e Disposal (7) 2
I S5 Amortization for the year (1) 1
M12A318 ZREFE Net book value at December 31 4 3

19. REMGSWRBERAREREEZS
MEE

19.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(X B EETAENMN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
M1A1EBZARE Fair value at January 1 4 3
NAEZEEE A Change in fair value

REMGERZHZEARERIEZ transferred to financial asset

TREERE at FVOCI reserve (1) 1
M12A31BZ AR E Fair value at December 31 3 4

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

19.

20.

NEMGEEWRBZEAAREEE 2E€ 19. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
mEE (&) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
R 2022F 12 A 31 H & 20214 12 A 31 As at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, financial
A REMGEEREERARNEREZS asset at FVOCI represented 3.21% interests in Speedy
BB ERRNAERIIERAERE AR ([ A Global Holdings Limited (“Speedy”) are denominated
FIRR])3.21% 2 1% - R EERNE in Hong Kong dollars. Speedy is engaged in garment
TTETE - AR ER KRB EER manufacturing business and is one of the key suppliers of
EAEENTEHER 2 — - the Group.
202212 A31H - REMARE WKL As at December 31, 2022, the fair value of the financial
NAERBZEREEZ AR ERIEE asset at FVOCI is determined using its quoted price on the
BMTHEcREEZT  RBEFBYR Stock Exchange, which is categorized as Level 1 under the
WMEEAFEISRZ A AABEBRDELSSE fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.
_Hg& °
—BEe¥ AR 20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
TXHEIZEZEARZERAE AT B The joint venture listed below has share capital consisting
& JEEMAEERARZERIT ¢ solely of ordinary shares, particulars of the unlisted joint
venture is as follows:
ERTRE2BHERE

PR 3L % A 1 B FHEfER
CR-ENCIEL Place of FEROBEDHE Issued and fully
Name of incorporation Percentage of paid share capital or FE£
joint venture and operation equity holding registered capital Principal activities

2022 2021
Giordano Corporation RERH 48.5 48.5 5,150,000,000528 &KLTEREK
Limited* e 4 A on
Republic of Korea KRW5,150,000,000 Retail of apparel and
accessories

* —ffEFEE A ERA] A joint venture held indirectly
(U BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
m1A18 At January 1 513 549
JEAG % Share of profit 36 41

BER—Ea 2R E

Dividends received from

a joint venture (32) (34)
MmEEH Translation difference (27) (43)
M»12A31H At December 31 490 513

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

X ] /c.\% B2 BEER K -

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Summarized financial information for joint venture

Set out below is the summarized financial information for a
joint venture.

EEEBERE® Summarized balance sheet
(X B EETAREN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
RE Current
ReMReEBEER Cash and cash equivalents 104 51
HtnsEE Other current assets 676 739
MENEELETR Total current assets 780 790
Hivne & & Other current liabilities (149) (159)
BB GEARE Total current liabilities (149) (159)
IR ED Non-current
BE Assets 462 494
=0 Liabilities (85) (69)
BESFE Net assets 1,008 1,056
mAeEWBEREE Summarized statement of comprehensive income
(X BEEETHAENT) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
Wz Revenue 1,158 1,234
ITE R E Depreciation and amortization (99) (112)
£ Expense (960) (1,011)
Br FT1S HR AT A Profit before income taxes 929 111
PS5 Income taxes (24) (26)
bR TSR 18 % A Profit after income taxes 75 85
/\{ﬂg,%,\ E518 Other comprehensive loss (57) (91)
R e W (5E) Total comprehensive income

(loss) 18 (6)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #
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MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

20. " EEELAIER(E)

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

MEERREEAE R Reconciliation of summarized financial
information
—EEERARIREEE MK E iR Reconciliation of the summarized financial information
SFEER © presented to the carrying amount of the interest in a joint
venture.
(U BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
1A1REEFE Opening net assets at January 1 1,056 1,132
ANE E T Profit for the year 75 85
BB Dividends (66) (70)
MEERE Translation difference (57) (91)
12A31BEEFE Closing net assets at
December 31 1,008 1,056
Bl —HaE A RER Share of interest in a joint venture 490 513

FAEAIE

Lease commitments - -

AEEMBEEZ —BEE AR ZHERT
BESRARIABBREANEE M
ZEEBRRANGNEERRABBRE
A o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

There are no material contingent liabilities and capital
commitments relating to the Group’s interest in a joint
venture, and the joint venture have no contingent liabilities
and capital commitments themselves.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21. REYXE

AEBEREYEERRYEAE -

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group had properties which held for long-term rental
yields.

(X BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
A& Cost

»1A1H At January 1 66 64
MEERE Translation difference (5) 2
®12A31H At December 31 61 66
2RBIE Accumulated depreciation

M1 H1H At January 1 44 41
MEERE Translation difference (3) 1
e Depreciation 2 2
M12A31H At December 31 43 44
M12831 B ZfREFE Net book value at

December 31 18 22

TR B EN2022F12A31HZ AR
MBYEEXZHEQRTE - HEIR
BRI ER T A - BBF BT
ERX G RGEEMEBITREENT KM
HEmMEHMNEEERN L E - HFK
ARBERENTAERL - HEFTHA
MIRITHSHEEC2EEEYWEMEM
AT L M E T B AR R o 522022
F12A318 » ZWE(BREHEEL W RE
FEbD) 2 B ER3,1008 7% 7T(2021
F 340088 7m) c EEHFBEERFE
BIEREYWEZHASWAAE3208 5T
(20214 : 41088 7T) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #

The fair value of the investment properties at December
31, 2022 was assessed by an independent professional
valuation firm. Valuation was based on income capitalization
method which is based on the capitalization of the net
income and reversionary income potential by adopting
appropriate capitalization rates, which are derived from
analysis of sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation
of prevailing investor requirements or expectations. The
prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
reference to recent lettings, within the subject properties
and other comparable properties. The total fair value of
the properties, including leasehold land and the building
portion, was HK$31 million (2021:34 million) as at
December 31, 2022. In the consolidated income statement,
rental income relating to investment properties of HK$3.2
million (2021:4.1 million) was included.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

21. REYWE(HE)
REAMEZAARER - UWIEZ&S
REERSIE/ERFMAE

R EYMRRERERATFRITE

HELH MHEHR

BF HEMRKTZNE0F
(ABFEE RE)

BREWERZREFESFTAT ¢

21.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold Land Over the term of the lease
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease
or no more than 50 years.

The net book value of the investment properties is analyzed
as follows:

(A BFEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2022 2021
EBBAINGE Outside Hong Kong, held on
10 E50F L lease of between 10 and

50 years 18 22

BREMEORABRBOEIRIER
AABEM S LRBNER (T BRE
A REBEMHRELEMNEISROHL
RENBRIBRE= -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

The fair value of the investment properties was based
on inputs that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.
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B R E(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

22, % - BBERRE 22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(UBEETEEN) (In HKS million)

RAE Cost

202241 418 At January 1, 2022
BEER Translation difference
NE Additions

e Disposals

2022512 A31H At December 31, 2022

ZRFTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

R2020% 1818 At January 1, 2022

hEER Translation difference

HE Impairment

TEERE Depreciation charge for the year

e Disposals

2020512 A31H At December 31, 2022

#2022512A318 Net book value at
ZREFE December 31, 2022

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 149
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

22, ¥ BBERZRE(E)

22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
BENE
KAFHE B KR
21 BAERE
kigF Leasehold
Freehold BENEE improvements, HE
land & e Plant&  furniture & office Motor Ait
(W BEATAEN) (In HKS$ million) buildings Buildings  equipment equipment  vehicles Total
AR Cost
#2021E1 A1 At January 1, 2021 58 12 50 1,059 20 1,199
REEE Translation difference 1 - - 1 - 2
B Additions - - 1 40 1 42
e Disposals - - - (56) 4 (60)
2021412318 At Decernber 31, 2021 59 12 51 1,044 17 1,183
ZRTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
Ho02151 A 18 At January 1, 2021 18 4 49 981 17 1,089
BEET Translation difference - - 1 1 - 9
HE Impairment - - - 1 - 1
TEENE Depreciation charge for the year - 1 - 48 1 50
hE Disposals - - - (54) (4) (58)
#0021 128318 At December 31, 2021 18 5 50 977 14 1064
#2021£125318 Net book value at
ZREFE December 31, 2021 4 7 1 67 3 119

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= R BEBAER

o

A
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23. FREERHEAR
BEARBERZIIATHHERBENDE -

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to

leases:
FEHREEE Right-of-use assets
(XBEEBTRENL) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
R A {E Cost
®1A1H At January 1 1,989 1,910
HmEE% Translation difference (64) (4)
1N Additions 137 124
HEBH Lease modifications 286 186
e Disposals (193) (227)
12 A31H At December 31 2,155 1,989
EZEMERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
m1A1H8 At January 1 1,303 1,088
MmEER Translation difference (39) 2)
pERIES Impairment 8 13
VERI=REE | Reversal of impairment 2) (11)
REEIE Depreciation charge for the
year 393 442
e Disposals (193) (227)
®12H31H At December 31 1,465 1,303
M12A31 8 ZREFE Net book value at
December 31 690 686
2022 2021
HEEE: Lease liabilities:
mEp Current 326 337
JEMmED Non-current 287 300
613 637
FHEMIR S 4% 56.65(8 57T (2021 The total cash outflow for leases was HK$665 million (2021:
F:6.75BB L) ° HK$675 million).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

23. EAREERMEEAE(H)

rEEHESEYE  BERAE - H
Eti - pEMNETERE  HESR —
MET B1FE504F -

HHE R ARZ BRI 1B R 15 7 HEE R
ERE S TR GEKAET - BT HHE
ARENHEEEETMERERIN - H
S T EMiGR - HEEE
TRAEEERER

HMoMEHERSHFIMAEEHEERE
B A2 A B SER - HRMERIPIT
&= a A100%MEENREER I E
MENFIERETE  BHoLEEAHEE
%8 M 10.0%-27.5% (2021 F : 10.0%-
27.5%) c AT BN REKFTNREREZ
& BRADREFRPIMAE KA o
BEHEREETHUSHENK  BF
BZENREEBEREBANEERE TN

AEENZEYEHESSTH MK IE
BER ZFBRFTANEERSER
AEEEETENKEEENE - FIFA
PRSI P E TR e 3 JEEI N RN S
BITEE - MASHEBHEAITE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(continued)

The Group leases various properties, including offices,
leasehold land, warehouses and retail stores. Rental
contracts are made for periods of 1 to 50 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that
are linked to sales generated from a store. For individual
stores, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis
of variable payment terms with percentages ranging from
10.0% to 27.5% (2021: 10.0% to 27.5%) of sales. Variable
payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimizing the fixed costs base for newly established
stores. Variable lease payments that depend on sales
are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the
condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Extension and termination options are included in a number
of property leases across the Group. These are used to
maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

. B8

(A BEETAENN)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

24. GOODWILL

(In HK$ million) 2022 2021

MW1A1HKX12H31H

At January 1 and
December 31 541 541

SR RN
ﬁ%ﬂhml%éﬁiﬁamﬁmﬁ@
PHREEFENNABNREELZE S S
L%ﬁ C IR E RN EWESIER
HEBERARNREENEE - HE 2T
U [B] & 58 TH IR F A A A BB K B RAET
o FIEREA R EBEMET A& ARG
BREFENEENMSEIBE(E=A— RN
713(c)) ° %Eﬂ“ﬁ%uaﬁﬁm&z
SEFHBBEUNTERERSR=E - B
BEEREBRTSENNBERREGELZE
A%ﬁ&ﬁﬁm%?FZﬁ%Xﬁmﬁ
B oNFEMNNBRREGELZES &£
TEfLHAR - TR MEFEHFHEHEERE
56.5% (20214 : 5.7%) o 5SFHAE A1E
ZHERE WA RHEREEFEI%
(20214 : 3% )HE - FifFEA 2 FHBALIA
R AE183.9%(20214F : 9.8%) ' BERMA
BREN B2 ERR

EERENR2022F M2021F12 A318 &
BN IARREEZESHRITERE
A o

AEERTHBEFERENANER
REBEETHREIN - RERXLREE
EEITHEGEFHEERREE1.0ER
DEAMRBINERIER2.6EEDH - A
B E'JTH&Z@@%EH\ g S
HEEREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #

Impairment test for goodwill

The Gulf Cooperation Council ("GCC") goodwill has been
allocated to GCC operating segment, which represents
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored internally.
The recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based
on fair value less costs of disposal, using inputs for the fair
value estimation that may include unobservable market
data (Level 3 — see Note 3(c)). These calculations use
post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Management determines the financial budgets of GCC
business based on past performance and its expectations
of market development. The weighted average annual sales
growth rate in the forecast period is estimated to be 6.5%
(2021: 5.7%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth rate of
3% (2021: 3%) per annum. The post-tax discount rate used
is 13.9% (2021: 9.8%) which reflect specific risks relating
to the current market assessment of risks specific to such
assets.

The Directors are of the opinion that there was no
impairment of GCC goodwill as at December 31, 2022 and
2021.

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions used for the annual impairment test for the
GCC goodwill. If certain CGU’s forecasted annual sales
growth rate had been lower by 1.0 percentage point, or the
post-tax discount rate had been higher by 2.6 percentage
points with all changes taken in isolation, the recoverable
amount would approximate its carrying amount.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

25. & 25. SHARE CAPITAL
R & A (&N
(BRGZEES) (In HK$ million, except Number of Share
UBEEETREN) number of shares) shares capital
EESREESEBUZEER Authorized ordinary
shares of HK$0.05 each:
R2021F1 818 ~ 2021F12A31H At January 1, 2021,
202291 A1H N2022%F12 A31H December 31, 2021,
January 1, 2022,
December 31, 2022 2,000,000,000 100
ERTRZESBE - Issued and fully paid:
20211 A1H At January 1, 2021 1,577,630,518 79
HITRREM TR M Issue of shares pursuant to
exercise of share options 1,306,000 -
20215124318 &2022%151H At December 31, 2021 and
January 1, 2022 1,578,936,518 79
EATEE AR 31T 2 R D Issue of shares pursuant to
exercise of share options 2,480,000 -
FRBE RFHE KR Share repurchased and cancelled
during the year (1,600,000) -
202212 A31H At December 31, 2022 1,579,816,518 79

(a) EITRMD

RIBARNR ZBREE - AQ7A)
EmEREZEEA(ERFARNITE
HEEN i 2 #EF)) 2 172,480,000 8%
(2021 : 1,306,000/%) % E @A -
REESBI - FRAETHEZE
KREHEEHHNAFREI72H
178 IZE A [BEAEE A -

RRRFTZBHMEBRERR
AERZRARNDESTEHAESR

% -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

(a)

Issue of shares

Pursuant to the share option schemes of the
Company, the Company issued 2,480,000 (2021:
1,306,000) new ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in
the capital of the Company to option-holders who
exercised their rights attached to share options during
the year. Movements in the number of the outstanding
share options during the year is set out on pages
172 to 178 under the heading “SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES” of this annual report.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company

ranked pari passu with the then existing shares of the
Company in all respects.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. FRAEEEREESR(A)

(b)

(c)

(d)

[T 2 | 2B R AR ABR
BRAFEERNZ B FBHNAE
RE172HE178E ©

BoORkEHEKRH

BE2022F12A31BIEFE - 1B
BARRIBRREMESTSR O —
B NRBE R ATEEE
& $£2,000,000 f% 7% 2~ &) 8 I A%
> EREBA30EET  H
1,600,000 1% 2 fg B g 0 H 182 B 7+
HRANEEBITRASIRZZER
7 2 E{EHIR ° F#:400,000% E
BB O 5 7202212 A 31 B R
REFR - WHERKR2023F1 A
i o IEEE T MEMN 2 HEDR
ARRBZEZF RN - HEARE T
R EEZ RRBEE BE T m e
BEEARNEDHERE -

B E2021F12A31HIEEE » &
D SR BB 2 TR B H AR IR

,f/'\ °

—BEERTMBEENRG
MR2022%F12A31H » —M&EEAR
A1¥ A A2 711,800,000 3 AL AR
7 (2021 € : 1,800,000 & @ I% I%
) e
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share option information

Summary of the “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” and
details of the movement in share options of the
Company during the year are set out on pages 172 to
178 of this annual report.

Repurchase and cancellation of shares

During the year ended December 31, 2022, pursuant
to the general mandate granted by the shareholders of
the Company to the Board, the Company repurchased
a total of 2,000,000 of its ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange at a total consideration of HK$3.0
million, in which 1,600,000 repurchased shares were
subsequently cancelled and the issued share capital
of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of the cancelled shares accordingly. The remaining
400,000 repurchased shares were recognized as
treasury shares at December 31, 2022 and were
subsequently cancelled in January 2023. The premium
paid and payable on repurchase was charged against
the retained profits of the Company. An amount
equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled
was transferred from retained profits to the capital
redemption reserve.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the
Company did not repurchase its ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange.

Shares held by a joint venture

As at December 31, 2022, 1,800,000 ordinary shares
(2021: 1,800,000 ordinary shares) were held by a joint
venture.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

26. ERFEBIEER 26.

B E2022F 12 31 1L Z IEIE R i s 40 B
£2.05(88 7T (20214  1.611887T)
HhPT. Giordano Indonesia([ Giordano
Indonesia |) 15 1.81 187 JT (2021 £ -
1.46187% 7T) * M Textile and Garments
Co. Ltd.([ Giordano KSA ])151,700& 7%
TC(20214F : 1,5008%7T)  Hit AR 2
JIEIERIERS TEK ©

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The total non-controlling interests as at December 31,
2022 are HK$205 million (2021: HK$161 million), of which
HK$181 milllion (2021: HK$146 million) is for PT. Giordano
Indonesia (“Giordano Indonesia”) and HK$17 million
(2021: HK$15 million) is for Textile and Garments Co. Ltd.
(“Giordano KSA”). The non-controlling interests in respect of
the rest of the companies are not material.

EEEBRE® Summarized balance sheet

Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA
(U GEE TAEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021 2022 2021
b5 i Current
BE Assets 399 322 107 101
BE Liabilities (125) (109) (66) (53)
MENFEEBTE Total current net assets 274 213 41 48
FERE Non-current
BE Assets 169 140 69 51
BfE Liabilities (62) (40) (7) (5)
R FEERTE Total non-current net assets 107 100 62 46
REEMRTE Total net assets 381 313 103 94

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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BB mRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

26. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

(continued)

meaWBEREE Summarized statement of comprehensive income
Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA
(XBEEBTRENN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021 2022 2021
WA Revenue 696 516 283 249
& BT 15 %54 B 7 Profit before income taxes 136 85 22 17
ets) Income taxes (30) (17) (4) (3)
BRATEBHBER Profit after income taxes 106 68 18 14
Hibir & BE Other comprehensive loss (32) 3) - -
Bz aWE Total comprehensive
income 74 65 18 14
SIS 4R A Uss  Total comprehensive income
allocated to non-controlling
interests 35 33 4 4
R HIE RSB RE Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - 32 2 -
HeRERFHE Summarized cash flows
Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA
(A GEFE THEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021 2022 2021
IRE R ISR ASEE  Net cash inflow from
operating activities 166 169 82 69
WEER 7HSREESE  Net cash outflow from
investing activities (129) (100) (11) (11)
BMEEB 2FE SR TFEE  Net cash outflow from
financing activities (2) (69) (65) (60)
WeENREZEEY Increase (decrease) in cash
o) and cash equivalents 35 - 6 @)
MATRZRE R Cash and cash equivalents
ReFEET at January 1 132 133 49 50
INERTE R B) 7 B Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes (11) (1) - 1
M12A31AZRER Cash and cash equivalents
REEEER at December 31 156 132 55 49

FREM ARG EE AR ZEEHATH

TH e
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eliminations.

The information above is the amount before inter-company
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2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

27. PREEERERRESZER

27. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF

THE COMPANY

UNGIR-0-3-Ri &3 Balance sheet of the Company
(U B EEATAEEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
EE ASSETS
RBEE Current assets
Be MIR1THERE Cash and bank balances 50 118
AT R 3R % LA LT3R Trade and other receivables 3 15
eI FT1S 5% Income tax receivable 1 -
AN NEIE /e Amounts due from

subsidiaries 1,926 1,887

1,980 2,020

ERBEE ) Non-current assets
REREE AL BEREZSHEE Financial asset at fair value

through profit or loss 28 28
FREEE Right-of-use assets 87 93
JE U Bt /B N B FR A Amounts due from

subsidiaries 155 157
I ENGIE - E Interest in subsidiaries 816 816

1,086 1,094

EEHAE Total assets 3,066 3,114
BERER LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
REBEE Current liabilities
JE A BR 3 B EL M FE - 3R Trade and other payables 6 7
JEASH B /B A B FRIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,550 1,488
BEEE Total liabilities 1,556 1,495
B& 2 R &4 Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 79 79
] Reserves 1,194 1,382
BRI B Proposed dividends 237 158
R Total equity 1,510 1,619
ERREESEE Total equity and liabilities 3,066 3,114
BREEE Net current assets 424 525
EEABERRBAE Total assets less current

liabilities 1,510 1,619
2 B R PREE
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
2 2
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

T W E B AER LA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

27. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY
MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

27. PRAIEERBERREZZH R (H)

NAEREHR Equity movements of the Company
Rl
EARE (ZiE8)
itk BRESE  Retained
kx  BAR% Capital  ROHE Share profits
Share  Contributed  redemption Share options (Accumulated ~ EHAH
(WBEATAEN) (In HKS millon) capital surplus reserve  premium reserve losses)  Total equity
R0 1A AtJenuary 1, 2022 7 540 3 90 2% m 1619
FERRR Profi for the year - - - - - 183 183
Braha Total comprehenive income - - - - - 183 183
FEmEE Transfer among reserves - - - - @ 2 -
v HE Share option scheme
-BfERERES - Share Issue upon exercise of
() share options - - - 3 - - 3
NNERBEREHFiay) 2021 final cividend (Note 1306) - - - - - (158) (158)
2000FRBRE (W13 2022 interim dvidend (Note 133) - - - - - (134) (134)
BB 2RO HiE250) Shares repurchased (Nota 29(5)) - - - - - () ()
- - - 3 0 (2%) %)
#2022612331A At December 31, 2022 1 540 3 083 2 (117) 1,510
2021 ZLEBREFIT The comparative figures for 2021 are set out as follows:
N 1t
£AED (2568
i ERERE  Retained
Bx  H0EB Capitl ~ TRAEE Share proftts
Share  Contriouted  redemption Share options  (Accumulated EraE
(LBEETEEL) (In HKS millon) capital surplus fesene  premium feserve losses) ~ Total equity
Ho021E1A1A AtJenuary 1, 2021 19 540 3 78 2% 1l 1,63
KEERA Profit for the year - - - - - 187 187
Bels Total comprehensive income - - - - - 187 187
FERRE Transfer among reserves - - - - 1 7 -
ERETE Share option scheme
-EREER - Share option expense - - - - 7 - 7
-BfERERES - Share Issue upon exercise of
pay)) share options - - - 2 - - 2
0ERBREHiak) 2020 final didend Note 13) - - - - - (109) (109
NANERFREMH136) 2021 interim dividend (ot 13/ - - - - - (103) (103
- - - 2 - (05) 20
R2021512318 At December 31, 2021 79 540 3 980 24 ) 1619

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

28. f#1E 28. RESERVES

R2022F 2021612 A31H » A&EE 2 The reserves of the Group as at December 31, 2022 and

REBONTIAT - 2021 are analyzed as follows:

(X BEETAENN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021

AR R Contributed surplus 383 383

BRI O f#E A Capital redemption reserve 3 3

& mE Share premium 983 980

EREEE Share options reserve 22 24

P X A1 Exchange reserve (84) 21)

H A Other reserves 118 115

REMEERBEARERE L Financial asset at fair value

TREERE through other comprehensive
income reserve (6) (5)
BT Retained profits 819 844
2,238 2,323
Bk R EARE (f1aE13(a)) Proposed final dividends
(Note 13(a)) (237) (158)

B Total reserves 2,001 2,165

REEBZ@ARBGTIEERNEREAME The contributed surplus of the Group represents a credit

HE7HERRSE MmMEBEADNEEN1995 arising from a group reorganization pursuant to a scheme of

F5A20H EX Z HhraT EIMETT o IRIE arrangement which was completed on May 29, 1995. Under

BHEIE181FRAVA(KIER]) AR the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the

FRA] DR AR ER o contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders.

HEmFEHEcETEHEEBFBEOT ¢ Details of the main items in other reserves are as follows:

() RIBEFPEKEERBEENITBEE (@) According to the relevant laws and financial
R mEARE B AR AT regulations, the statutory reserve funds of the
BEEITRANBHEETEFER(NAE) subsidiaries in Mainland China are used to make up
N F L/{ EMZEWB A [l 2 &K prior years’ losses, if any, and to increase the capital of
H o the subsidiaries.

(b) IRIFEFEBF S ZER GED &R (b) In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive Limitation
HEXR - KBREBEZEZLAFZ Law and Korean Commercial Code, the statutory
ETHEES N EMEHER AR reserve fund and other reserves of the joint venture
{%Tﬁ&ﬁﬁ;ﬁj@gﬂg KEIEEN - T in the Republic of Korea may only be used to offset a
I HAERES IR EIREE - future deficit or be transferred to capital stock, but not

for cash dividends.

(c) IRIEFTHHEES B ([ Pr[BsE RS |) (c) According to the United Arab Emirates (“UAE")
BmEANRED - ﬂﬂé‘ EZW%Q}EW Commercial Companies Law, the statutory reserve
CETHEBES BB EHET fund of the subsidiary in the UAE is not available for
G REYED R ZH - distribution except as provided in the Federal Law.

d BEERLHBEz2BERVBKAEE (d) Put option financial liability recognized of HK$81
8,100 & i 7T (2021 4 : 8,100 8 /% million (2021:HK$81 million) (Note 31).
5T) (H3E31) °

160 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

1 m B B R A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F ##



B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

29. SRITER

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

29. BANK LOANS

(A GEFETAHEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
RITERBEUATRIE Bank loans comprise the
following:
FOH - B Short-term, secured 7 -
FEHR - KR Short-term, unsecured 5 68
RH - EER Long-term, unsecured - 100
12 168
IRITERAR T BEERE - The bank loans are repayable
as follows:
BIEAsk—F A On demand or within one
year 12 68
MFERAFA Between two to five years - 100
12 168

REEZ RITEFIATIIGEEEE

The Group's bank loans are denominated in the following
currencies:

(X BEETAREN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
— BT - Hong Kong dollar - 140
— F I TT — Singapore dollar - 11
— ek — New Taiwan dollar 5 17
—BmE - Vietnamese Dong 7 -

12 168

20225128310 « AEBEZRITEX
MY BB R 51.3%(20214F : 1.1%) © iR
TTEROFEF IRV

RITERT00EBITAFEEEWE A RIH
— BRI R A E (A -

B 8~ B EUS By B IR R R TT B ST AR
NEHEHA R RIER S o

ROEFNEEEEZE A ERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #

The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank loans as
at December 31, 2022 was 1.3% (2021: 1.1%). The bank
loans bear interest at floating rate that are market
dependent.

The bank loan of HK$7 million is secured by property
of a non-controlling shareholder of non-wholly owned
subsidiary.

The unsecured bank loan obtained by the subsidiaries
are secured by the corporate guarantees provided by the
Company.

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate to their fair
values.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

30. AR R H b FE Y K

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(A GEFETAHEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021

FERTBR K Trade payables 193 165
HEtEaRkENEA Other payables and accrued

expense 362 345

555 510

AT RIEZRFZENERRZ KRS

The ageing analysis of trade payables from the invoice date

o is as follows:

(A BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021

0Z30H 0 — 30 days 161 139

31E60H 31 - 60 days 12 10

61Z90H 61 — 90 days 8 5

#90H Over 90 days 12 11
193 165

MR R EMEMN Rz FEEEAER
REMEE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables

approximate to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RURBEHHERE

20124 + 7N & & Bt A Giordano UAE
X Giordano KSAZ FE% A% I B8 5 3808
HifE U EHERLERRI 2B TE
SYAEEEANPKEAEMERE
E#1.02BB T - ZR KR HENRA
& B A U B Giordano UAE K Giordano
KSAZ I 3F 14 Befsrl 171F - M B &E|
HAH ZEWBaBY S REBEK
AHER - BMLhEtELSENIRE - K
ROhEEEREUNETT(ET]FHERY
AREalE -

7 2015 F - X & E 3t [ Giordano
Fashions Co. W.L. L.(] Giordano KW J)
X GIO Fashions W.L.L. ( [ Giordano
QA]) 2 FEIERR AR AR MR HAfE - DA
EHERLEERRIZHB TERTAEEH
FrEAMIBaEMmERAEL1,9008
BT o IR RIOL BN A E T UK
B Giordano KW} Giordano QA2 &3
FilapER {7 MASEIEBEH - Z
EVBBEV TR EEEKANER - A
METBERESREMNRE REORHHESR
BEUETFERINERBEE -

20194 -+ 7K & [E £ Giordano UAE -
Giordano KW [ Giordano QA &9 3F 2 i%
BRERATS e - EATERIAERE - UK
EmRl#2,1008 87T » 1,1008 BT &
5008 75 7T ) & Giordano UAEH)20% &
FERE S~ Giordano KW B 31% B 4% 75 #&
# N Giordano QARI41 % H A E S ©
i — # Y Giordano UAE ~ Giordano
KW K Giordano QAXE 7 1 25 B[R B
T % H By 30 B M 1 3R A9 48 8 3R 0 B
EAEEDEEIARR -

ZEREAEHEBEOSERABERE
THARBERRBSRNESRERAR
BZASMEE  RENHZRENSE
HERTABETS EBSHNER (TR
@A) REFEVHMELERE 135
ZARENBEIERE=A
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PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

In 2012, the Group recognized financial liabilities of
approximately HK$102 million in relation to the financial
liabilities arising from the put option granted to the non-
controlling shareholders of Giordano UAE and Giordano
KSA to sell their remaining interests in these companies to
the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time after
3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the
shares in Giordano UAE and Giordano KSA and has no
expiry date. Such financial liabilities are initially recognized
at their amortized costs, which is measure at the present
value of the estimated redemption amount. The put option
liabilities are denominated in United States dollars (“‘US$”)
and are classified under current liabilities.

In 2015, the Group recognized financial liabilities of
approximately HK$19 million in relation to the financial
liabilities arising from the put option granted to the non-
controlling shareholders of Giordano Fashions Co. W.L.L.
“( Giordano KW”) and GIO Fashions W.L.L. “(Giordano
QA”) to sell their remaining interests in these companies
to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time
after 3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of
the shares in Giordano KW and Giordano QA and has no
expiry date. Such financial liabilities are initially recognized
at their amortized cost, which is the present value of the
estimated redemption amount. The put option liabilities are
denominated in U.S. dollars and are classified under current
liabilities.

In 2019, the Group entered into agreements with the non-
controlling shareholder of Giordano UAE, Giordano KW
and Giordano QA who exercised the put option to sell
20% economic interests in Giordano UAE, 31% economic
interest in Giordano KW and 41% economic interest in
Giordano QA at considerations of approximately HK$21
million, HK$11 million and HK$5 million respectively. The
associated put option liabilities recognized arising from the
put option granted had been lapsed accordingly at the time
of further acquisition of Giordano UAE, Giordano KW and
Giordano QA economic interest.

The redemption amount of the put option liabilities is
determined at higher of fixed amount of cash or fair value
of the equity investment based on discounted cash flows,
using inputs that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

32. EERIBEE

EEBRBERBAEZINEEEER
RE RN & RDAR R 2 B R M F 2 B

& o

AEERFRAZELEHAEERBELZ
8 (R — bR 2 &R AT 4

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liabilities are calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method at the rates applicable

in the respective jurisdictions.

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same

T~ taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:
BEHEB(EE)ERS Deferred tax (assets) liabilities
MEEHTE RAKLZ
Accelerated RERR
accounting  Unremitted Hith &%
(UBEETAEN) (In HK$ million) depreciation profits Others Total
F2022F1A1H8 At January 1, 2022 (18) 116 (71) 27
MEERE Translation difference - 6) - (6)
RFIER A (I E)5) 5% (Credited) charged to income
(Hit11) statement (Note 11) 4 1 31 36
720224125310 At December 31, 2022 (14) 111 (40) 57
20216118 At January 1, 2021 (11) 124 (75) 38
BEER Translation difference 1 9) (1) 9)
AFIER A (R 5)5 5 (Credited) charged to income
(Bizt11) statement (Note 11) (8) 1 5 )
20214612 A31H At December 31, 2021 (18) 116 (71) 27

REB B RERELERIBEEWNOE D

The Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets of HK$99

JC(20214F : 7,900 L) T E RN
B WERERELTHBEEE 6,500
BB IT(2021F : 480088 1) BN
202212 A31 HESFERNEM - 88 T &0
DEBZEERMNREBRWE R R 2 &R
FRIBEIEL -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

million (2021: HK$79 million) arising mainly from tax losses.
These unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent of
HK$65 million (2021: HK$48 million) will expire within 5
years from December 31, 2022. The remaining portion is
mainly related to the losses of subsidiaries in Australia and
Germany which have no expiry date.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32. EEBEEE (B)

ERERMFA T HFREMESHE R
[l — B B RE - IR XE W TR & & Al SR AT
BIERELMAENE - NISBEFAE
EHREE  REHEERBERAIIE -

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
BEBIEE E Deferred tax assets (55) (96)
RIER IR A S Deferred tax liabilities 112 123
57 27

33. HERE 33. LEASES COMMITMENTS

(a) M2022%F12H31H  AEERZT
BIEH MAERER ZTAIRNK
KB HENTEENSHEEZA
R—FANEBPN SR A1,4008 8
JC(20214F : 11,9008 /& 7T) °

HEANBEITRBRGR  He
BT E R ERRE - BETPIm A
EME IREBEREREH S IAH
ERAE2HE(UARSERE) -
EiAEDNRREREESTHE -

(b) M2022F12H31H @ XEBEHRE
EEREPHAE 2T R AR REE
JRREHENREEKAE WAL

(@) As at December 31, 2022, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease charges payable under non-
cancellable leases in respect of retail shops, office
premises and warehouses which were due within
one year amounted to HK$14 million (2021: HK$19
million).

The leases contracts have varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewal rights. The lease rentals of
certain outlets are based on the higher of a minimum
guaranteed rental or a sales level based rental. The
minimum guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at
the above commitments.

(o) As at December 31, 2022, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease income receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of retail

N shops and office premises as set out below:
(X BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
1A Within one year 7 7
1 B5F R After one year but
within five years 7 14
14 21
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

34.

35.

BAREE

R2022F K 2021F12 A31H - NEFHI
EERNERHEMERE ALK
NERE 2 EARFELE -

METDHEEZAEBEYE

TRAMASEREBRELIDNAGBE
B BRERASNMFRCEE - BRELD
FTEEMBEDNARSREM - K
XREREBAREAHPBRET D
BAREZDMELNRTRE -

34.

35.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group had
no material capital commitment in respect of leasehold
improvement, furniture and fixtures.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below shows details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flow were,
or future cash flows will be classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.

MEXBEE
Liabilities from
financing activities

HESR RITER

Lease Bank

(XBEEBTREN) (In HK$ million) liabilities loans
M2021F1 A1 H 2 4% Balance as at January 1, 2021 767 152
BERERITERK Repayment of bank loans - (65)
EINIRITE R Addition of bank loans - 81
HEaBE 2R ITK Payment for principal element

of lease liabilities (436) -
HEBGBEZFEHDTK Payment for interest element

(MEEEBEN) of lease liabilities in

operating activities (27) -
IR EH Non-cash movements 333 -
R2021F12 H31 B 2 %58 Balance as at December 31,

2021 637 168
ERIRITERK Repayment of bank loans - (199)
EINRITER Addition of bank loans - 44
HEBE 2R TK Payment for principal element

of lease liabilities (402) -
HEBGBEZFEH TR Payment for interest element

(REEEBEN) of lease liabilities in

operating activities (25) -
R B Non-cash movements 403 (1)
MR2022F12 A31H 2 #4458 Balance as at December 31,

2022 613 12

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

36. EEEBMALTIXRGEBAL 36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
e EEREETE S —F  skEEL Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
R EBEBREHES — TR EAY ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
BH ANt o HREZ M AESHZ M A or exercise significant influence over the other party in
BEAFENZ ANLTTEREBEAL - making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also

considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

(a) BEEBALZXS (a)
RAFERN  ETHBARR R
kEEEHBRE-—HaERRE
TEFARGRRS - BAZER

Transactions with related parties

During the year, certain subsidiaries traded with a joint
venture in the ordinary and usual course of business
on normal commercial terms. Details relating to these

SEFnT transactions are as follows:
(X FEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2022 2021
HE T —H&&a QA Sales to a joint venture 185 152
HEE —MAE AR Purchases from a joint

venture 1 1
I AR —HEaeE QT Royalty income from a

joint venture 25 26

(b) EEHEAEE A L 248k (b)
12 A31 8 eI e A 508 -

(A B EBTREN)

Balances with related party

Amount due from a related party at December 31 is:

(In HK$ million) 2022 2021

fEl—FH A& RRIFIA

Amount due from a joint
venture 11 7

R20224 2021412 A31H » +
i i Y BA B A = FRTB B R R AE B X
R R EAM WK - BRI A
I BB REREREER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F #

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the above
amount due from a related party is reflected in trade
and other receivables. The receivable is unsecured in
nature, bear no interest and is repayable on demand.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

167



MBRRWE(E)
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2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

36. EEEM AT SBEBA L (E) 36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(c) TEEEEHM (c) Key management compensation
AT ESYwEATEEE Executive Directors are considered as key
RS D B TS SR management and their emoluments have been
10 HE - HihE %%}Eﬂ&ﬁﬂ’g disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements. The
MemT A : emoluments payable to other key management are as
follows:
(BTt iElr) (In HK$'000) 2022 2021
EAH ¢ RHEAWES Basic salaries and
other benefits 8,173 8,388
RIRSETEIE R Contribution to pension
schemes 131 129
EIEHE BB Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 5,358 3,727
13,662 12,244
37. EEEH#H 37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
R2022F & 2021F12 8318 » AEEI The Group did not pledge material assets as of December
mMEREELM - 31, 2022 and 2021.
38. HAEE 38. CONTINGENCY

REEBERA  UTHBEEERNY
Bk

(U B BT AEN)

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided
for in the financial statement were as follows:

(In HK$ million) 2022 2021

REEBYERE ZRITER

Bank guarantees given in lieu
of property rental deposits 10 9

NBEEERD  ESW TR AEER
ERZEERMAERARDRRLE ZH
= o [EIt - WER202245F 2021412 A
31 EMZERRIER E (B -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it is probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantees. No provision was
therefore made in this respect at December 31, 2022 and
2021.
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39. TEMBE QT

KARNR2022F12A31THZ T EH B A

BB mRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the

BT Company as at December 31, 2022:
BERTR2EHERE/
EER®BZ HMEL/ BEES
L ERES Issued and fully
R Effective paid share capital/ TEE¥H/L&HE
(= PNGES Place of percentage of registered capital/  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital place of operation
2022 2021
ERERAR B5 100 100 3,000,000 ®EERK
Bluestar Exchange Limited* Hong Kong HK$3,000,000  RELNFEERE/ A5
Investment holding and provision of
company consultancy services/
Hong Kong
East Jean Limited* Bk 100 100 1,000,00087T KLETERER
Hong Kong HK$1,000000 E#AR/ 42
Retail of apparel and accessories/
Taiwan
GIO Fashions W.L.L.* RER 49 49 200,000FERETH KETERE
State of Qatar QAR200,000  REHMR/FER
Retail of apparel and accessories/
State of Qatar
GIOR Fashion Company ~ #if 60 60 26,000,000,0008/E K2TERER
Limited* Vietnam VND$26,000,000,000  EH#AR/ B
Retail of apparel and accessories/
Vietnam
Giordano (Australia) Pty. i 92.8 92.8 7000008 KETEREREERR,/ BN
Limited* Australia AUD700,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/
Australia
Giordano Fashions L.L.C.*  FiE 100 100 3,000000ME @Y LeTERERERAR/ M
UAE AED 3,000,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/
UAE
Giordano Fashions W.L.L* Rl 49 49 300,000 EMM CETEREREBER/HRE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #

State of Kuwait

i

KWD300,000

Retail of apparel and accessories/
State of Kuwait

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022412 H31H
December 31, 2022

30. FEMB LR (E)

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERTRZBHRERE/
FER®BZ HMER/HEER
L ERES Issued and fully
B 3L 2 Effective paid share capital/ FTEE¥ KLHE
HEBARER Place of percentage of registered capital/  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital place of operation
2022 2021
ERRERRA & 100 100 5,000,00087T HBETERDHRER
Giordano Limited* Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 E#ER/ &S
Retail and distribution of apparel
and accessories/Hong Kong
Giordano (Thai) Co., Ltd.*  &E 100 100 10,000,000%% HETERERERAR RE
Thailand Baht10,000,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
Thailand
Giordano (M) Sdn. Bhd.  ERAED 100 100 5000005 KARLE HETERER
Malaysia RM500,000  EER®/SkA:
Retail of apparel and accessories/
Malaysia
e RHURF AR AR R 100 100 50,0008F 1% KETEREREBAR/ R
Giordano (Macau) Limited*  Macau MOP50,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
Macau
Giordano Middle East FZE* B¢ — i & 100 100 1,000,000fE EEmAE LL2HHRER
Dubai - UAE AED1,000,000  EEA&R,/MHE-HE
Distribution of apparel and
accessories/Dubai — UAE
Giordano Originals AR 100 100 1,900,002% % HETERBHRE
(Singapore) Private Limited Singapore SGD1,900,002  REHEEM/#H ik
Retailing and trading of apparel and
accessories/Singapore
Giordano Vietnam Limited* &% 60 60 802,000%7T REMER,/ BB
Hong Kong USD802,000  Investment holding/Hong Kong
Giordano (Cambodia) RER 80 80 4,000000RBRER LETEREREBRAR/ RER
Enterprises Limited* Cambodia KHR$4,000,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
Cambodia
PT. Giordano Indonesia®  Efg 52 52 2,500,000,00060E HETERE ERAm
Indonesia IDR2,500,000,000 KEBEER/HOE

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Retalil of apparel, accessories and
related products/Indonesia
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30. FEMB LR (E)

B 3% R M EE (AR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202212 H31H
December 31, 2022

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTR2EBRERE/
FERGZ HMES/ HEESR
L ERES Issued and fully
B 3L 2 Effective paid share capital/ FTEE¥ KLHE
MEAREZR Place of percentage of registered capital/  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital place of operation
2022 2021
AIEBEXERAE  PEARLNE 100 100 210,100,000TARE REAR HERFERER
Shenzhen Tiger Garment ~ People’s Republic RMB210,100,000 i #M &,/ E AR
Ltd.™ of China Investment holding, manufacturing
and retailing of apparel and
accessories/Mainland China
REAEERAT Bk 100 100 60,001,00087T REEKR KKEHR
Tiger Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$60,001,000  REERREFEARE
Investment holding, trading of
garment products and provision
of management services/Mainland
China
Textile and PRI EER 75 75 27,000,000 % 2% BETERER
Garments Co. Ltd.* Kingdom of Saudi SR27,000,000  EEAM/ WEMAATE
Arabia Retail of apparel and accessories/
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
Walton International Ltd.*  HE#E 100 100 1025 WEEEEFE/BE
Cayman Islands USD102  Licensing of trademarks/Hong
Kong
Bt et Notes:

# IEEELE
RERHA 2B AT

40. MR 2HLE

A BHERD N 2023FE3 A0 EEES

HEAE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #

i

# A foreign owned enterprise
*  Subsidiaries held indirectly

40. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board on

March 9, 2023.
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

BREE

R2011F6 A9 » ANAQ Al RN FT IR I AE T 2
(FR2012F 5 A22 HAERT) ([ 2011 4 B8 i 4
2] - ZErEIER2021FE6 A9REM ° B
[Em B HAHE - NS IR & BE R AERIE 201146
BRRETERE  ERERBEHZAIIREZE
REREAR IR B 1T IR TR B B U L 1] T DATT(#  #E
EXETMERT » 201 1 F BT 8 2 15 4
B+ RN RMAE2028F12A31H » &E
ZETEIEEEW o

2011 F BB MERT 8 2 T BIE e T -

(1) B®W
ZAEEREEB M ERYAEE(EHE
B EE B2 RE A ERLHEE -

(2) AERSHEE

) @ EAEFIHEECES(TH
EHFRIERT - BIEEM
BYUENTES) - BB R
R B (TR 2a R
B) %

(b) HEEFHZEMA : MBRA
5 B AT K B A Al 42 A AX
Rl R IR R S 2 A2
Al ek

(i) FAERNEBEEIAE SRR
R R BRI S A R P8 1T
ZIEFMEZZBEA K

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On June 9, 2011, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (as amended on May 22, 2012) (the “2011 Share Option
Scheme”). No options may be and have been granted under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme from June 9, 2021, the expiry
date, but the options granted before the expiry date continue to
be valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms of issue.
Subject to the aforesaid, the provisions of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme remained in full force and effect until December 31,
2028, notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.

A summary of the principal terms of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the selected eligible
participants.

(2) Eligible participants
0 (a

any Director or proposed Director (whether
executive or non-executive, including any
independent non-executive Director), employee
or proposed employee (whether full time or part

time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded
to work for; any member of the Group or
any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

(i)  any holder of any securities issued by any member

of the Group or any controlling shareholder or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder; or
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(3)

(i) ANER BE AT B B Sk A AT 22 AR ARER 3k
AR PR AR B SRR i 2 (R R A B RY

(a) EMEFHEERHE - MR
i AER - REBHRRE

(o) fEf] AL EREIRHEMIT
Ejﬁ@&mﬁkiﬁﬂm
W B BFEHEMART

() MEMEMRKREHEER

d) EREPF > &

e EMEILRHEFT(BESEA
=)

C 2011 EREREFEMES  BeE

E!a—u&yuﬁﬁwﬁﬂ/\éﬁ%%ﬁﬁi

FFTES 2 TR

REZFETTFRTZROAR

Rzt 22 R2021F6 A9H Em @ ~5
I 4 BE IR AE AR 4R 2011 F BB AR RE 51 2%
I—|u:|l o

RATERIZ2011 F R 8 R AR 7]
Hi B IO RITENRE
BN SRAAETHRNDEE NG
B R B 2 1T B 2IEI30% °

R2023F 3 H9H  RIE2011 FEEARHERT
EEREHMERITENT B EETT

A TR AR 1D B 2 A161,112,000
R(EERARAECBITRHD ZH
10.19%) °
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(3)

BEREARER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

(i) any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or a company controlled by a controlling
shareholder of;

(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or
any advisory, consultancy, professional or other
services to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,
(d) any customer of, or

(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant)
of;

and, for the purposes of the 2011 Share Option Scheme,
shall include any company controlled by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above classes of eligible
participants.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
ISSUE UNDER THE SCHEME

No options may be and have been granted under the 2011
Share Option Scheme from June 9, 2021, the expiry date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from
time-to-time.

As at March 9, 2023, a number of shares available for issue
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme is 161,112,000
shares (representing approximately 10.19% of the shares in
issue) may be issued upon exercise of all options which had
been granted and yet to be exercised under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

BECERSHEETERES LR

FRIFEARBBRRERRAE L E
BEREERZEEEEF12(0 8 NER
SR B (BREITE B
R R RAT 2 BE AR ) T DATT (265 - PR
TRETETZRNBE LR NGEE
ARADETRNZ1% °

AN BRPARBEEZRER,HBL
FATEFIREFESAZMEABEA
AR EHAEEMI2EARETES R
THBETZEAL 2 BREM 3
THM T ETHORNDEBBARARCET
Befn 20.1% (32 & B 8 2 i) (B &t
B)REBB008 BT 2 BRE - AR
ARRBEREBERAE LHER - 7R
1FE -

BRETES

BIE2011 F AR T 8% B 2 AR -
ARBRHEREEARESTETNEER
AFYRABITE  BEEEERHBRER
EBrHHEERBEERS Em ER
EMBERT  AEROEREE BB
AJFBIB10EF

ROTEBREMLARENRER
BR

HEFENROBRERET -

EZRHBRECEY

REBERREZEOLARNEHEN ZH
HEIOER(BRELHENER)ESR - R
BEMREBREZZ0E - AXM18

JC °©
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(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH ELIGIBLE
PARTICIPANTS

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted or to be
granted to each participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue unless
the same is approved by the Company’s shareholders in
general meeting.

In addition, any share options to a substantial shareholder
and/or an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, and
where the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted or to be granted to
such person in any 12-month period exceed 0.1% of the
Company’s shares in issue and with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the shares on the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to the Company’s
shareholders’ approval in general meeting.

TIME OF EXERCISE OF OPTION

An option may be exercised under the terms of the
2011 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
commencing on such date on or after the date on which the
option is granted as the Board may determine in granting
the option and expiring at the close of business on such
date as the directors may determine in granting the option
but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant.

THE MINIMUM PERIOD FOR WHICH AN OPTION
MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE EXERCISED

As determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFERS

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
an option is HK$1.
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BETEEEE
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BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price is determined by the Board which shall
be at least the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date when
an option is offered;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date on
which an option is offered; and

(i) the nominal amount of a share.

THE REMAINING LIFE OF THE SCHEME

The 2011 Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period
of 10 years from the date of adoption, and was expired on
June 9, 2021.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

EBREZ2E2E MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS

B0 ERE R 2 AR N E £2022 Movements of share options under the 2011 Share Option

F12A3MBIEFERNZ2EEHFINMOT - Scheme during the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out
below:

2011 5F B R REET &I

2011 Share Option Scheme

R022f  MEARE  REATE  REBARN REREE  R02F SRAEE

1818 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled  12A31H Exercise 158/ 8B
SERAL As at duting during during duting As at pice  HEEAH  Exercisable period/
Eligible person 2022/01/01 the year the year the year theyear  2022/12/31  pershare Date of grant Vesting period
#r (£/5/8) (§/4/8)
HKS  (YYYYmwoD) (YYYYMWoD)
g2
Director
2 100,000 - - - - 100,000 5000 2014/03/24  2015/03/04 - 2024/03/23
Chan Ka Wi 150,000 - - - - 150,000 5000 2014/03/24  2016/03/04 - 2024/03/28
200,000 - - - - 200,000 5000 2014/03/24  2017/03/10 - 2024/03/23
250,000 - - - - 250,000 5000 2014/03/24  2018/03/09 - 2024/03/23
300,000 - - - - 300,000 5000 2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
1,366,000 - - - - 1,366,000 4180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
1,666,000 - - - - 1,666,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
1,668,000 - - - - 1,668,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 2020/09/09  2021/03/12 - 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 2020/09/09 2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 2020/09/09  2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31
8,700,000 - - - - 8,700,000
B2 200,000 - - - - 200,000 5000 2014/03/24  2015/03/04 - 2024/03/23
Mark Alan LOYND 300,000 - - - - 300,000 5000 2014/03/24  2016/03/04 - 2024/03/23
400,000 - - - - 400,000 5000 2014/03/24  2017/03/10 - 2024/03/23
500,000 - - - - 500,000 5000 2014/03/24  2018/03/09 - 2024/03/23
600,000 - - - - 600,000 5000 2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
64,000 - - - - 64,000 3792 2015/04/09  2017/03/10 - 2025/03/31
332,000 - - - - 332,000 4180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/3
332,000 - - - - 332,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/09 - 2025/12/3

1 1 1
1 1 12131
1,336,000 - - - - 1,336,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1300 2020/09/09 2021/03/12 - 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1300 2020/09/09 2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 2020/09/09  2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31

9,064,000 - - - - 9,064,000

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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R02E  RMERRE  REAGE  REBRER  REREE  R02E  BRAEE
1A1H Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled  12A31H Exercise s/ BB
SERAT As at during during during during As at price  REAH  Exercisable period/
Eligible person 2022/01/01 the year the year the year theyear  2022112/31  pershare Date of grant Vesting period
A (£/4/8) (£/5/8)
HKS  (YYYvmwoD) (Y muwoD)
BREZBEAREI%HSEE
Participants with options in excess of 1% individual limit
0Nl
Not applicable

ERERFARRTRERRRACRTRG0I N NERENDRERS REARBMER

Related entity participants or service providers with options granted and to be granted during the year exceeding 0.1% of the relevant class of shares in issue

TER
Not applicable
Hfp gk
Other participants
-HHBEAIES 392,000 - - 302,000 - -
- Other Continuous 2,240,000 - - 2,240,000 - -
Contract Employees 3,182,000 - - 80,000 - 3,102,000
4,752,000 - - 118,000 - 4,634,000
6,386,000 - - 160,000 - 6,206,000
8,020,000 - - 202,000 - 7818000
9,590,000 - - 240,000 - 9,350,000
2,886,000 - - 226,000 - 2,660,000
3,336,000 - - 274,000 - 3,062,000
250,000 - - - - 250,000
250,000 - - - - 250,000
942,000 - - - - 942,000
946,000 - - - - 946,000
10,014,000 - - 504,000 - 9,510,000
11,062,000 - - 688,000 - 10,364,000
13,130,000 - - 780,000 - 12,350,000
2,692,000 - - 100,000 - 2,592,000
2,692,000 - - 100,000 - 2,592,000
2,716,000 - - 100,000 - 2,616,000
19,084,000 - 1,122,000 604,000 - 17,308,000
19,170,000 - 366,000 604,000 - 18,200,000
20,064,000 - 992,000 622,000 52,000 18,398,000
143,736,000 - 2480000 8,034,000 52,000 133,170,000
it - Remark:

5.380
7,650
5,000
5.000
5.000
5.000
5.000
3.792
3.792
4,090
4,090
4340
4340
4180
4180
4180
4.050
4.050
4,050
1.390
1.390
1.390

2012/06/12
2013/0410
2014/03/24
2014/03/24
2014/03/24
2014/03/24
2014/03/24
2015/04/09
2015/04/09
201500710
201500710
2016/0919
2016/0919
2017/01/06
2017/01/06
2017/01/06
2017/06/09
2017/06/09
2017/06/09
2020/09/09
2020/09/09
2020/09/09

2013/03/01 - 2021112/31
2014/02/28 - 2022/03/31
2015/03/04 - 2024/03/23
2016/03/04 - 2024/03/23
2017/03/10 - 2024/03/23
2018/03/09 - 2024/03/23
2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
2016/03/04 - 2025/03/31
2017/03/110 - 2025/03/31
2016/03/04 - 2025/06/30
2017/03/10 - 2025/06/30
2017/03/10 - 2026/06/30
2018/03/09 - 2026/06/30
2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
2021/03/112 - 2028/12/31
2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31

REEFERESG7TEH GRG0 FEGKTE A4  The weighted average closing price per shares immediately before the respective
fR1.7448 7T ° exercise date of the options was HK$1.744.
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R02E  RAERRL  REATE

DS - T

RN2E  BRAEE

1B1A Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 12831 Exercise s/ 589
SERAL As at during during during during As at price RERE  Exercisable period/
Eligible person 2022/01/01 the year the year the year theyear  2022112/31  pershare Date of grant Vesting period
#T (£/5/8) (§/5/8)
HKS  ('YYY D) (Y muwoD)
Hfhg5%
Other participants
-EfREEE TER
- Other related entity Not applicable
- Bl ER Y 480,000 - - 70,000 - 410,000 5000  2014/03/24  2015/03/04 - 2024/03/23
- Other service providers %9 714,000 - - 104,000 - 610,000 5000  2014/03/24  2016/03/04 - 2024/03/23
960,000 - - 140,000 - 820,000 5000 2014/03/24  2017/03/10 - 2024/03/23
1,206,000 - - 176,000 - 1,080,000 5000 2014/03/24  2018/03/09 - 2024/03/23
1,440,000 - - 210,000 - 1,230,000 5000  2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
200,000 - - - - 200,000 4180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
266,000 - - - - 266,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
436,000 - - - - 436,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
2,358,000 - - - - 2,368,000 1390 2020/09/09  2021/03/12 - 2028/12/31
2,368,000 - - - - 2,368,000 1390 2020/09/09  2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
2,394,000 - - - - 2,394,000 1390 2020/09/09  2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31
12,812,000 - - 700,000 - 12,112,000
44
Total 174,312,000 - 2,480,000 8,734,000 52,000 163,046,000
Mt - Note:

RSB RINBENHERA - ROZERR

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

Owners of the authorized dealers/franchisees and a legal consultant
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

IMPORTANT DATES

Closure of Register of Members

Annual General Meeting

Final Dividend

Annual General Meeting

May 19, 2023

Dividends

Interim Dividend
Paid on

Proposed Final Dividend

Payable on

STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange
Bloomberg
Reuters

May 15, 2023 to May 19, 2023
(both days inclusive)

May 30, 2023 to June 1, 2023
(both days inclusive)

HK8.5 cents per share
September 30, 2022
HK15.0 cents per share
June 16, 2023

709
709 HK
0709.HK

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

REEBE

EFHRBIR AR AR

EBNBE

RDEBBTTTETTIN

R TEKNESE

B © (852) 2746 4668

BE (852) 2370 8864

BETEAF ©  investorrelations@giordano.com
48 3t

www.giordano.com

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Giordano International Limited

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2746 4668

Facsimile (852) 2370 8864

Email investorrelations@giordano.com
WEBSITE

www.giordano.com
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ESG.03

ESG.11

ESG.21

ESG.45

ESG.48

ESG.55

ESG.61

ESG.63

RREiEE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

ESG.04

ESG.04

ESG.04

ESG.06

ESG.10

WMERE - [RAFIEE
Reporting Standard, Principles and Scope
RIR - e RERGE
ESG Governance
EEgEH
Board Statement

Ry ELEMEZ TR
Stakeholder Engagement & Materiality Assessment

RIFEE - BiIREBRE
Environmental Management, Objectives and Progress

AW : FREERMRE
GIORDANO : CARING FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT

ESG.11

ESG.11

ESG.19

ESG.20

RIREEAT : BUIRREOEE BB

Environmental Aspect A1 : Minimized Emissions through
Green-Minded Operations

RIEE@A2 : BIER

Environmental Aspect A2 : Conserving Resources

REE@AS : BAHRFEEBABERNTE  IMUERHERR

Environmental Aspect A3 : Minimizing Impact on the Environment
and Natural Resources for Sustainable Development

Enwronmental Aspect A4 Responding to Climate Change

EAN: MERERMHRT
GIORDANO : CARING FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

ESG.21

ESG.30

ESG.34

ESG.44

HEEEB : BE

Social Aspect B1: Employment

HEEMB2 - BEEFREL S (BRE)

Social Aspect B2 : Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)
HEEMB3 : AR LI B R

Social Aspect B3 : Talent Development and Retention Strategy
HEEMBS « & TIREMARBUR

Social Aspect B4 : Policies on Labour Standards and Human Rights

ERW - FEERFHER
GIORDANO : CARING FOR OUR SUPPLIERS

ESG.45

HEEEBS - SMAHEEER
Social Aspect B5 : Efficient Supply Chain Management

EAW : MEERMNER
GIORDANO : CARING FOR OUR CUSTOMERS

ESG.48

ESG.54

HEEEBS - REMEREE

Social Aspect B6 : Service and Product Liability
MHEEEB7 : RES

Social Aspect B7 : Anti-corruption

FEAW : AEEXRMNORE
GIORDANO : CARING FOR OUR COMMUNITY

ESG.55

BRaE =

HEfEmEBS : HE2 M

Social Aspect B8 : Community Involvement

VERIFICATION STATEMENT

FEXHF (GBR tEREAREES]) 5l
References to “Stock Exchange’s ESG Reporting Guide”
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Welcome to the 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance (the "ESG")
Report of Giordano International Limited (“Giordano”), which updates
our latest initiatives and achievements with respect to sustainability. As
you may be aware, ‘"World Without Strangers’ has been Giordano's credo
since its inception and reflects our vision to create a sense of familiarity,
regardless of ethnicity, nationality or culture, which transcends our
operations and management.

Giordano has long been committed to being a responsible corporate
citizen, and formally adopted its Corporate Social Responsibility policy
statement in 2005. Since then, we have continued to focus on “doing well
by doing good” in order to make a positive impact in the communities
where we do business, paying particular attention to stakeholder relations,
community involvement and environmental protection.

With the onset of enhanced compliance requirements set by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on ESG Reports
and growing demand for corporate disclosure from stakeholders in
general, this Report primarily addresses our approach and performance
against ESG metrics, including the impact that we are making on the
environment and communities, the way we deliver responsible products
and exceptional service to our customers in fairly and transparently, how
we invest in our employees’ development and foster an inclusive and
supportive working environment, as well as our framework to develop
strong governance, effective risk management systems and robust
controls.

The outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic has affected many aspects of
Giordano's business. However, some of the reporting markets have
started to hold community activities. At the same time, through to our
ability to leverage certain economies of scale, we continue to enhance our
efficiencies. Certain indicators in this 2022 ESG Report will, therefore, be
somewhat distorted, but our long-term commitment to our sustainability
targets remains unwavering.

GIORDANO
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Reporting Standard, Principles and Scope

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and in compliance with the “comply or explain” provision thereof.
Detailed references to the ‘Stock Exchange’s ESG Reporting Guide” have
been included at the back of this Report to aid readers and facilitate
greater transparency.

The content of the ESG Report is determined through the Group's
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment processes,
which include identifying ESG-related issues, collecting and reviewing
management and stakeholders’ opinions, assessing the relevance and
materiality of the issues, and preparing and validating the information
reported. The selection of material ESG factors are derived from
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessments.

Quantitative environmental and social KPIs are disclosed in the ESG
Report so that stakeholders can have a comprehensive understanding
of the Group’'s ESG performance. Information on the standards,
methodologies, references and source of key emission and conversion
factors used on these KPls reporting are stated wherever appropriate.
To enhance and maintain the comparability of the ESG Reports
between years, the Group adopts consistent reporting and calculation
methodologies as far as practicable. In case of any changes in the
methodologies and specific standards, explanations have provided in
corresponding sections to facilitate information interpretation.

This ESG Report provides an annual update of Giordano's ESG
performance for the year of 2022, which covers our operations in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore (collectively, the
“Reporting Markets"”), which contributed to 44.38% of Giordano’s sales in
2022 excluding shops operated by our franchisees and licensees. There
are no significant changes in the reporting scope of this Report from that
of the last one in 2021.

ESG Governance

Effective ESG plays a definite role in driving the Group's pathway toward
sustainable development. To ensure proper implementation of ESG, the
Board has charged the Group’s Risk Management Committee (the "RM
Committee”) with assisting the audit committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee”) to oversee the Company’s ESG development and
execution, as well as to help determine the ESG strategies and direction
ahead, to keep track of potential ESG-related risks. With the supervision
of the board of directors (the “Board”), the management of the Group
formulates and executes ESG-related polices and strategies.

Board Statement

Good corporate governance inextricably linked to positive governance
of environmental and social issues. With the aim to ensure proper ESG
governance within the Group, the Group’s Board shoulders the ultimate
accountability for the supervision of the Group’s ESG performance, while
authority has been properly delegated to each management of the Group.
In a bid to ensure the establishment of appropriate and effective ESG risk
management measures and internal control systems, the RM Committee is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s ESG strategies and performance,
as well as assessing and identifying ESG-related risks.

~ o @
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The RM committee review and assess the internal operations to identify
material ESG issues, including climate related risk (e.g. natural disaster on
supply chain), and prioritize the ESG risks through materiality assessment.
They review and monitor the Group’s ESG policies and progress against
environmental targets.

In order to mitigate sustainability and ESG-related risks, as well as to keep
track of the Company’s ESG development, the RM Committee reviews the
Group's performances against industry leaders and peers of comparable
size to ensure the latest requirements and compliance status are met.
Timely adjustments will be made to cater for the emerging market trends
regarding ESG-related issues that may potentially impact the business
operations of the Group.

The RM Committee will also inform the Board of developments vis-a-vis
in ESG performances, visions and strategies through Board meetings,
dedicated reports and other communication channels on a regular basis.
The Group has established communication channels, between business
divisions and its stakeholders for better communication of ESG-related
issues. The communication channels are reviewed regularly to ensure
that effective communications are made between the Group and its
stakeholders. During the Reporting Period, the Board has assigned an
independent consulting firm to conduct a materiality assessment for
better identification of potential and material ESG issues relevant to
the business and its stakeholders. Stakeholder engagement has been
conducted to engage with relevant stakeholders for more precise
identification of the material issues that could internalise the opinions of
the stakeholders. The issues would be prioritised and those with higher
significance will be considered material. The Board would also review the
material issues regularly to ensure appropriate ESG management policies
are in place, so as to promote prompt responses to meet stakeholders’
expectations.

The nomination committee of the Company reviews the diversity,
structure and size of the board, Nomination Policy and Board Diversity
Policy to achieve gender and race diversity in the Board, which encourage
inclusion of a broader spectrum of diverse perspective within the
recruitment approach and policies. They oversee the planning for the
appointment and resignation of the Directors and senior management,
as well as evaluate the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Audit Committee monitors and evaluates the Company’s risk
management, corporate governance functions, and internal auditing
process. They ensures that Company complies with applicable
environmental and labour laws and regulations.

In an effort to enhance ESG performance, the Group endeavours to
review plans and performances regarding its operation and sustainable
development. The Board would keep track of ESG-related work execution
with respect to the proposed plans and targets, to formulate future plans
on the Group's ESG development. The quality and quantity of ESG-
related staff training are also monitored to ensure the Group’s message
on ESG-related issues and market trends are well conveyed.
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Bin&
Stakeholders

RIS HER

regulations

BFFME SRS o IR REANTL
Government and

Regulators o BIREERSE

o @R

Returns

s BRKE

o RAAENEE

Shareholders

communication

Expectations and Needs

o BTBKBEK  ARER s EHEEWmE

Compliance with national policies, laws and

Q * XFAMBEIE K Meet the regulators regularly
Support local economic growth o BT
; o HEBALHE

Drive local employment
Pay taxes in full and on time

Ensure production safety

Compliant operation

B Enhancement in company value
° FRBAMERER

Transparency in information and effective

Stakeholder Engagement & Materiality
Assessment

The Group believes that stakeholder engagement and support are
crucial to the Group’s business success. By understanding stakeholders’
expectations and concerns about sustainable development, the
Group can grasp a more comprehensive perspective for developing
the sustainable development goal and improving the sustainable
development strategy. The Group has established various communication
channels, including surveys with ESG-related questions, to receive
opinions and to promote expressions of suggestions from different
stakeholders across the entire business. Stakeholders’ expectations and
concerns will then be reflected and considered while evaluating the
Group's sustainable development goals and strategies.

For this year's ESG Report, the Group has engaged an independent third-
party consulting firm to assist in the collection of stakeholders’ opinions
regarding the Group’s ESG issues. Opinions are collected via various
communication channels, including questionnaires. Results derived from
quantitative and qualitative analysis of the stakeholders’ opinions are
referenced to understand their expectations and needs, and to improve
the Group’s management of ESG-related issues. Meanwhile, stakeholders’
opinions will also be incorporated into the materiality assessment process
to identify material ESG issues of the Group. By acknowledging the
importance of the values induced by the stakeholders’ opinions and
suggestions, the Group will continue practising stakeholder engagement
for modification of sustainable development goals and strategies.

wEMOES X

Means of Communication and Response

Information reporting regularly
s FHREEHREE®

Examinations and inspections

e REAE
Shareholders conferences

N
Announcements

« EYHH - EEBENAAENE
Email, telephone communication and
the Company’s website

o MBHmEREMAAE

Finance reports and announcement

GIORDANO
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Stakeholders

BREEBHE

Business Partners

(uf)

BHE

Customers

‘!II'
\
B

Environment

Industry

AN\Y%

ER

Employees

&

HEMLR
Community
and the Public

HEME\EXR

Expectations and Needs
MIEKE
Operation with integrity
T &S
Equal Rivalry
EREIT
Performance of contracts
ERES -
Mutual benefits and win-win results
FHAERMRSE

Outstanding products and services
fREEL S

Health and safety

BITEH

Performance of contracts

MERE

Operate with integrity

AR

Compliant emission

B BE R HE

Energy saving and emission reduction
HERERBIRE

Ecosystem protection

BAITHERAE

Establishment of industry standards
HEBITRER

Drive industry development

IRAERER

Protection of rights
B

Occupational health
ElEERl

Remunerations and benefits
R

Career development
AXEE

Humanity cares

smEe

Participation in charity
HEHRBIRE

Improve community environment
BHEH

Information transparency

BEMEES X

Means of Communication and Response

FEE MR hEE

Review and appraisal meetings
B AR

Business communications

2REA

=S N H

Engagement and cooperation

EPRBH L RBREE
Customer service centre and hotlines
BEPREFAE

Customer feedback survey
MHREBTE

Social media platforms
I8 88

Calling for feedback
ESGH &

ESG Reporting

HLE 30838

Communicate with the locals
FEMBE

Investigations and inspections

2T ERIE
Participation in industry forums
MRS

Visits and inspections

BTRREH

Employee communication meetings
A FII0 A Bk A48

House journal and intranet
BT &8

Employee mailbox

SR VeSS

Training and workshops
BT)EE

Employee activities
NSIEGh

Company'’s website
yNGIVNil

Company’s announcements
3588 55

Interview with media
HEREEF e

Social media platforms
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During the preparation of the ESG report, the Group has commissioned
an independent third-party consultant to assist us in conducting the
comprehensive materiality assessment in a fair and equitable manner. The
materiality assessment has been implemented in three main phases as follows:

(iif)

Based on the relevant national and local standards and policies,
industry characteristics and the development of the Group, we have
identified 36 potential material issues in respect of ESG that may
have an impact on the Groups business or the stakeholders;

We have invited internal and external stakeholders (including
employees, management, directors, clients, suppliers and
communities) to fill in questionnaires online, so as to collect and
identify their level of concern for each of such issues; and

We have established the two-dimensional matrix as “significance
to the Company’s business” and “significance to stakeholders” by
conducting analysis on 40 valid questionnaires, so as to determine
the priority of the potential material issues.

The following chart represents the materiality matrix based on the findings

from the questionnaire survey.
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®
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Low Medium High
HEBXEBNERM
Significance to the Group’s business
1T IREAR 6 BEEYER 11 ERERE 16 TR B R

Environmental Compliance

2 BERER
Air Pollutant Management

3 EMPRER

Fleet Emissions Management

4 BEKER

Wastewater Management

SORERBHMN

Greenhouse Gas Emission

GIORDANO

Waste Management

7 BEIRGE

Energy Consumption

8 JKERIEM

Use of Water Resources

9 HERIRER
Green Energy Project

10 R R @S #HiE
Use of Raw Materials and
Packaging Materials

Ecological Protection

12 EHRIREL
Responding to Climate Change

13 BRIFEHIER M BRI2
Prevention and Handling of
Environmental Incidents

14 BIREH

Employment Compliance

15 B R 4@ A
Employees' Remuneration and
Benefits

Employees' Working Hours and
Rest Period

17 ZILEFERE
Diversity and Equal
Opportunity

18 BREFEL 2
Occupational Health and
Safety

19 15383 R
Training and Education

20 PhIEET Re&mIS T

Prevention of Child Labour and
Forced Labour
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21 BEAR
Operational Compliance

22 ERHEEARERR
Managing Environmental Risks
of Supply Chain

23 RN SRR
Managing Social Risks of
Supply Chain

24 FREEH

Procurement Practices

5 mEEH
Quality Management

26 EFERERE
Customer Health and Safety

27 AEENTHEERE
Responsible Sales and
Marketing

28 BEFRBEE

Customer Service Management

29 RESEMER
Intellectual Property Protection

30 W FE BB

Research and Development

3 AMLE

Information Security

32 BEFLIERE

Customer Privacy Protection

33 REF
Anti-corruption

34 DEmEEE
Charity

35 B[R ER
Promotion of Community
Development

36 KRB TIE

Poverty Alleviation

ENESGHRE AL EAIRE it & KRB
HREHMN - AEECEITER MG AR
AEBREFNDENEHFEEEARTENRE
HERERFHEE ZAAERFNENRS - HNED
MAMBRANEZEEE - ERENHETAR
F=TRE HEREARAFEXEALINEXER -
MR HERRE - HERERFEMT

B E Aspects

In view of the relevance and validity of the ESG Report with the Group's
environmental and social performance, the Group has conducted a
materiality assessment to identify ESG issues that are material to the
business of the Group and its stakeholders. The assessment is based on
stakeholder surveys, materiality maps provided by well-known external
institutions', the judgement from management, as well as professional
opinions from third-party ESG professionals. The material ESG issues
identified are as follows:

B KXEIH Material Issues

%1% Environment
LT EE Labour Practices

BEEE

Operating Practices

IRE A M Environmental Compliance
B EfEEFZ 2 Occupational Health and Safety

& 251 Quality Management
BF@FEHZ 2 Customer Health and Safety
M ERERE Intellectual Property Protection
B P FLFE (R Customer Privacy Protection

1. SEWFERLENBELEZOIES BIE AR (MSCHH A #
BEHRETEAEZE G ([SASBL)RIEMNRE L& REARTT
¥EZMEEMSASBE B -

1. The materiality maps referenced in the materiality assessment include the ESG Industry Materiality
Map and the SASB Materiality Map produced respectively by MSCI and the Sustainability
Accounting Standards Board (“SASB”).
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REER - HERBERE

AEERHHHRSERER  UHAEEKEEY
RENFERERE - AEERAKZEHEEM
ERRMAZBUERAKEZRNEEE %Hi
TR FHBEERREARZIERREE
HEB) A B B RE IR T YRR

Environmental Management, Objectives and
Progress

The Group is committed to embracing green development, as well as to
minimising the environmental impacts from the daily business operations.
Understanding the importance of incorporating green measures and
practices into the business to achieve sustainable development, the
Group has developed a series of sustainable development strategies
together with a number of environmental targets to push forward the
Group's commitment to protecting the environment.

REERN  AEEBER ﬁ??ﬂ*ﬁﬁ BiZ . #=)F During the Year, the Group has set preliminary directional targets to
E@ﬂ& VER MR ERBEHEA () BEIRAKE focus on mitigating (i) air and greenhouse gas emissions; (ii) energy and
B RiNVEEBEE fﬂ%’?‘%qﬂ?ﬂiﬁ’]@% o ARt water use; and (iii) waste generation during business operations and

B % LEBRBREHRELE - SIKRDARED
RIERIR T HAEIG - B LR B DK ER
AR EREPERAMEMES -

BT B E RS MRE B IRAREAREERRS
REETTEEERKETARRRRENERE
R BRERETRRC(ERSREHIED) - K5
FEHHED) - (BEEMREGID M(FEAR
HAMBREREER) - AEEEHRA HEEN
ﬁﬁf%L#/Zifi&/Zﬁ FR - AREL B
AERFAREREBNENERTR ©

7 Aspects

BERE

Greenhouse Gas

B#& Our Goals
A2 R AR EREEHEK

Mitigating air and greenhouse
gas emissions

A7 TR K FEZKE 50,1643 75 KR D £44,62937 75 K
Water Use Mitigating water use (BA20214F RE#E)

development. The Group looks to gradually reduce power and water
consumption, as well as greenhouse gas emissions and waste generation,
through actively implementing measures on different environmental
aspects, such as power saving, water conservation, and paper use
reduction.

Apart from developing strategies and setting targets to promote
sustainable development, the Group is also obligated to strictly comply
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection, including
but not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Water Pollution
Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong, and the
Environmental Protection Act the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China. The Group reviews its operations regularly to
assure that the laws and regulations are complied with. During the Year,
the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance relevant to
environmental laws and regulations.

BT Progress

51 K28R = RESHE I E S, 516 AR
—RLHRE R E4,311 R — AR E
B (20215 REAE)

Greenhouse gas emission from Scope 1
and 2 reduced from 5,516 tCO,e to 4,311
tCOse, (using 2021 as baseline)

Water consumption reduced from 50,164 m?
to 44,629 m® (with 2021 as baseline)

N

o

§ BEIR{E A BEIR1E FBE1L10,427 KRR A 518,287 K FL B
é Energy Use Mitigating energy use (LA20214F REE)

m Electricity consumption reduced from

2 10,427 MWh to 8,287 MWh

. (with 2021 as baseline)

=

- =22) WMAEGBELRRETNEMELE EREYVEAERE21.2%(A2021F R85
it Waste g %)

Mitigating waste generation Non-hazardous waste reduced 21.2% in
g during business operations and  term of intensity (with 2021 as baseline)
A Development

i

=
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Caring for our

enwiwcnmerit.

RIEBEA1 : IHEFEOEELRD K

Environmental Aspect A1: Minimized Emissions through Green-Minded Operations

1) EESR BARHIEREELSRRERE (1) At Giordano, we seek to ensure that our business operations are

2 R EEsh e —I188r - mitER environmentally friendly, making every effort to reduce waste
NAEERMNEE RIS R and emissions from every aspect of our business activities, from
EAEREY RBER - production at our suppliers through to our business operations.

(2) TFEE AENOEETHNEBELESLH (2) We believe that our business activities and the facilities of our
HEEEERNIREER - overall operations comply with the relevant laws and regulations on

environmental protection.

BRIRE@EA2 : BHER

Environmental Aspect A2: Conserving Resources

(1) REBRZESBEUTHETARD [HRE D] (1) In active alignment with the Hong Kong governmental policy of

BE - BAEH St =RE RN A EFE reducing “carbon footprint”, we are committed to reducing carbon
BER KB - BER R EMEL - DU A Ak emissions and protecting and sustaining the environment through
W RERRBIRE - 10 efficient use of resources and reduced consumption of electrical
power, water, paper and raw materials by: .
o
o EEBHIT EMARFERNIRFER e incorporating sustainable environmental practices into our N
business principles; g
o WHEMAZMFERAER - Al E e using resources wisely and efficiently, such as cutting the m
RAREMERE volume of raw materials and packaging consumed; %
o HEEBHBEABLEMHESE e reducing waste generation within our operations; B
%
e HEHBEHTEMZTIEREHEE - * promoting environmental protection, via supply chain .
ARERIR - & management and smart shop operations; and it
e RARFPMEBBEHARRES - e promoting environmental awareness among our customers and X
business associates. 2
/A
5%
=
=

GIORDANO ESG
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2) ABRRAEEENRE  HMAGEILEE
IREVRE KB IRIR - BENSRsRB— I

K

CBRAER  MEER - MEBAMER
A ERRUERERBHEIT TRIMNEE

NP EIREFE - B - LA TR D BE
WHESE

R EME R E K ERM
B

EHEKEETR - W REIE (TR
KIER

RIETERLER] EFRETXE

HFENRETER N EE KBS EAE
=

e R RV
(IR R o A
BEBAEHANERE R
BN RN ERER AR -

(2) Striving to create shareholders’ value, we are also concerned with
the conservation of ecological resources and driving environmental
protection. Based on the 5Rs principle — to Replace, Reduce, Reuse,
Recover and Recycle — Giordano spares no effort to cut down on
the use of resources, recycle materials, as well as to reduce the
generation of waste by implementing different practices internally:

displaying notices and posters of water conservation at offices
and shops;

inspecting taps regularly and repairing any dripping promptly;

promoting the concept of “paperless meetings” with the use of
electronic copies of documents;

pre-setting printers for double-sided and black-and-white
printing;

recycling used paper;
reusing and recycling carton boxes;
reusing shop furniture; and

reusing plastic packaging bags as bin bags.

EE

ER ¥ RE i

EE \ ==
WF?EK*B@Eﬁ#ﬂ#’“*%ﬂ)ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁlT AT
AR IR AR = B IR A RO 8 e

HREZENRESRERENEA

v

Saving Energy

As electricity consumption is the biggest contributor to our greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emissions, various energy saving and efficiency measures
have been undertaken in most of our office premises and shops:

4

—

1

N

A#IREIRIE M Energy-Saving Initiatives @,(ﬂ

TREA R4t
Lighting

Air-conditioning

B20085 2 - RESHAE T IEHE AR

A group-wide initiative to convert lighting in all shops to
energy-saving lights commenced since 2008

RAFE AEEEEMS2ERTESINHERBARERELE k’*"?ﬁ
HORBEEBE  AARBRARSFERISEEEFIHEHRS KL750EMR
- BRI EFRAEEEHEXEE190,000tEE °

During the Year, the Hong Kong Market of the Group participated in the Electrical
Equipment Upgrade Scheme of CLP Hong Kong and the Energy-efficient
Equipment Subsidy Programme of HK Electric. We have replaced approximately
750 Light Replacements in the Hong Kong Headquarters and 15 branches in Hong
Kong. The light replacements are expected to save about HK$190,000 per annum.

NERBEN S EBAEARRNKLEFHRS
Replace chilled water air-conditioning with more efficient
split-type air-conditioners

48R0 22 38 R A RO 1R AR S

Shorten the operating time of air-conditioning

MR ERNFIEREE25 - 26T

Maintain an average indoor temperature of 25 - 26T

EMEEREEZH  SEGMERERRAEAREX

Maintain and repair air-conditioners regularly for better performance

GIORDANO
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Going Green at Work

Faced with the increasing threat to the environment over the years,
all of us undoubtedly owe a duty and responsibility to make Mother
Earth a cleaner and safer place to live in for ourselves and for future
generations. Acting in a socially and environmentally responsible way
is more than just a legal duty, and here at Giordano, we encourage
our staff to adopt environmentally responsible behaviour and
promote environmental protection in the workplace. The “Green
Team” set up in our Hong Kong Headquarters in 2010 is a vivid
example, which brings together representatives from different
departments to initiate programs for promoting low carbon living.
Moreover, to inspire and encourage staff’s green actions, we have
also launched the following initiatives:

e Arrange charity bazaars from time to time

- Encourage colleagues to donate surplus items to the
company's charity bazaar for charity sale. Besides, it can
raise funds to help disadvantaged groups or be given to
those in need, which will contribute to the environment and
society.

CHARITY BAZAAR

AANME TERMEERD - B LW XREREm

RTETHFLEVRBE "Ri2E, 7

FTUREMRIBEEEER - 187 A LINKMENSERL N -
HAEFARENA  HENNETHAEY -

- RFHEE

AmmRLN

BBA Learning Center MU ;

EWERANEE : WENWEE ERFE - 20 "WWShRAN, -
- FASREZRFAWWSEEESSO -
- REERINENMNMSIEARFEEEN -

* EBIRHLNARKERHZYE

-

© -
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Green Performance

Overview Graph 1

Below is a summary of our environmental performance with respect to our
operations in shops, offices and warehouses in the Reporting Markets:

ZR5RY AIR POLLUTANT

N REBRAFEFRGEENRE

AThe Group started to disclose the new data.

EES

BAY (F5)

Nitrogen oxides (NOy) (kg)
<

Vehicles

Total

485.30

mEtY(Fs)

Sulphur oxides (50, (kg)

RE
Vehicles

Total

0.51

TR (F2)
Particulate matter (Pm) (kg)

RE
Vehicles

Total

47.44

* 2022 L¥T 2021 BALLEE) 2022 vs 2021 % Change
A REERAF EFRGEERYR o

AThe Group started to disclose the new data

mERIEHNE GREENHOUSE GAS (GHG) EMISSIONS

R E (w1+2) (A AR
B-EEBTHER)
Intensity (Scope 1+2) (tCO.e/

FIE2 (A —afmes)
Scope 2 (1COse)

CL NN (T =D
Scope 1 (tCOse)

HK$1m sales)
250 12,000 5
m 0,000 »
w0 R Ll N 4 = B
= 8000 — N g N 2.557
150 b 85 ' .p%\l 4.226 39\:@#%
000 N 7 2 N
100 N B 30.42%* o Y o 21.64%* PR < N 20.78%*
= [
N 4,000 %
0 0 0
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Gl ERTONE s D) G (m142) HRET (s 14243)
Scope 3 (tonnes COse) (DM =F(chE 8 (R =it %S
(Other indirect emissions) Total (Scope 1+2) (tCOse) Total (Scope 1+2+3) (tCO2e)
70 12,000 6,000
607 A
60 000 3 o 5,000 4,371
ig 8,000 ‘&: g o 4,000
[ 4,311
20 6,000 % o 21.84%* 3,000
2 4,000 Now 2,000
10 2,000 o VL 1,000
N Y 0
o 2022 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2022
N
m
w
o
i SR FZ (408 1+2+3) (AW = EALH
Q &/ G-BMATHER)
- Intensity (Scope 1+2+3) (tCO2e/
I% HK$1m sales)
%
N 5
o
4
= 2.59287
& 2
AN
/A
E !
& 0
o 2022

ESG GIORDANO

~ L ®



— I BERFESHBREREERERE we: cu-—neees)
TOTAL GHG EMISSIONS BY CATEGORY (unit: tco,e)

=3

# JERHFE R 2022 FEAEREHRASNES L

# Percentage contribution of the subject consumption towards our total
GHG emissions in 2022

=e
B

Electricity
Consumption

0 €

FKEEIREE 1B
Electricity used for
fresh water and
sewage processing

NE BB EREE

& Corporate Vehicle

Fuel Consumption

FEREBPTEENF I
Methane gas
k generation at landfill
due to disposal of

4,226

(96.68%)"

85

(1.94%)"

paper waste

37

(0.86%)"

23

(0.52%)"

OO0 #ekE WATER USE

*2022 tE¥) 2021 BHLLEE) 2022 vs 2021 % Change

NN
W
HEt k) BT (kB EEELEER)
Total (m¥ Intensity (m¥HK$1m sales)
y
1000 o L & 26470
80,000 ?3 ;), 5 8 N 3
0000 63 o8 g 44,629 0 @ g ° @
40,000 N B ‘ﬁ 8 11.03%* 15 K}J “ 9.82%*
5y : y

20,000 g 5

0

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Hifi¥h ¥ E VEHICLE FUEL CONSUMPTION

*2022 ¥ 2021 B HEE 2022 vs 2021 % Change

st as)
Total (Litre)

100,000

33,001 32 24%*

i 4

2022

90L'8Y

2018 2019 2020 2021

BIE (aft B-ERETHER)
Intensity (Litre/HK$1m sales)

RIS (AM-ELREE F-EEETHER)
Intensity (tCO.e/HK$1m sales)

40 0.10
35
@ o

0y o O 0.08 o © B
3 W 0 9 N19.574 00 & o 3 © 0.0503

N @ QL ¥ o 9
20 al * o N

9 %

2 EQ g 31.32 b NS S

29.38%*
0.02 % YL

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

10
5
0

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

5,000

LZV'0L

¥l

% HEE ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION *2022 021 2021 A ELES 2022 vs 2021 % Change
HET OeEm) SRIE ke, S-EEBTHER) BE(AM-E(HEE S EEATHER)
Total (Mwh) Intensity (MWh/HK$1m sales) Intensity (tCO,e/HK$1m sales)

20,000 8 5

7 o a5

15000 & o o N @ 4.915 ) w N 2.507
oo BB = 8,287 P B @ ® 3 e Y & e”

, = g % 2 . i e

aa ® 20.52%* s B 19.43%* P g
o 2
1
0

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

¥ 20.57%*

0
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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KR;EFE PAPER USE

*2022 ¥ 2021 B EE) 2022 vs 2021 % Change)

T2
Total (Tonne)

20

=
15 o

10 20.60%*

= 8

= 5
5 i J7
0

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

SRIE (R B—ERETHERE)
Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)
2018 | 0.00554
2019 | 0.00699
2020 | 0.00598
2021 | 0.00585

2022.0.00471

&

19.49%*

ﬁﬁﬁiaﬂmi(mmmyﬁmgmﬁ) *2022 Lo ¥ 2021 EALLEE 2022 vs 2021 % Change
NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE GENERATION (Paper + Shopping Bags + Packaging Material)

AT (2
Total (Tonne)

2,000
1,500 =
B =
00 G @ 642 "
, &
2 24.89%

3 &
500 S o § 47
0

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

SRIE (R S—ERATHER
Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)

2018 | 0.474
()
— 2019 | 0.503
&
(9] 2020 | 0.452 23.82%*

2021 | 0.500 47
2022 0.381

BRYEEEE PACKAGING MATERIAL CONSUMPTION

*2022 tE ¥ 2021 B LLEE) 2022 vs 2021 % Change)

BIRREE (RH)
Price Tag (Tonne)

BREER (RH)
Plastic Packaging Bag (Tonne)

s (Rmg)

@st (an)
Carton Box (Tonne)

Total (Tonne)

WBIE (AN SHRRE)
Intensity (Tonne/Piece of Finished Product)

12.93%* 26.21%* 25.63%% | 25.14%+ 2018 | 0.00004
2018 | 49 ‘17 2018 | 302 Yl7 2018 | 853 J7 1200 J7 GQ\ 2019 | 0.00004 ﬁi‘z
2019 | 45 2019 | 254 2019 | 745 w o 2 = | a
5 © 2020 | 0.00004
2020 | 34 2020 | 164 2020 | 475 600 N o 5556.2333
20211 36.6410 2021 | 179.2656 20211 527.1595 200 w 5 @ 2021 | 0.00004
o

222.31.9024 | % 132.2873 | *** 392.0441

0
2018 2019 2020 2021

2022

2022 0.00004

B8 EEE SHOPPING BAG CONSUMPTION

(8

*2022 tE¥) 2021 ESLLEE) 2022 vs 2021 % Change)

AT (2
Total (Tonne)

SBE (Au,/ B-EEBTHER)
Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)

50 2018 | 0.108

ggg = 3 Ia) 2019 | 0.097

150 7799 23.60%* N 2020 | 0.065 22.90%*
o = 8 (= 2021 | 0.060 ‘17

g

0
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

B
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BAI) - WRHE :

() BABERERE(EEPIZE®([IPCC)EMHIC20065FIPCC
BRREREEEHED)

(i) HRERPEMEE RAFELE T HEEFHEECE
ERBETE  OEREERSEADHREBREER
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Notes:

1.

GHG Emissions
Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Reporting Markets are the GHG
emissions arising mainly from the use of electricity and fuels derived from fossil fuels.

GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent (in tonnes) and is computed with
reference to:

(i)
(ii)

(iii

(iv)
v)

the “2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories” issued by the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC");

the international reporting framework published by the World Resources Institute and the
World Business Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”;

the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for
Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010 Edition)”
issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and the Environmental
Protection Department in Hong Kong;

the sustainability reports of the Hong Kong Electric Company Ltd, the China Light and Power
Company Ltd and the Companhia de Electricidade de Macau; and

the data published by the International Energy Agency.

In order to provide a more comprehensive view of our GHG impact, we have further classified
the GHG emissions of Giordano into 3 scopes (as below), which are defined in accordance with
the international reporting framework published by the World Resources Institute and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

“Scope 1" covers direct emissions from operations that are owned or controlled by the
Reporting Markets, arising mainly from fuel used by our own corporate vehicles (excluding the
vehicle fleets of our contractors);

“Scope 2" covers “energy indirect” emissions resulting from the generation of purchased
electricity consumed within the Reporting Markets (excluding electricity consumed in some retail
outlets in departmental stores and/or shopping malls where electricity is not separately charged).
“Scope 3" covers other indirect emissions include other indirect emissions that occurs outside
the Reporting Market, including methane gas generation at landfill due to disposal of paper
waste and electricity for water treatment. The calculation of methane gas generation at landfill
due to disposal of paper waste is based on Appendix Il “Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” provided by HKEX. The calculation of electricity for water treatment is based on the
standard of the Water Supplier Department and the Drainage Services Department of Hong
Kong.

In view of our business nature, Giordano is not aware of any significant generation of hazardous waste.

Some retail stores operate in shopping malls and/or departmental stores where water supply and
discharge are controlled by the building management. Thus, the retrieval of the relevant data is not
feasible.

There is no issue in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose during the daily operations of the
Reporting Markets.

The amount of paper use is the amount of paper purchased to support the daily operation of the
Reporting Markets (excluding those of paper shopping bags and packaging material).

The amount of shopping bags consumed is the amount of paper and plastic shopping bags
purchased for store use in the Reporting Markets.
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Paper Reduction

The Group continues to encourage a paperless working environment
which not only reduces environmental damage but also fits commercial
goals, as it can save physical space, facilitate information sharing via IT
networks, and reduce complicated documentation procedures. In recent
years, the Group has implemented paperless internal human resources
processing such as employee timesheets, payrolls, leave applications,
surveys, assessment papers, inspection forms and many more. In addition,
the Finance department adopts a non-paper approval process for
approving the payment of non-trade invoices and the claim of petty cash.
Moreover, duplex printing and copying have become the norm within
the Group, greatly reducing paper consumption and saving costs. Usage
data of office printing machines are regularly collected and assessed for
monitoring the efficiency of the paperless environment.

Secure Printing with Tap & Print

The Group has adopted a “Secure Printing with Tap & Print” printing
solution in the office, helping the Group become more cost-efficient
through smarter printing. The print solution enables the Group to achieve
environmental objectives by reducing unclaimed printing, as printing is
released only upon presentation of a staff card from that particular staff
who gives the printing instruction.

Corporate Communications

The Company strongly recommends shareholders access its corporate
communications, including financial reports, through the websites of the
HKEX and the Company, instead of receiving printed form. By introducing
electronic means of corporate communications to shareholders, the
quantity of printed materials has been considerably reduced. This
paperless practice thus helps to protect the environment, as well as save
costs for printing and administrative charges, etc.

Giordano’s City Centre Deira Store Awarded
4-Stars in Green Star Awards for Environmental
Efforts and Sustainability

In 2020, Giordano’s City Centre Deira store has been awarded 4 Stars
in the Green Star Awards ceremony, which was held at the vibrant
'INDOORS’ pop- up space in City Centre Deira, Dubai. Green Star is
modelled on the United States 'Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Design’ standards (LEED), the points-based rating standard that concerns
the design, construction, operation, and maintenance of green buildings,
malls and neighbourhoods.
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Environmental Aspect A3: Minimizing Impact on the Environment and Natural Resources
for Sustainable Development
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Giordano places great emphasis on protecting the environment and
natural resources. We strive to improve our technical know-how to
minimize the negative impact on the environment during production
and operations. We:

e take into account the environmental impact of our activities and
decisions;

e continuously improve the environmental protection initiatives and
strengthen target and responsibility assessments, environmental
protection supervision and management; and

e strictly control environmental risks.

Giordano follows strict sustainable development practices
throughout its operations, and places environmental protection as
one of its top priorities in the process of supply chain management.
We are concerned with the environmental risk factors in production,
such as emissions and waste discharge. Thus, in the selection of our
suppliers, their measure of protecting the surrounding environment
is one of our key selection criteria.

Moreover, we introduce green elements into our products. For
example, we use polypropylene as one of the major components
of our G-Warmer thermal base layer collection. Polypropylene is
degradable when exposed to heat and UV radiation, and is also
fully recyclable. For our premium activewear brand, Silvermark by
G-Motion, we began using fabrics treated with Teflon-EcoElite
finishing since 2017, which is a non-fluorinated fabric treatment
for durable water repellency with 60% of its raw materials being
renewably sourced.

Furthermore, in support of environmental protection, we opted to
charge more per plastic shopping bag than that requested under
the Environmental Levy Scheme on Plastic Shopping Bags of the
Government of the HKSAR; that is HK$1, to discourage the use of
plastic bags and to encourage customers to bring their own bags.

In addition, stores in the East China region are using paper shopping
bags instead of plastic shopping bags.
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Environmental Aspect A4: Responding to Climate Change
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In recent years, climate change has become an extremely important topic
and is discussed across all facets of society. The Group has raised its
awareness of the risks and potential impacts of climate change towards
the Group. Understanding the potential impacts that the Group may face
in terms of climate change is crucial in combating the climate change
and supporting the transition to a low carbon economy. The Group has
identified various climate-related physical and transitional risks.

Climate-related risk management

By acknowledging the increasing concern of climate change, the Group
has been proactively implementing various measures to address the
climate-related risks. The Group has identified, assessed, managed
and monitored climate-related risks on a regular basis. Risk assessment
was undertaken to evaluate the degree of vulnerability of the business
operations. While the Group's risk inventory was examined as well to
determine any potentially overlooked areas of climate-related risks.
Moreover, appropriate staff are assigned to handle the execution of
climate-related operational activities, which are delegated by the Board
and the RM Committee.

Climate related risks

Physical risks includes the risk of increasing severity of extreme weather
events. Changes in precipitation and rain patterns and extreme variability
in weather patterns may alter customers’ preferences in apparel products
that could indirectly affect sales of the Company. In addition, increasing
operating costs and maintenance costs, such as transportation and
insurance premium costs of the Company, due to prolonged extreme
weather may add extra burden to the Company. For transitional risks, the
Group also expected the ongoing enhancement of emissions-reporting
obligations, and regulations of existing products and services may also
increase the overall operating costs of the Company. It will increase our
cost in meeting the new requirements.

Relevant mitigation measures

Furthermore, the Group may potentially increase the insurance
premiums on assets since operational facilities may be damaged, while
the health and safety of the workforce may also be impacted. In order
to mitigate such risks, the Group maintains

comprehensive insurance coverage for
assets that are prone to damage
by extreme weather conditions,
minimising the potential
maintenance and repair costs
required. In case of emergency
due to extreme climate events,
the Group also adopts special
work arrangements to notify
employees and safeguard
the health and safety of the
workforce under unusual weather
conditions.
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As an international apparel retailer, Giordano's retail network spans
five continents operating through approximately 1,874 points of sales
as of December 31, 2022, which enables us to deliver our "World
Without Strangers’ credo globally. For the Reporting Markets, our
headcount reached 2,503 talents as of December 31, 2022, with a
13.84% decrease from 2021 (2,905):

Giordano believes that its long-term success depends on the
contribution of each and every individual in the organization. As
such, Giordano is committed to treating its staff with fairness and
respect. We believe in cooperation, teamwork and trust as the
foundation of Giordano. We hire based on ability and merit, reward
and promote based on performance.

Graph 2
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BEMZEESTIL Respecting and Reflecting Diversity
BMREEB N EE—EL T TIERE - 7] We believe in diversity and endeavour to safeguard a diverse working

RRTEHRMHETHES environment, which is reflected in the composition of our staff as
demonstrated below:
5 3 Graph 3
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A series of policies, handbooks and protocols are in place in
Giordano to help build a workplace where our staff are treated fairly
and equally, with their rights and interests being protected. These
include:

(i) Staff Handbook

Giordano strictly complies with relevant labour laws and
regulations. All staff are treated equally, and their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their social
identities such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender, religion,
age, sexual orientation, political faction or marital status. All
staff are required to acknowledge receipt of the staff handbook.

(i) Code of Conduct

Giordano believes that honesty, integrity and fairness are
important values, and are crucial to our long-term development
and success. Thus, the Code of Conduct has been established
to convey our expected standards of conduct and practices to
all staff, who are required to adhere to the highest standards of
business and professional ethics so that we can earn the trust of
our business partners and customers and grow our business.

(iii)  Whistle-Blowing Policy

To create an open, transparent and safe working environment
where staff can speak up, we have a longstanding whistle-
blowing policy in place that allows them to raise concerns and
for Giordano to follow up cases in a systematic yet protective
setting. The Company regularly updates the whistle-blowing
policy.

The following people management arrangements are in place in
Giordano to provide our staff with a better environment to work.

(i)  Remuneration

Giordano offers competitive remuneration packages, share
options and generous goal-oriented or performance-based
bonuses tailored to different levels of staff, in order to reward
and retain a high-calibre leadership team.

(i) Increasing Annual Leave Entitlement

In 2017, we largely increased the annual leave entitlement of
staff in the Hong Kong and Macau markets. This not only allows
them to have a better work-life balance and work performance,
but also helps retain and recruit talent as well as enhance
Giordano's competitiveness.
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(iii)

Family-Friendly Employment Practices

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

Flexi-Time Arrangement at Work

We want our staff to both enjoy and succeed at work and
at home. This is one of the keys to both retaining high-
quality staff and allowing them to thrive. That is why we
strive to create a working environment which that caters
for the needs of our staff and their families, with the
introduction of flexitime work arrangements for office staff
in Hong Kong and Taiwan from 2016. Concurrently, for
our shop operations, we also adjust the front-line staff’s
working hours to attract certain targeted manpower, e.g.
homemakers and retirees.

Working from home

During the Covid-19 pandemic and for the sake of the
health of our colleagues, the Company has encouraged
staff to arrange more work from home, to reduce the need
for going out and, thereby, reduce the risk of infection.
At the height of the pandemic, we also introduced other
measures to counteract the risks associated with Covid-19
and to protect our staff, better described in Social Aspect
B2: Occupational Health and Safety below.

Supporting Breastfeeding

In support of our working mothers’ needs of pumping milk
in the workplace, we have specially designated private
space in the office of our Hong Kong Headquarters for
breast milk extraction.

Early Introduction of 14-Week Extended Maternity Leave

In advance of government enforcement, our Hong Kong
Headquarters implemented an extended 14-week paid
maternity leave policy from October 23, 2018, taking care
of the needs of parents working in our Hong Kong offices
and on the front-line to look after their newborn babies.

Early Introduction of 5-Day Paternity Leave

Meanwhile, effective from November 13, 2018, we also
took an early lead in introducing the 5-day paternity leave
for our male staff in Hong Kong, which is far ahead of the
local legislation.

Shortened Daily Working Hours (Office)

To further address staff’'s work-life balance needs, a trial
program first introduced in August 2018 to reduce working
hours in the office of Hong Kong Headquarters by 1-hour
per working day (i.e. from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) has been
made permanent to fulfil individual employees’ personal
and professional goals, effective from October 2018.
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Giordano Taiwan was awarded the Blessed
Enterprise Gold Award conferred by a job portal,
1111 Manpower Bank

In 2022, Giordano Taiwan won the Blessed Enterprise Gold Award issued
by 1111 Manpower Bank with the support of online voters for its positive
corporate culture and mutually supportive working atmosphere. This
award aims to recognize those candidates who have made breakthroughs
in talent strategy management and individuals who have achieved
outstanding achievements. Factors considered in the review include the
support and care for employees, and leadership and management.
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(iv)  Acknowledging Our Staff
(a) Staff Commendation Award Scheme
. Commended cases:

Not only do we circulate commendations from our
customers who acknowledged our staff's good
performance, but our Hong Kong Headquarters
has also additionally implemented a “Staff
Commendation Award Scheme” since September
2016 to encourage and award staff with outstanding
performance and/or significant contributions.
Outstanding staff will be nominated every quarter and
the winners will be awarded a Staff Commendation
Certificate and a cash coupon as a token of our
appreciation.
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(b) Employee Recognition Ceremonies

(c)

The Employee Recognition Ceremonies were introduced
to recognize employees that have gone above and beyond
the call of duty at work during these challenging times.
The event allows the Group's executive management
to publicly acknowledge the staff that has exceeded
expectations, as well as to foster a greater sense of
belonging among Giordano employees.

While the Covid-19 pandemic has indeed forced us to
better manage our expenses, it has also allowed us to
take a more innovative approach towards assessing and
allocating our human resources, allowing us to identify
our best performers and incentivize them accordingly
with enhanced responsibilities, promotions and better
remuneration.

Long Service Award

In recognition of the loyalty and commitment of our long-
serving staff, we present Long Service Awards annually to
staff who have served the Company for 5 years, 10 years
and 30 years, respectively.
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Staff Activities

To reinforce the staff's sense of belonging to Giordano with
a healthy work-life balance, we arrange a wide range of staff
activities every year. This year, we organized various interest
group activities for staff to participate in.

ﬁ B8#TH% Taiwan Market

o Giordano Sports Experience]
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Taguan Mountain, Guanshanling Mountain
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EiEE® Flag Sale Activity)
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Social Aspect B2: Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)
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OHS is a crucial component of Giordano’s overall safety framework,
and reducing health and safety risks in the workplace is an important
and constant objective. In addition to a long history of no-smoking
policy at the workplace, we continued to reinforce our strong
leadership, management system and training programs in 2022, so
as to strengthen our safety culture and enhance our overall OHS
performance. As of last year, Giordano is not aware of any non-
compliant cases relating to OHS.

Information related to work-related fatalities and injuries cases
during 2022 are as follows:

BE IS TR\ Work-related fatalities and injuries

BERERT ST ERMHAZ o 0 0
Number of work-related fatalities occurred

BRLETERH ” . N/A
Number of work-related injuries occurred @ TERA
BIEEEEANITERE e - N/A
Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries TERA

RER—EZENTIERE - 81
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To ensure a safe working environment, we:

()  provide intensive training programs for our staff to improve their
safety awareness;

(i) regularly monitor workplace safety, particularly with District
Supervisors allocated to supervise and monitor shop and
warehouse operations, to ensure each phase of which operates
safely by facilitating necessary tools with a safe working
environment; and

(iii) carry out workplace tidiness at our offices, warehouses and
shops to reduce workplace hazards.

(a) Hosting the webpage “Tips on Occupational Health &
Safety” on the Company’s Intranet

~



(iv)

(b) MANFMEIHRE (b) Office Inspection Report

s TERBEPAZETIFRIEFEIN e Conduct regular office working environment
RRB2 BANEE B inspection to promote cleanliness, fire safety and
gge oy work safety.
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HFECovid-19 KIRTTHIIRIRET - RAIC S N EEEEER  £1THH

Covid-19 TH — ZFIRMAE AR S FRE THERENABEERE - | O~ :
EAXNBRMRE

2020-07-21

Covid-19 Surveys

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Company has strived to Giordano Limited #) Green To i
: f : {RIAR TCovid-19 corporate
mplement bettgr correspondlng measures, and c‘onducted a series armangemant survey SIS
of internal questionnaire surveys on the measures introduced in light ARABRAZ

of the Covid-19 as well as the working environment of our offices to BARGEAR - WA
collect everyone's opinions and feedback. BIREIAR

|

EImeEEAE (iv) Staff Satisfaction Surveys
BF GNRHSETEIREESR Each year, Giordano conducts staff satisfaction surveys to
& UBISERNEE  ERHETA collect useful feedback as reference for improving our policies.
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In addition to working from home and flexible working hours,
the Company has implemented a series of measures in response
to the Covid-19 pandemic including:

Providing alcohol sprays and wipes, hand sanitiser and face
masks, etc.

The Company distributes a small bottle of disinfectant
to each colleague and reminds them to disinfect their
workbench or surrounding areas frequently.

The Company also provides protective and sanitization
equipment, such as masks for frontline store colleagues to
protect the health of colleagues and customers.

Flexible lunch times:

Department heads can arrange flexi-lunch times for
colleagues to avoid crowds gathering in the pantry and
other communal areas.

Temperature measurement:

All people entering the office premises must have their
temperature taken at the door.

Strengthened disinfection and sanitization:

The Company has strengthened the cleaning of toilets and
the pantry, and regularly sprays and disinfects carpets.

Opening of meeting rooms:

The Company continues to open meeting rooms for
colleagues to dine in, thereby increasing the space and
distancing between members of staff.

Maintain air circulation in the office building:

Colleagues in the Company who sit near the windows are
required to open the windows every day when they go to
work to maintain indoor air circulation.

General Guidelines for all staff:
- Wear a mask when working

- Bring your own lunch or take out to the Company to
eat, try to minimize eating in restaurants

- Temporarily avoid gatherings with friends or
colleagues, avoid going to crowded places, and try to
stay at home in your spare time

- Continue to maintain proper social distance
— Do not travel outside Hong Kong unless necessary
Notification mechanism

If a colleague or his/her close contact is infected/ or is
suspected of being infected/or has indirect contact with a
confirmed case, he or she must immediately report this to
the Company’s human resources department.




o BT . Resumption of work arrangements

MAEEZER - THRBAME If a colleague has confirmed case, he or she may resume
Fm B A 2R 3R 22 Covid-19f 1 42 work after completing the isolation according to the
Bl RBAIAETL - Government requirement, and submitting a negative
Covid-19 test result.
o ZEEREIIEG-Learning (R e Learning Department offers Diet and Mental Health in
PP ERBLIGEEEE - G-Learning (Intranet) for staff.
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(" Charter Statement J
o We value having a joyful and healthy workforce.
e We believe that having a joyful and healthy workforce is the
& cornerstone for the fong term success of the organisation.
: e to promote physical and mental well-being among ourseﬁ'rﬂ
with emphasis on the following areas:
2. Physical activity 3. Mmlaf M‘W
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Social Aspect B3: Talent Development and Retention Strategy
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Giordano encourages learning and recognizes that values and
fairness, as well as opportunities for continuous professional and
personal development, are equally important drivers for high
achievers. As such, we invest heavily not only in comprehensive staff
training and development programs in sales and service, but also in
management, planning and leadership programs, to address staff's
professional and personal development needs and to retain a skilled
and motivated workforce.

Pursuant to our 3E (i.e. Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness) policy,
Giordano conducted a review of the team structure by department
heads in 2016 and identified talents for focused development in the
coming years. This remains ongoing.

Giordano has always placed a strong focus on cultivating talent with
an international perspective, insight into international practices and
strong competitiveness.

(i)  Ever since the 1990’s, Giordano has operated a Management
Trainee (the "MT") program to nurture retailing talents, with
satisfactory results.

(i) In 2014, we modified and upgraded our MT Scheme in the
Hong Kong Headquarters to ensure that participants received
a holistic and comprehensive training experience, such that
upon graduation, successful graduates could be placed directly
into mid-management roles. With the renaming of MTs as
Fast- Trackers (the "FTs"), this reform included a tightening in
our admission requirements in terms of academic results and
a restructuring of the syllabus to include real business tasks in
various departments and functions within Giordano. Successful
graduates have now taken on a number of important roles,
including product development and management as well as
brand management. Some of them have even been stationed in
overseas regions.

(iii) In 2017, we also extended this Hong Kong-style FT program to
our Mainland China market to cultivate more retailing talents for
our future growth.

Global Talent Development & Retention Initiative (“TDRI") is one of
our key strategic programmes in the coming years. Apart from hiring
FTs externally, we have turned to pinpoint and groom our existing
talents within the Group’s business across all regions.

Further to the nomination by regional General Managers of between
1 to 3 talents with (i) proven contribution towards their business; and
(ii) potential to become a future member of senior management,
bespoke and role-specific 1-year development program involving
overseas events and short-term postings have been devised and
executed.

~
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5)

Internship Programme

(i)

In 2021, Giordano Saudi Arabia recently rolled-out its new
internship programme, in conjunction with the Jeddah Chapter
of the Entrepreneur Organization.

The innovative internship programme has been tailor-made for
the Saudi market, offering participants a full range of site visits
and tours, followed by work experience in both Giordano’s
retail stores and in their preferred functional departments
at the Company’s regional headquarters, taught sessions in
the realms of sales and marketing and visual merchandising,
and culminating with a final assessment and the issuance of a
completion certificate.

The aim is to maximize the interaction between the Company
and the participants, striking a balance between conveying our
core values while allowing the interns to make decisions about
their participation early on, to identify potential talent for long
term development.

On March 2022, Giordano's South China Command Centre
("Giordano South China”) has established a 3-year school-
enterprise partnership programme with the Guangzhou Liwan
District Foreign Language Vocational High School (“Liwan High
School”).

Under the mutually-beneficial programme, students from
Liwan High School will be able to gain first-hand knowledge
of Giordano South China’s business management experience
as well benefit from mentorship arrangements, while Giordano
South China will be able to identify and pursue high-flyers as
future recruits.

Over 170 students participated in the presentations and 20
successful applicants to the programme will have a 18-week
elective course provided by Giordano implemented into the
school semester, in areas such as basic business management,
bookkeeping, visual merchandising and customer service,
followed by a 6-month internship programme at Giordano's
business operation units will be offered.

GIORDANO
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Giordano Limited

Giordano invests heavily in learning and development to maintain
its competitive edge. We believe that continuous updating of
professional skills and the sharing of knowledge will allow the
Company to grow with the times. We, therefore, allocate ample
resources to staff training and development with the aim of
sustaining a competent, professional and ethical staff force that
will contribute to the success of the Company. In 2022, we have
provided in-house training to our frontline staff and non-frontline
staff of the Reporting Markets for over 17,598 hours and 2,224 hours,
respectively. The total number of training hours delivered this year is
over 19,882 hours.

Giordano has participated in the Manpower Developer Award Scheme
organized by Employees Retraining Board since 2012.

Manpower Developer Award Scheme

A 1%2012-2022

Graph 4

O BIEZAmEileen
A TOTAL IN-HOUSE TRAINING HOURS RECEIVED BY STAFF

* 2022 b1 2021 EHLEE 2022 vs 2021 % Change)

AM®AT
Frontline Staff
2018 35,608
2019 20,137
2020 15,534
2021 13,560
29.78%%*
2022 17,598 /)\# Hours 1&

e RIESEilaEEe
Non-;lff:rﬁl:éEStaﬁ Total in-house Training Hours
Received

7,909 43,516
2,999 23,136
4,288 19,822
1,609 15,169

38.22%%* 30.67%

2,224 /)% Hours A]x 19,882 /)% Hours Lix

1. H2022% - B TRFBHMZIAARB TRIFFRETED
L+ 95l 593.88%12.28.48%
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Notes:

The percentage of employees trained by employment in 2022 is 93.88% and 28.48% for frontline
staff and non-frontline staff, respectively.

The percentage of employees trained by gender in 2022 is 44.02% and 74.13%, for men and
women, respectively.

The average training hours completed per employee by gender category in 2022 are 4.35 hours
and 8.80 hours, for men and women, respectively.

The average training hours completed per employee by employee category in 2022 is 11.58 hours
and 2.26 hours for frontline staff and non-frontline staff respectively.
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7) ABK - BERINIFE (7) People-Oriented Staff Development

BMHETANIIERTE  THRS Based on our staff’s different needs, we regularly organize
BRI B TRy A5 e B E internal training and on-job training for staff in different roles
BRE  BRIEBABEITIIT/ERII - — this not only improves our staff's work performance, but also
TREEN R PI B BRIL(E - DT HRE - helps equip them with new skills to face new challenges.

(a) BT ABEESEE Induction Talk for New Staff)

! l

V B8i#TH% Taiwan Markets

EHEHADHE Orientation for new staff in Tainan District

AT R EARRE - AR TRBATMME Newcomers are welcomed and get to know each other as well as
FEPIAL - BIFM - AL - RER about the company brand, departmental organization, employee
EBEh & BRI E R o handbook, five major cultures, five steps of service and basic

display management.

W \

WEREEY Employment Expo

- /2m022¢7ﬂ23 AERURBES - BE - Employment Expo for Youth and Elderly on July 23, 2022: 34
B34 NEL - Applicants.

- 2022/?1 THR2EFRRRAXBRES - Employment Expo for Middle-aged and Elderly on November
RIEEAS AR - 12, 2022: 45 Applicants.
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Gb) BB REBAS Recruitment channel development)

= /ngﬂﬂy\.fé/\TﬁﬁﬁzFﬁﬁfﬁgﬁeTﬁﬁq In response to talent needs, Giordano Taiwan continues to develop
BEE BRTAEHEB/IMANRIT  11MT1A recruitment channels. In addition to continuously recruiting through
TRITHES - MRS BUNEBE SR E R 104 Manpower Bank and 1111 Manpower Bank, Giordano Taiwan
B OEMMBAREREFES - BEAB also cooperates with the government’s gradual unblocking policy
AEE - BINZITNBEEEE  EaETH of the epidemic, and then signs up for large-scale job fairs, actively
SEMER - explores talent recruitment channels, increases multiple recruitment

channels, and improve talent recruitment flexible use.

) (c) #EREH Refresher Trammg)

BT EEE IMERTEES - BIEFIIbE In addition to strengthening the basic skills, we equip staff with the
BT AREINEMNNMZ  LWEBTRE latest information and knowledge, so that they could carry out their
REMEEKE - duties to the highest standards.

Q) wimum® singapore Market {ﬁ ﬁ ﬁ ﬁ i‘?

Top Individual Top Shops per Group

Lot 1 Lot 1 AMK
Lia Yee Chin Airin Lot1 Ws
107 responses 21 responses 25 responses
51 responses 40 responses 38 responses
$9 Cl'g $80 @le \ Sl Gle Vv

Great service! Staff Liais very | | Good service. Went the Alrinis very Good services and She help me in the Very commendabla for
attentive, courteous and extra mile to look for knowledgeable in her recommended good clothing to sizes and very fast the lively and
:nm:;;g \:stltee[dol:;ny times sizes not available on products n extremely customers ransacion ol the enthusiastic customer
disappointed, thank you so shelf and friendly helpfult counter. Also she o9, Thak you very

H ; i - P — s much. We will come
muchl, Very Nice, Very polite. attilude. , Good services | tjvate Window explain the back
Most of all super helpful n and recommended good 1 membership clearly Ll
powerlul knowledge. She serve | clothing's to customers | and is a very cheerful
me very well. love it 5 person!
I love it e ] 6

TN A FHR B = S IR A B TR BRI AT In Singapore, customer feedback and evaluation made faster by
Bk %ﬁﬂﬂi&%}g&ﬁfﬂ FHMERER - AR creating QR code to submit their service assessment and compliments

] FRFEEEFI - WAIBZEE IFEASEAL S TA to the staff. Giordano Singapore launched a service training and
§ KR mZE %%/A%(?% REFs &S ° created quarterly games to find out which staff and which shops have
& received the most number of compliments and high scores in service
z ratings.
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V B ™ China Market
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Providing online training for front-line employees during the period
of home isolation during the epidemic to cultivate a positive attitude,
and help improve sales skills after returning to normal: including
emergencies, corporate employee spirit, basic editing introduction,
basic EXCEL tutorials, clothing sales skills etc.

In addition, online training assessments are also carried out to increase
the results of online training.

20227 & kAl
2022 Product Knowledge Trainings

EFMIE West China reglon

FEJLHIE North China region
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V HHETH Hong Kong Market

o RAFETRHEATRE

- EBEEAHERE BEReEERNG
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- BFBEBING-lLearning &£ F2E
FRREMNENE  ZBEIR
RIEHEAREE -

Provide the following training to all frontline staff, including:

Product knowledge — provide basic textile and new products
knowledge

Online team building — enhance team work and mental
wellness during pandemic

Workplace health and Safety Training — provide workplace
safety knowledge and how to handle emergency cases

Provide knowledge challenge on G-Learning online learning
platform for all staff, in order to encourage self learning
during pandemic.
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e-Learning course “Awareness Training on Phishing
- Giordano”

In order to improve the cybersecurity awareness of all our staff, we have
engaged a service provider to launch an e-Learning course “Awareness
Training on Phishing — Giordano” for our staff in the second half of the
year. Phishing is one of the most popular cybersecurity attacks. According
to the data provided by the International Security Institution, corporate
intrusion is often initiated by phishing emails. Strengthening our defence
against phishing attacks can greatly reduce the likelihood of security
incidents. It is noticed that our staff are more vigilant about the potential
phishing email after the e-Learning period. The percentage of clicks on
phishing emails has significantly dropped from 20% (1st round phishing
simulation) to 1% (2nd round phishing simulation), which is far below the
average of the retail industry.

In addition, the IT department has repeatedly reminded colleagues
to guard against hackers that may target the Company’s computers.
Colleagues should not open links and files in emails at will. If the Company
suffers losses due to the negligence of a computer user, the colleagues
may well be held liable.

G-Learning - Online training resources on Cyber Security Awareness Training )

— Y| G-Learning - #§ LIZHIHF - M2 EEMEN

ol

%o canvatiorsuscoss

N

Giordano P& 224 BRI

* From SHINEWING Risk Services Limited

ek IR R TR AR ]

= 27 May 2022
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(i) Internal Training

Other internal training programs are designed to help staff
develop their capabilities, advance their careers and enhance
their management and interpersonal skills.

GIORDANO
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(iii)
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(i)

Giordano Corporate Management Guide

Giordano’s core values, corporate culture and accumulated
experience are all part of our success story. Led by our Chairman
and Chief Executive, Dr Lau Kwok Kuen, Peter, together with
the contribution of staff members from various departments,
we have summarized this information into four guide books
for staff’s handy reference. It is hoped that, by turning tacit
knowledge built on experiences, aptitudes and know-how into
explicit knowledge, our staff could benefit in the long term.
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G-Learning

(iii)

[ B

New G-Learning Platform

As the epidemic has seriously affected the current work
and study mode, the Company continues to make changes
according to actual needs. The Company revamped the old
L&D online platform and transformed it into a platform that
allows colleagues to continue learning without restriction no
matter where they are, and provides learning opportunities for
colleagues in different forms.
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

Self-Learning Scheme

Through the Self-Learning Scheme adopted since 1999 in
Hong Kong Headquarters, we foster a continuous learning
atmosphere to promote staff’s individual initiative and
responsibility for development by self-learning.
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Survey on Training Needs

Each year, we conduct a survey to understand our staff's
expectations and needs for training, which aids in designing the
useful and practical training programs for them in the following
year.

Training Subsidies

(a)

Study Allowance Scheme

To encourage our staff to enhance their knowledge
and skills for personal growth, which benefits their work
performance and future career development, Hong Kong
Headquarters has set up a “Study Allowance Scheme” to
subsidize our staff in taking external work-related training
courses.

Management Academic Assistance Scheme

The "Management Academic Assistance Scheme” has
been implemented since September 2016, which is
designed to develop existing and potential management
talent at Hong Kong Headquarters through financial
support to successful applicants who wish to pursue
higher education, such as studying undergraduate, or
postgraduate degrees or attainment of professional
qualifications or accreditation.
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Social Aspect B4: Policies on Labour Standards and Human Rights
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GIORDANO

Safeguarding the rights of
employees and creating an

environment of respect, integrity
and fairness for employees is of
paramount importance to the
Group. Giordano prohibits the
employment of child, forced
or compulsory labour in any
of its operations, including at
suppliers’ production facilities.

The Internal Audit, Quality
Assurance and Human Resources
departments implement a
comprehensive checking systems during

the recruitment process to ensure compliance

with all the applicable laws and regulations regarding employment
and labour standards. If child or forced labour is found in any place
of production, the Group will warn the particular supplier. If repeated
violations occur, the Group will terminate all business with the supplier
concerned.

In 2022, we did not identify any operation or suppliers having significant
risks of child labour, workers exposed to hazardous works, or forced or
compulsory labour.
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ERROHEREEERIAMEBEEZE A KH At Giordano, supply chain management is based on the premise

B REETESNHENMEERAE  motpAM of satisfying customers’ needs, and better coordination among the
E Bl B MR ERIRE c EERLE R various functions of our business, such as the supplies, manufacturing,
WIS RERE - PR ER A - (F R & warehousing and distribution through better planning and information
Kb o sharing. With more effective integration of resources, we thus reduce

costs and maximize efficiency.

HZE2022F12A31H » EFREBF145KHE As of December 31, 2022, Giordano has a total of 145 suppliers, located in
7 AmEtRE different parts of the world:

Graph 5
\ 2018 | 97 (80.8%) 3 2.07%)
(EEE) 2019 | 93 (81.6%)

. [t | —ERERREREERER
FERAREMACHE A R EER -

. BT AL B AR R H A EE B AL AR
WL EMETE °

. RIS D AR RE - (858 F A8 0

CHINA 2020 | 105 (83.3%)
(including Hong Kong) 9 (6.21%)

2021 | 108 (87.1%)

2018 11 (9.2%)

RATBENE R E M5 100%

R 52 2019 11 (9.7%) HEmORRS
SOUTHEAST 2020 9 (7.1%) Suppliers by Suppliers ] §
ASIA o by Geographical Region Notes: N
2021 12 (9.7%) . “Supplier” refers to the manufacturers g
2 2 2 of apparel and accessories which are -

i | i .
2018 5 (4.8%) il:ect y engage:by IGlordan‘o f g
S . e geographical location of a

@\/ﬂ 2019 3 (2.6%) 1 31 (90.34%) Supplier is based on the location -
- : of its production facilities and its R
EU ROPE 2020 7 (5.6%) headquarters. %
2021 0 . The respective figure may not add up WL
B E(aEEs) B to 100%, due to rounding. o
24 ( BLFL & K] =
2018 6 (5.0%) CHINA (including Hong Kong) EUROPE K
LI b: 9 \:ii
g {Ph% 2019 7 6.1%) G B R .
REST of the 2020 5 (4.0%) SOUTHEAST ASIA REST of the WORLD i
WORLD &
2021 4 (3.2%) =
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We have established a complete supplier quality assurance mechanism,
which covers the approval and evaluation of suppliers, quality inspection
and supervision, strategic supplier development and materials
procurement. Furthermore, we actively promote the sustainable
development of our supply chain and the joint fulfilment of corporate
social responsibility with our partners to provide the public with high-
quality products and services. As such, supply chain management is always
one of the key links in Giordano’s quality control system.

(1) Ethical Sourcing

As supply chain management is critical for Giordano's success, we
work closely with suppliers to ensure that they comply with our
quality, performance and not least labour standards. In particular,
we expect them to comply with the below “Core Ethical Sourcing
Requirements”:

e only employs workers that are above the local legal minimum
age;

e does not use forced or prison labour in any part or aspects of its
facilities;

. does not, or threaten to, physically abuse its workers;
e  does not contravene local environmental laws and regulations;

e provides a safe and healthy work environment for its workers;

and

e is compliant with our various standards and committed to
following up on corrective actions.

We aim to do business with those suppliers sharing similar values and
principles, and intend to purchase from those who meet our above “Core
Ethical Sourcing Requirements” and have demonstrated a commitment to
improving their standards on labour, health and safety, and environmental
practices. Thus, prior to engagement, new suppliers are required to
complete and pass our “Ethical Audit Questionnaire”.

(2) Quality Assurance Mechanism

()  Giordano exercises a high level of scrutiny over the selection
of suppliers. Apart from eligibility checking, suppliers are also
subject to assessment and on-site audits on product quality as
well as suitability and quality consistency tests conducted by our
Quality Assurance Team. Only those who pass our audits and
assessments will be included in the “Qualified Supplier List” for
bulk purchases. Also, to ensure our product quality, we carry
out long-term quality monitoring and regular audits/reviews
on all suppliers. Should there be any significant change in a
supplier’s eligibility or any serious quality issue, we may suspend
its deliveries immediately and, if necessary, cancel its status as
our qualified supplier. Moreover, our unannounced inspections
from time-to-time will ensure our suppliers comply with our
various standards.
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(i) In order to mitigate environmental and social risks within our
supply chain, and to promote the sustainable development of
our suppliers, a "Quality Manual” which covers below guiding
documents is also distributed to our key suppliers:

° “Suppliers Code of Conduct”;
o “Workplace Standards”;

° “Product Safety and Regulated Substances Specification”;
and

e "Accepting and Offering Policy”.
Enhancing Competitiveness by Technological Innovation

Giordano will carefully examine every detail of the production
process and raise any issues that may be discovered, to work with
its suppliers to identify possible areas for further improvement. By
optimizing the process, upgrading the technology and improving
the workmanship, our suppliers not only greatly improve their
production efficiency and product quality, but also help upgrade
their capabilities in response to more challenging markets and
enhance their competitiveness. This close-knit working relationship
between both sides allows the parties to maintain more stable and
mutually beneficial cooperation.

Inventory Control

(i)  Inventory control is a key indicator of merchandising efficiency
and remains a core competence of Giordano. The Inventory
turnover on cost for the year ended December 31, 2022,
decreased by 18 days to 135 days. Most of the merchandise
is evergreen and in-season styles. Our inventory level remains
healthy.

(i) In addition to our own consolidated inventory, Giordano
responsibly monitors inventory held at our suppliers and the
franchisees in Mainland China to ensure that we do not build
up off-balance-sheet inventory that would jeopardize our
merchandising flexibility and wholesale business in future.
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GIORDANO

At Giordano, we continuously strive to provide our customers with the
most enlightening shopping experience. Giordano's straight-forward
mission, ‘To Make People FEEL GOOD and LOOK GREAT’, fully illustrates
our total commitment to superior service and outstanding quality.

(1) "Giordano Means Service” Campaign

Giordano’s commitment to superior service stems from the
"Giordano Means Service” campaign which was first launched in
1989, at which time every staff wore a yellow badge bearing the
words “Giordano Means Service”. Since then, quality service has
become one of the tenets of Giordano.

To ensure every shop staff offers excellent customer service, we
conduct performance evaluations frequently at the store level, as
well as for frontline staff by mystery shoppers. Our efforts to provide
excellent customer service have been recognized by a long list of
service-related awards we have received over the years.
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"Exceeding customers’ expectations” is a simple objective that
Giordano has upheld for many years, which we achieve through
“thinking one step ahead for customers’ needs” and "providing
tailor-made services”. Our frontline staff provide professional advice
and flexible and rapid response to customers, helping them choose
the right products in need. Meanwhile, to satisfy our customers, we
also allow them to return and exchange products after purchases.

Awards and Recognition

. Giordano GCC won the RLI Global Retailer of the Year Award
bestowed by Retail & Leisure International (RLI).

The RLI Global Retailer of the year awards solidified Giordano's
position as a world-class operator across all facets of its
business, delivering exceptional retail experiences, growth, and
innovative change to reflect evolving industry trends.

This award is an affirmation of our unrelenting drive to create
a unique and innovative shopping experience and offer
exceptional product quality to our customers and the wider
community.

o Giordano GCC won the Best Middle East and North Africa
(MENA) Retail Brand Gold Award, awarded by the Middle East
Council of Shopping Centres & Retailers (MECS+R).

The 2022 MENA awards identify and honour the shopping
centres, retailers and individuals that have demonstrated an
unparalleled ability to succeed, continually set standards of
excellence, and implement innovation and creativity throughout
the industry.

MECS+R is considered the voice of the retail industry for
retailers, mall owners and all retail professionals in the Middle
East, North Africa and beyond. This award is particularly
meaningful as it acknowledges the Group’s market expansion
efforts in Africa over the last few years, especially in the face of
adversity due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

e 2019 Outstanding QTS Merchant & Service Staff Awards

Hosted by Hong Kong Tourism Board to award the retailers for
their outstanding services, Giordano won a silver award in 2019.
Also, Giordano has continuously been recognized as a Quality
Merchant by the Hong Kong Tourism Board for 15 years.

e  Giordano Website won Top 10 eCommerce Website Award

The Retail Asia Expo has awarded Giordano’'s eCommerce
website as one of the "Top 10 eCommerce websites” for
2018. This "Top 10 eCommerce Website Award”, which
recognized and awards websites that have raised the bar for
user experience and achieved outstanding operation growth,
has acknowledged Giordano’ s e Commerce website for
fostering and delivering continuous and exemplary e-commerce
standards as well as enhancing user experience with an
outstanding shopping platform.
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GIORDANO

Giordano Junior was awarded with “2018 Parents’ Favorite
Family Brand”

Giordano Junior was awarded “2018 Parents’ Favorite Family
Brand” under the “Children Clothing” category in 2018. This
Award was presented by Baby Kingdom, a popular online
parent-child platform in Hong Kong. Further to the assessment
by the members of Baby Kingdom and a panel of professional
judges, Giordano Junior stood out from the other 3 finalists,
being in recognition of its creative designs and high-quality
products.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not recall any
products for safety and health reasons. It did, however, receive
179 product and service-related complaints in the reporting
markets. All complaints have been resolved by product
exchange or communication. The Group continues to provide
training to new employees, senior sales and supervisors,
enabling them to better understand customer needs and excel
in their performance to meet customer’s expectations.

(2) Safety and Health

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

In addition to professional customer service, a pleasant
shopping experience also requires a comfortable and safe
shopping environment. We are committed to (a) ensuring a
safe and healthy environment for our staff and customers, and
(b) eliminating preventable accidents and health hazards in our
business locations.

As mentioned earlier Social Aspect B5(2)(ii), we have a Quality
Manual setting forth our standards and specification regarding
product quality and safety for our suppliers’ compliance.

We demand our suppliers to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations on product safety, and regularly update them on
the hazardous substance and inhumane production processes
banned by Giordano, such as the “sandblasting” process and
the “live-plucking” goose down process.

The Group requires all suppliers and manufacturers of its
products and packaging to comply with the Group's policy.
The Group keeps its sourcing protocols reviewed regularly
and up-to-date in order to maintain the high quality and safety
standards of its products and customer satisfaction. The Group
cooperates only with suppliers which can provide products of
high quality and checks if flaws are found to ensure the product
quality.

We also engage independent and accredited third-party
laboratories to test our materials and products, to ensure
compliance with international safety standards.

"We care because you care”

Much effort has been spent on product safety, which is one of
our core values. For instance, we make sure that all drawstrings
in our Giordano Junior clothing are fixed to the waistband
to avoid pulling out by children accidentally. We also will not
use metal zippers, which are however commonly used by our
counterparts.
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(vii) Giordano keeps up with the needs of customers of all ages
and backgrounds and puts product quality and safety first. Our
teams in product development, quality assurance, sourcing,
frontline sales and customer service go the extra mile to ensure
the quality and safety of each and every product we carry.
Over the past year, there are no incidents of product recall or
non-compliance due to safety or health issues.

Protecting intellectual property rights
(i)  "IP Manager Training Program”

Nowadays, intellectual property (“IP”) is recognized as a key
element in business development and, here at Giordano,
protecting IP rights is one of our top priorities. To enhance
awareness of IP protection within Giordano and to proactively
protect our IP from infringement, two of our subsidiaries
participated in the IP Manager Scheme organized by the
Intellectual Property Department of Hong Kong in 2017. After
completion of its “IP Manager Training Program” by our staff,
we were awarded a Certificate of Commendation.

(i)  The Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (the “PDPO") Seminar

The Legal Manager of our global Legal and Company
Secretarial Department based in Hong Kong held two rounds
of Data Privacy Regulation in Asia seminar in English and
Cantonese via online lecture in June 2021, striving to train our
staff in various markets can understand the basic concepts of
the Ordinance, practical industry information and protection of
personal and customer privacy. All office and shop colleagues
must participate and complete a quiz.

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policies

Customer privacy has become a hot topic that we cannot overlook.
In compliance with the local laws and the European Union’s General
Data Protection Regulations (effective from May 25, 2018, “GDPR"),
we have updated our Group-wide “Privacy Policy and Personal
Information Collection Statement” and “Privacy Notice” (both in
English and Chinese, as uploaded onto our official websites and/
or e-shops, where appropriate) for the public and customers’
reference. We invited an independent third-party global law firm to
audit our practices and confirmed our compliance with the GDPR.
Furthermore, staff are kept reminded to fully observe the policy from
time to time.

During COVID-19 Pandemic, Giordano has launched a series of
antimicrobial products to help customers fight the virus.

° During March 2022, the outbreak of COVID-19 in Hong Kong,
Giordano Hong Kong sold Rapid Covid-19 Antigen Self-Test
("RAT") Kits at an affordable price.
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On April 2022, the schools in Hong Kong would resume. New
rules was be imposed, including the requirement that all
students and teachers are to take daily RATs. To alleviate the
financial burden on local families, Giordano offered half price
discount to all primary and secondary school students on the

GIORDANO
HEALGEN Rapid COVID-19 Antigen Self-Test Kit

FREERRR RS
REED HERRE

B 0.0 V(e

o MERIFIREHRH - ENIMEFITHE o During these trying times, Giordano remains totally customer
responsive and relentless in our efforts to protect both our staff

SMEETANER  TEHSHERF

HETIMEA -

o FERRBEAERBEMEREAEHSER - e  Giordano Hong Kong offered complimentary sanitizers to its
customers.

GIORDANO

RAT Kits.

RS ELARFIRPISES T Sandra !
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and our valued customers.
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Free Garcia Jopan sanitizer rsem
upon single purchase of HK$500
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Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, customers have spent more time at
home. Giordano produced a total of eight episodes of home sports
specials and uploaded those videos to video-sharing channels for
customers and members of the public to watch and enjoy.

GIORDANO G-Motion REEEN K (/%)
GIORDANO G-Motion Home Sports Special (eight episodes)

//

PHyLLIS NG
Personal Trainer
Vinoti Fitness

RCOVID- 19K ITHRMA - R M T & KNRE A
BEBIEIEMBIRTT - REZERQBIZDDINIGR
)SU%HLE? T REIET —HERNENTTILE

W EHEER O FRERBEERTREE -

TED CHEUNG =
Head Coach
Vinoti Fitness

During the Covid-19 pandemic, customers and the public at large have
not been able to leave Hong Kong for non-essential travel. Most residents
chose to go hiking in the countryside to relax and stay healthy. Giordano
has produced a total of six episodes of a hiking special and uploaded
them to video-sharing channels for customers and members of the public
to watch and enjoy.

GIORDANO G-Motion fTIL%F &R (#K)
GIORDANO G-Motion Hiking Special (six episodes)

{ HIKIREDIA
"‘IJJEEﬁEE
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Social Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption
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GIORDANO

We adopt a zero-tolerance approach towards bribery and corruption,
and our Staff Handbook and Code of Conduct (as uploaded onto
the Company’s Intranet) clearly inform our staff of Giordano’s
strict standards regarding anti-corruption, anti-bribery, conflicts of
interest, gift, procurement and whistle-blowing policies, as well as
our policies on dealings and investment in Giordano's shares.

To ensure that our staff comply with the requirements imposed and
uphold high ethical standards, all staff are required to complete and
submit a “Declaration of Interests” at least once a year. If there are
any cases of conflict of interest, the relevant staff are required to
update their declaration immediately.

We also proactively promote business integrity and ethics among our
staff by organizing seminars on anti-corruption regularly. These types
of seminars are compulsory to be attended at least once by each
Hong Kong Headquarters staff.

A series of training, including orientation training and refresher
training, are conducted regularly within the Group to support
adherence to various policies and practices including those related
to anti-corruption.

Our whistleblowing channels empower our employees to play an
active role in protecting our business. They can seek guidance and
report misconduct anonymously to their department heads or the
Audit Committee. All reports are handled with care and fairness to
ensure that whistleblowers are protected against unfair dismissal,
victimisation and unwarranted disciplinary actions.

Furthermore, our contracts with suppliers require their full
compliance with our Quality Manual, including “Advantage
Solicitation and Acceptance” as quoted in earlier Social Aspect B5(2)
(ii). In addition, we regularly issue reminders to all relevant staff,
business associates and suppliers reminding them of our Group
Policy on Accepting and Offering Advantages (i.e. twice a year,
before the Mid-Autumn Festival and Chinese Lunar New Year). We
are not aware of any incidents of noncompliance in relation to anti-
corruption in 2022.

~



It EEEBS : it ESH

Social Aspect B8: Community Involvement
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Contributing to our communities is a very important part of Giordano's
ethos. Acting on our belief in a "World Without Strangers’, Giordano
actively supports various charitable organizations and causes, especially
those associated with education, children and the underprivileged.
Giordano has engaged in a number of ongoing educational projects:

(1) In 2014, we launched the "Do Not Read This” campaign in
conjunction with Room to Read, which raised funds for the non-profit
organization through selling limited-edition T-shirts in Giordano's
shops. With Giordano’s donations, Room to Read published
15,000 copies of two children’s books in two Indian languages for
underprivileged children.

(2)  This focus on education for underprivileged children is also evident in
another Giordano’s ongoing project, Project Hope, a public service
project organized by the China Youth Development Foundation.
Giordano has been a long-standing supporter of the project’s work in
providing children in poverty-stricken rural areas of Mainland China
with access to primary school education by funding the construction
of a number of Giordano Hope primary schools. As of the end of
2021, 22 Giordano primary schools of Hope have been completed.

(3)  We also donated to the Caring for Children Foundation in support of
children’s welfare in Mainland China.

(4) Hong Kong Daily News One of the children is books, in Hindi, was
published by Room to Read with Giordano's donation.

(5) In 2018, Giordano Malaysia launched the “We Love Orangutans” and
“Amazing Ocean” campaigns revolving around wildlife conservation.

(6) In 2019, Giordano Taiwan had several community activities, including
second-hand clothing donations and beach cleaning activities.

(7) In 2020, Giordano Thailand Volunteer Team participated in Prasingh
Temple Grounds Cleaning Day. A team of volunteers from Giordano
Thailand converged in the northern city of Chiangmai to take part
in a cleaning day for the local Prasingh temple. The 25-strong
team comprising the entire Chiangmai frontline staff and the area
supervisor of the Northern Region of Thailand cleaned lavatories and
the temple grounds of Prasingh Temple, keeping them safe for both
tourists and the resident monks.

(8) In 2021, a team of volunteers from Giordano Singapore took part in
a community event hosted by TOUCH Community Services, a not-
for-profit charity organisation in Singapore (“Touch”). Giordano’s
20 strong volunteer team acted as Smart Phone Trainers, helping
to coach the elderly to use smartphone based on lesson plans
designed to customize the training catered to seniors’ pace; and a
team of volunteers from Giordano Singapore took part in the Meals
on Wheels community event hosted by Touch. Bento boxes were
prepared in the THC Centre, following which the eight volunteers
from Giordano delivered Bento boxes to various homes of the
elderly.
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In 2021, Giordano Indonesia recently established the "Giordano
Berbagi Programme” with Aksi Cepat Tanggap (ACT) Indonesia, a
professional philanthropic institution, to raise funds for the flood
victims in the Bekasi and Karawang areas of Indonesia.

Funds were raised with the willing participation of Giordano
Indonesia’s customers during a live event on Instagram. The entire
100% of donations were used to purchase groceries, masks, hand
sanitisers, clothing and other necessities for the flood victims.

In 2021, Giordano South China established its official partnership
with Star Studios and Mobile Library. The first event organized under
the partnership was a charitable t-shirt auction involving artwork
designed by the village children, including special educational needs
children, printed onto Giordano Junior’s t-shirts using the Company'’s
PTO (print-to-order) service, as well as a donation of books from
Giordano to Star Mobile Library.

Meanwhile, the North China Command Centre of Giordano
("Giordano North China”) commenced partnership with Peking
University's outdoor sports team and track racing team (the
“Teams"). Under the partnership, Giordano North China will supply
the Company’s G-Motion apparel to the Teams as part of their official
team uniform and performance competition wear.

WWS Charitable Fund

The Giordano World Without Strangers Charitable Fund (the “WWS
Charitable Fund” or the "Fund”) has gone online, with the Fund'’s
background information, mission, donation details and monthly
statements are available on the Company’s corporate website at
http://corp.giordano.com.hk/en/wws_charitable_fund.aspx.

The WWS Charitable Fund allocates funds raised to make a
difference for people in need. Past projects have ranged from
primary education initiatives involving the printing and distribution of
educational materials and stationery, helping remote villages in rural
China to achieve sustainable development, supporting local ethnic
minority students, meal tickets for the underprivileged, supporting
orphans and children with disabilities, all the way through to rapid
response to individuals who have found themselves in emergency
financial crisis for which other sources of help may not be available.

Global Sports Programs

Giordano has traditionally chosen to work with sports organizations
in the markets it operates it, or aims to be in, engaging with local
communities and working together to make an actual difference.

Giordano's sponsorship of apparel represents a win-win situation
for all stakeholders involved: the Group can showcase its brand and
quality apparel to customers or future customers in those markets
through an authentic and practical medium, while allowing the
sporting bodies to free up resources to invest in coaching, player
welfare and development initiatives.

Over the past few years, Giordano has worked with Rugby,
Football, Hiking and Trail running teams from all over the world,
including China, Japan, Uganda, Egypt, Tunisia and Kazakhstan,
from grassroots level all the way through to elite national teams, in
children’s, women’'s and men'’s sports.

~
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Giordano is currently the title apparel sponsor for the Kazakhstan
men’s and women's national Rugby teams, the Tunisia men’s and
women's national Rugby teams, as well as the Malta Rugby League
men’s and women's national Rugby teams.

In 2022, Giordano held the following activities in different markets:
Giordano China
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In order to further promote Giordano's spirit of ‘World Without
Strangers’, Shanghai’'s Giordano team joined hands with
Shanghai Zhang Zhiyong Public Welfare Service Association to
carry out a love donation activity on February 21, 2022.

Through this activity of donating surplus clothes, people in
need in society can receive help and care, and families in
impoverished mountainous areas can get the warmth brought
by "Giordano”. The Company hoped the small acts of kindness
would bring great power.

The donated clothes were sorted and packed by colleagues,
and then donated to impoverished families in Yunnan, Xinjiang,
and Xishuangbanna Prefecture.

After the children received the beautiful new clothes, their faces
were filled with happy smiles. The distribution of warm clothing
made the children feel the deep love and care for them. After
the ceremony, the children said that they would continue to
study hard, set up lofty aspirations, and better pass on love
when they grow up.
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Giordano Hong Kong

In 2022, the WWS Charity Fund organized 5 employee
self-funded activities, including Charity Health Talks,

Charity Bazaar and Sample Sales, which raised a total of
HK$35,790.
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Charity Bazaar
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GIORDANO

During the peak period of COVID-19 in February 2022,
the WWS Charity Fund sent warm clothes to the citizens
who were waiting outside the emergency department of
Hong Kong hospitals in severe cold weather for medical
treatment.
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(iii)

(iv)

WWS Charity Fund donated RAT Kits to Caritas Hong
Kong.

WWS Charity Fund donated RAT Kits and SIM data cards
to Share for Good, a city-wide crowd donation platform for
support youths with special educational needs.

On September 2022, WWS Charity Fund donated clothing
and toys to Refugee Union in Hong Kong and carrying out
an in-house charity bazaar to raise funds.
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(vi)

(vii)

WWS Charity Fund donated television sets to primary and
secondary schools in Hong Kong.

WWS Charity Fund participated in the Flag Day organized
by the Christian Family Center in November 2022 to
support children with special needs, poor families,
subdivided housing households, community development
and caregiver services. There were 21 employees in Hong
Kong with their families participated in the Flag Day.
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Giordano Taiwan

In December 2022, Giordano Taiwan cooperated with KPMG.
Through the assistance of the Company's e-commerce team,
it provided high-quality children’s clothing and outerwear
products for KMPG's internal subscription. A total of 606 school
children received a pair of sports shoes, a warm jacket or a
backpack as Christmas gifts under the sponsorship of all KPMG
colleagues, so that the schoolchildren can feel the warmth and
love when Christmas comes.

Giordano Taiwan cooperated with Taitung Food Bank to carry
out both internal donations and external donations, including
donation of used clothing.
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Giordano Mauritius

Giordano Mauritius participated in the 2nd Charity Golf Trophy
organized by the Order of Malta (Mauritius) (the “Order”) first
aid and volunteer service held at the Mont Choisy Le Golf on
April 2022.

The Order of Malta is a mission dedicated to the care and
service for the vulnerable and the sick, the forgotten or
excluded members of society. The Order of Malta works in over
120 countries through the provision of medical and emergency
humanitarian relief, social assistance and a broad spectrum of
charitable works.

Giordano Mauritus specifically chose to sponsor the ambulance
station displayed at the Golf Tournament to raise both funds
and awareness for the Order, so that they have the resources to
acquire further medical equipment and first aid accessories.

GIORDANO
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Sustainability Advisory Services Limited
17/F, Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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EEMERREETTR
BWRO71E

Scope and Objective of Verification

SHINEWING Sustainability Advisory Services Limited (“SHINEWING") has
been engaged by Giordano International Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 709)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Giordano”) to undertake
an independent verification of its Environmental, Social and Governance
Report 2022 (the ESG Report). The ESG Report stated the environmental
and social performance of Giordano in the period of 1st January 2022
to 31st December 2022. This independent assurance statement is for
the use by the stakeholders and management personnel of Giordano.
If there is any inconsistency or ambiguity between the English version
and the Chinese version of this assurance statement, the English version
shall prevail.

The aim of this verification is to provide a Type 2 moderate assurance
on the reported information in accordance with AA1000 Assurance
Standard. The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with
Appendix 27 “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
(“"Appendix 27") of the Main Board Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK").

Level of Assurance and Methodology

The process applied in this verification was based on Type 2 Moderate
Level of Assurance in accordance with the AA1000 Assurance Standard
v3 ("AA1000AS v3”) issued by the AccountAbility. Our evidence
gathering process was designed to obtain a reasonable level of
assurance as set out in the standard for the purpose of devising the
verification conclusion.

SHINEWING's assurance activities included the following:

. Review of ESG Report compilation process including stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment processes.

e System and process for collecting, collating and reporting
sustainability performance data were verified.

e Interviews with managers responsible for sustainability
performance and data collection.

e  Verification of the representative sample of data and information,
including an audit of conversion factors and calculations. Raw
data and supporting evidence of the samples were also thoroughly
examined during the verification process.

e Assessment of the extent to which Giordano’s sustainability
activities adhere to the AAT000AS v3 Principles of inclusivity,
materiality, responsiveness and impact.

Independence

Giordano is responsible for the data collection, calculation and
presentation of the information presented. Our verification activities
are independent from Giordano. There is no relationship between
SHINEWING and Giordano that will affect the independence of
SHINEWING for providing the verification service.
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Conclusion

In accordance with the principles of Inclusivity, Materiality,
Responsiveness and Impact in the AAT000AS v3, our conclusions are
detailed as follows:

e Inclusivity: Giordano has identified key stakeholders and
continuously communicated with key stakeholders through various
channels to understand their expectations and concerns. On this
basis, Giordano has fully considered the expectations of, and the
impacts on, key stakeholders in formulating its policies.

e  Materiality: Giordano has identified its material issues through
appropriate methods based on the expectations and concerns
of the key stakeholders, its own industry characteristics, legal
and regulatory requirements, and outward economic and social
impacts. Giordano has disclosed the methodology, process and
results of materiality assessment in the ESG Report.

e Responsiveness: Giordano has established channels for its
stakeholders to understand their concerns and expectations.
Meanwhile, through the ESG Report, Giordano has disclosed
corporate sustainability strategies, management systems,
management key points, key stakeholder participation activities as
well as major sustainability development related issues to respond
to key stakeholders.

. Impact: Giordano has considered and evaluate its impacts and
realised its impacts on stakeholders, so as to make a more
effective decision-making and result-based management within the
organisation.

. Information: Based on the procedures that SHINEWING has
performed and the evidence we have obtained, no specific issue
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
disclosure of information in the ESG Report is not accurate or not
been prepared in all material respects in accordance with the basis
of reporting.

e The ESG Report has complied with all mandatory disclosure
requirements and “comply or explain” provisions set out in the
Appendix 27. The ESG Report illustrates Giordano’s sustainability
performance covering all material and relevant aspects and/or
topics in a balanced, clear, consistent, and timely manner.

SHINEWING Sustainability Team

SHINEWING has been researching, standardizing and validating
corporate environmental performance data since 2016. SHINEWING's
sustainability team has the relevant professional and technical
competencies and experience. The relevant personnel have received
professional training on sustainability-related standards such as GRI
Sustainability Reporting Standards issued by the Global Reporting
Initiative, AA1000AS v3, SEHK Appendix 27, ISO 14064, PAS2600, etc.

SHINEWING Sustainability Advisory Services Limited

AA1000

Licensed Report
000-294/\VV3-2F768
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Aspects, General Description 2022 ESG Report

Disclosures and KPIs

A. 3818 Environmental

2 BEA1 : $5® Aspect A1: Emissions
7.

—RRIE BRAERIORERBYEN - MRS  BERESEEVMNELSH - Al

General Disclosure (a) B &

(b) BIFHBEITABERVENBEERADNER -

i BEREREBEASMLY Bt REBZEFIEZRAGRENSEY o
BERESE AN Tk SR SEBEEY  2REEBRSAELE -
BEEBEEMERRAOIAREE -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated under national laws and
regulations.

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,

perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

R EBIRIZA PERUTE AR AR B B8R - A2 [E1 Graph 1
KPIA1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

BREBIEIZAL.2 HiEEED) RREE (BE2)RERENE (CAETE) R(WER)BE (MASES S - A2 [E1 Graph 1
KPI A1.2 R E) °

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

AR B MIEITEAL3 FESEEEEYEE (UEFE) R(MER)BE(MASEREN - 8EREHE) - A2 @12
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of Note 2 of Graph 1

production volume, per facility).

BB MIEIEALA FESBEEFEEYEE (UEFE) R(MER)BE(MASERBEN - BEREHE) - A2 [E1 Graph 1
KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit

of production volume, per facility).

BRERIEIZALS PRI M BE R E B IR R AERE L B EPAERERE P8 - B8 Page 8 3
KPI'A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. A2 Y
BB MIEITEALE HREIREEREEEEYNTTE - RARPTEISIARE B R R AEDEL B RARRE FE - B8 Page 8 N
KPIA1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description of A2

reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPls

i ik

Description

BHEA2 : |iF{ A Aspect A2: Use of Resources

(2022 IRIK W F
REAEE)
2022 ESG Report

—RIE

General Disclosure

R EMIEIZA2.2
KPI A2.2
FABRE WIEIZA2.3
KPI A2.3
B ERIEIZEA2.4
KPI A2.4

BABRE IBIZA2.5
KPI A2.5

BRERER(BIFERR - KREAMRMEL) HBEE -
2 BRUAREE  #BF - EH - BF BTRES -
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings, electronic

equipment, etc.
REAESWERERSEEER(NE - fsUh)@REE (UATETRERTE) REE(NUGES
B BIERMBEE) ©
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BRKEREE(WNAEEE B - BEKXMEAE

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
AT AT S B REIRGE A A B AR R RE B iE L B ARFT IR 258 ©

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

I SKEUE AR AT A ERIRRE - ARATET AR B IR R RER S L B IZFTERMAN LR -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency

target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

SRR FTR B EM K R E AN E) R (WER) BEESBMEE -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference

to per unit produced.

A2

A2 [E1 Graph 1

A2 [E1 Graph 1

B8 Page 8
A2

E8 Page 8
A2 54 Note 4

A2 [E1 Graph 1

&h D)

BEA3 : BRERXRFIR Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

—RE HIEETARRERARAE RERBRZ LB - A3
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and natural resources.
RSB AUEIRA3A HEEBHHRERAAE RN EAZENERNELEHPENTH A3
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and

the actions taken to manage them.

BEA4 - |IEE(L Aspect A4: Climate Change

—RE BRI EHE R ARG HETAEETENEARKREBFENBE - A4
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
B IRITAL.Y HREERTERHETAELVEOEARRINNEE - REHTH - A4

KPI'A4.1

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may

impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPls

il ik

Description

B. it & Social
BB % ITHM Employment and Labour Practices

BmEB1 : {&{# Aspect B1: Employment

(2022 IRIK ‘WM F
REAEE)
2022 ESG Report

—RIE BRAFINEE BEREA  THERE - RY - TSRS 20l REGUAREMTBERERN | B
General Disclosure ) :

(a) B R

(b) ETHBETAFBEAXENRBEIZRRMNER -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,

equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
RAER 45 HEIEB 1 RIER - ERER(NERERRE)  FRARIKICEEDHIES AR - B1 @23
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part- time), age group and Graph 2 & 3

geographical region.
BSERUERRB .2 RIER - FIRERI I EE D HEERKLLE o B1 @23
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Graph 2 & 3

BEB2 : @FRERZ Aspect B2: Health and Safety

— R ERRHLZE2TIFREMREREMEBENEEN - B2
General Disclosure (a) R K

(b) ETHBETABEAZENABEERALINER -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.
RSB UEIRB2.1 BEZF(BEERFE)SFRITHMABRILLE - B2(1)
KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years including the

reporting year.
B MR IBB2.2 RIEBATIAY - B2(1)
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
BB MIEIRB2.3 FRPT RN B R R B B 2 248 1 - A RGBT RER A - B2(2)

KPI B2.3

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are

implemented and monitored.
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPls

i ik

Description

BEB3 : ®#ER A Aspect B3: Development and Training

(2022 IRIK W F
REAEE)
2022 ESG Report

Description of training activities.

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid by

the employer.

...... O

— R ERRHEE BT TIEBE MM R BEERBER « #FINES - B3 ‘:

General Disclosure o EIEERESY  UeBREINENRIMERE - "
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. '5:

General Disclosure

PR A IETRBS.

RAER 45 MEITB3.1 RERIRESEN(NSREEE  PREEE)E>NZIREESL - B3
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior

management, middle management).
R A MIEIEB3.2 RERIRESERE S - BREBTHZ I TIIRE - B3
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.

BHEB4 : % T #H8 Aspect B4: Labour Standards

— MR ER BRI E T ko hlss TH) - B4
General Disclosure (a) B K

(b) BTFHBEITABERTENBBZEERADNER -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.
R B MIEIEBA R R RIS DI e AR R E T KRGS T - B4
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labour.
AL 1842 HLEERE NSRS R AR RG 8 - B4
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

ZER A Operating Practices
[BEB5 : £ESEE Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

— MR EE EIRHERMNIRE R ERBRBUE - BS

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

ZiRE D WHEREE -

B5 [El5 Graph 5

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
N
§ R A NIEIEB5.2 A R A MEREAIED - mERTERENNHEREE - AREETRER X - B5(1)&(2)
g KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
- are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.
m
o
Q R A NIEIEB5.3 HR BB ERESERGNRRREERABNED - ARBEATRERTE - B5(2)
=z
= KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply chain,
R
5 and how they are implemented and monitored.
it R ENIEIEB5.4 M RE H R RE S ARRE R RIRFHIER - ARARBENITRERTE - B5(1)&(2)
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and services
% when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
A
#h
&
=
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPls

i ik

Description

BEB6 : EREIE Aspect Bé: Product Responsibility

(2022 IRIK W F
REAEE)
2022 ESG Report

KPI B7.3

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

N
"4
— R BRMRHERMRBOEREZS  BS  BEMMBEEUARMBTEN : B6
General Disclosure (a) B &
(b) ETHBETAREAXENRBZEIZRRMNER -
g; Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
RS UEIRBO. EERCEXERBBTRL2MEFEAMARDKNBE DL B4(2)
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
RS UEIRBG.2 ERBNERERGOIRFEE UREETTE - B&(1)
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt with.
BB MIEIEB6.3 T R R R AR E R B AR B ) B6(2)
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.
BB M IE1EB6 .4 S Bl e B2 MEmEWAZFF - B6(2)
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
BB MIEIRBG.5 R BEEERRERAEBER - ARBRMITRERTE - B6(4)
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
BEB7 : KA % Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
—RIE BRIM LLRRRR - SR - BFEROEBER B7
General Disclosure (a) R &
(b) BTHBRTAEERTENRBEZRADNER -
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
RSB IR 1EBT 1 RERPAWETASEEEREIERENETHFARMTOHE RFDER - B7
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RAR B M IE1RBT .2 P S IE e R RIR T - ARMERRIT RER A © B7
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
BB IIEBT 3 B E R A TREHRASE - B7
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPls

i ik

Description

it E Community

BHEBS : itEHR T Aspect B8: Community Investment

(2022 IRIK W F
REAEE)
2022 ESG Report

—RIE

General Disclosure

BASRAE W IE1EBS.1
KPI B8.1

FRRAAMIEIRB8.2
KPI B8.2

BRAHES2ERTREEMEHRBENEREIZBED G E BLRMMAOBR -

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the

issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BIEBHE(WHE  BREE - SIHK - #F - b BH) -
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs, health,

culture, sport).

EEIHEMPMAER (NS ERERE) o

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

B8

B8(8)

B8(8)
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Giordano International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited Jiability)

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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